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) HeRTe faga e s (gg-adig dis §R) fafes, 209y
3 BRI 3D Y 098-30 ATS! D HHAS;

SF) HERTE (9@ FRase AN (Fg-auiy 41T &) faf=H, 209%
T BRI 3D q¥ 020-9 3T TP a9 2039-32
AT 3 FHATST;
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freram i ax 3MfoT SMRIINg Ul Hegel, uferd aegell
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PRI Sreradi=r fod=ar oy dea avieRar, a1 fafFRETaR
{4 M URYY SrAciel Srgd FHRISTIS!  ATdT
HU, YRV RAFERSD A0 TAUAS] JrAThgT 9 AlwaR,
2038 TAA AT IR0 RAMERGIBST 30 :ﬁ%ER’ 038 TIq
SRIA HRUITA Ul AT I Fleiid €r|‘s‘ﬂ%n AT I

@) HERTE fdggd e o (Fg-9vi 4l &v) fafm,
209] I HRIGAUTI MMfTH TY 03-3 AT 3Ny Iy
2033-3% TSI Db FANIISM;

) HERTE fOgd e oM (Fg-av 4 <)) fafem,
209] I PRIGAT 3P qY 038-Y ATS! YR A
SRIDISES

R 3 BI, AMIE a0 RaeRE, g 9T &% 39 A9,
030 T AN FfTgd wxraaren ae iegreredid, a2 fadqvo
RAMIERST fIRMe e ATl e o) gg-avig disl &% AT,
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UYq SIUIE 31 @Y, I AFIG fIRUT UREHTERGI  TH
AT YRIST &N HHTA HIIaT e = dqreqRedn 4t axre
ARSI ATIDT RIS HRUGTE WRaATHT QU IS, ATATSIUTS
4TS WREl PRR fhdl Fav=d] AAarsEl ATl A1 TR
IE-IUI IS SR AMIHBT SIS HRaAT I

R Tl DI, SR AIDT AT Sramdicd S dRuga
JArell TSl AMoT/fhar ATfdhary BrIaTEl g BRUIMAS! AN
HIRIdelell AT ST fdoledr dosa AIGR RUATd 3fTell A8l R,
HaTIT, ST 3Tl Y, YU I o (BRidT PiRe) YR
<UgTd YUIR ATel.
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R T BI, FRIF 9 FHRal VAR gchHdie dwiadia
T dIST SRML 3rAdh, HIo! I fEpe BURY ar@ §IUgTd
BIVIR 3Ye R, RV FIerasl SR Bivrme! I8l ATferdT sRael
BT Ul

gifeeredl, a1 fafEdiaia 9t ) fhar Yob T MR
FeeciiaRor 3T orged FHRIS  Jraoredl  iihaldd  didiTs
SETYRIErT i fqaRora= |re” .

R 3™ DI, [IORY RAFERSTT fGOR0T IR” FqadR AT
fore fRele RIcAT] FIAR™IT okd HYUIYUl el HRUGT
3fTelel TEde ), faaR0T WRAMERSTE UHUT A8gell TRl & faavo

IR FAER AV [HRple ISl RISl Fadqrd A1 QraiEed Il
fafrmten wrr ot w1 fiffde wRvaa smoien aey gAraR
fgvmroaTe I54;

AN ggfag fqaRer A i dolel 3ed @1 &=A=aT draedid
UG fIaRUT WREAMERGI AT [AFIH Gl aiaied] ATfadhl Srgel
RO YA Gell .

N 3T DI, ST GATATS] IMFIhT SRIS PHRUATT 3fTell 3
372 AP ATedl &FTAST UpUl Hgell RSl 3T g &v g
PRI IRARTAT TR BT ATHIS! 3R IS el ATTHAR] G,
HEgd, WA, SR, HiSelldRYl AT qEaRI-FEr™ s &% g
queiiel AT 3/ d;

UNq AT 1A DI, AT UAD A ARG sderall 31T
@, HEgdl, d<1, QIdcd AT WiSallhRul IART YRIST &S

TR AR HRATT TSI qé(ﬂ;

URq 3BT BI, AR WREHERS, WUl SOl 30T ST YRIaT
ARG AR WRAMYRG el ATbT G boll AT 3720
U SANIS] e, Hegel, A1, QIR AT WS/l AT qTwHe

U3 ATGY Helel.
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gg-ava 91 S arfret

IE-guI ST g% ATferhHed, A1 fafremime s eruard sfrere
TERdIER, FRF0 SraEd= gde quide!] U Jegell IRoTd
3faTof 30T ISl SRTYTY STUfard Heygel Iiar FHIael 3T 307 FeM
TFerhalad o] JTFelel Yo 3.

UHUT HEgell TR 3farsl, R0 Braadie®e goie gehin
SEIEG] qi%ﬂw ARG fAfdd HRuard Adiiel 37eM ANIGRID
LATIATO g FTHIGAR aiaRI-fer fagbr for qrrofir siars, die
RS IS, wisael Jaquie i, el IWROT A AT

Wi 1edih, AT IMYRTAR I

Hiedd IAaue ATSTHed, FET dle] 3elel Udbed, S ANflel FRIF0T
BIATGHE dTe] $ATel A<, M7 T Tebeu (FHITNE) ST
UR¥ RV SremadFe) SR SR URg S RV wremadHe]
fhar @aR g BIUTR SRpcllel o, I STEfduaTd Aciiel STl

fAaRoT WRamER®, & GEiEk 7 9gH WRal HRu1 (FWRIT 3R
e d@) a1 daeR M defta afawmer fafafds derat
Taeliel SNl WRErd due 0T Holl HRIEHd (§5) 9 ol AN
RATAT  (SITATH)  roAidre! faolel  dedid, e, a1
e YR =R gdcied] 9d il deihgd drEarear 9w

ERATT RO aRddral JiGTel N heldl;

W I B, JANTH A Fetear Taeliar ol wRal
ST Yaid] PRUYTATS! AT Holl heuidh g BRIGATA] [qo=l
RS WRIT e fS¥d I dF] I8UIR ATal.
dIST &R IO SRR U AeGeAral aTel Wielldl drdied]
MR MBI -

(v) N dusirear aredid, R0 SraEddid e auidre!
ydh Ta/bhg™ Far srraarer Ao aREmm igT;

() URYT WIFYURGEAT d6€dd, R0 SeEd=n add
qUTS!  UHUT HEgell TR dfarst fhar gRwor  IHon
SUANTHIT dIccicd] YRYUT & I 3faTel;
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() fART WRIFERG=T d6dd, 0 draEdid T
JUITS!  UTEHAT  GRIAuaTd  Jrgaredr 3o faaRor 5o
SYTIRTGHATT adi- 98d dIgara [qoren aRAvm i,

N 3 B, fAaRUT RAMTERS §TYC ol 3T §7YC ax¥E,
gd a0 Al SAars] aRI-Er f[dwrer defed
SENIKECHCHCIRSICAIC P

(S1) IRt TRIS HRUATAT [&ATHT RS Jeferd sifeiell diel &% ;

THUT Hegell RS AMT IS &R 9 ARGl IfUle d8ga
THEHUCTSI! FRIE0 Preadi= gde auiard] gRmfdd e ©X
e Yo 9 SMBR, AN JFAN, TARIFEI AGY B, S TGHUT
q8gell RO e, A, WO BIg kel d9d g
IR Al pRIGATA] HATQUITeA] ARl auiiiel el  PHROGT
3MTeTedT Hegell JerdT AT 3.

AN &Il gISTdIaume Hedich-T BRUl I @Td IS,
AN BMRRY, SRiewd fdhar Scadddiel ofd e HRUGRIo!
U ETbR, difd W, HATCIaid  Favel 37T 2|
AAYE  greards, Ui 1 Rod #/Ilfad q I[8d1, QTS
FALTAS] AYul quefiel HIeR BRI A

TR U ST AR, 3TN -

(T) R0 HIAEIRITST THUT Hegel] IR ST dI SR™ed Ay
d hRagel Ho- IMMMT Il "Tefd, Aeel IR oltel;  fdar

ITfIHTHITAT T FEOT0 AISUAT! arordl Weft focam=aR, ordl

BRI AlGgH, Tl AThIo bl ;

Pl RN Tchiare! falre arief¥e

AN, Fg-gud dIS S Alferbell HRAAT QdMI, HEl 3fReR

USRIl PRIEHTT I qids, Wy IrearqRad Agifad 1 &,

HANTGIRIAT ST a5dl.
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qeATaeft ISTan

H R030-39 M7 AT 029-3 AT HeATadl IMeTATATS! SMOT
THUT HEYell TROI 9 Al 3 AHATIIS HRUIRIST AT
2032-33 WIS ARYRAT M FATIISHTGINGT M Hu=d1, Ry
TRATTERS 3T 5T HR U§UT g ITeTdhgd 9 Al@dy, 032 Td
3T fAoRU RAMYRGIHhgT 30 Tledy, 032 TId Il T

AN
HIUYT USol;

WG ™ DI, IIHH  J-NM SRA  fdeledn T
Hife<d¥g, Upul Hegell TReT 30T divf &% 9 STBRIUGH AUl
Aol H=IdT faoledl TSN BEboaydd 3T fawia
SHRREE  Slcicd]  BIVAE]  BRGMEl  HRUFEH™T d Tl
JSHUATATS! @] [qaRoM=, kgl JRIeidid IAR 37T aReqd
AT JfEdTel 9 gl SAINS AN AR 3refl 3= Hifeeh, gi=n
HHATIY A

UG JMMEl DI, SR ISl fARTe wreMaed  aRId
PRUATT 3Tl ARl ATfor/fhar ATferbar  Hriars! o BRUITATS!
AN ATRTCelell ATl SXgA fdoledl dood WG HRUIN  3ATell
UYUT hoTad], S A o9, Y0 Il AN (BT PiRe)
YR U IUIR TSI

aegTge) ST AT =0T draadi=ar ufgear 9 aurare!
gl footean gl ucuel drEdrsifaygd onfor foxia sl
T SATOT =0T Brefraediear dedl g uraed] auiTe! Ypul Hegell
GRS 3f&TSl 3T YT GRaRI-8Td diSl &R giar FH1ael 3.

BT ufgedr I auiT SUGR] Tolcd] Alfededl JMYURTAR
Sfad aIce acd VAT, SR gEiaRIaRd, aNI-Her fawr, i
N1 AR TRd/3MYR, bR AT, M gv, uRyoT =7,
e 3MMBR AT FAR-FTB IS &R IreaHed JERI Bl
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R SMUIE! I B, AWl IfeMl AR HeATdl
SMSTATHR heled] BRIGTATS! JAaID AT faIquul uard s,

fafrm ¢ 2 HedieT serdr qul STy icR, AN, Wil fafra| § 7ed
faffée dolear JIRRR gchian dMARIAIE dwEd fhar Imufera
deracal ey Aifadrece MRt sl (s
PROGNRE)  "ediel fhar @ fREvmerda (o T
PROINIRE) Hehiel Sred;

R I Bl faf e Q.9 sidia faffee Sxvam smelean iRRR
dwTac 3feesedl TR, =0T BIeadia AmANThg el AME=Yul
TeTEl oSl SR ATl AOT AT dhraciier Heg goia: ARy
HRUGNARIT  TSHIeN SIevdrd Jsdl;

R SMUE! 3™ DI, SR ANdbrhcardl ol Wl sel sRie
oI, A .9 7 fIfFfd 9 Foewr IR "o RN
DIV 9ud dwiad fhar ufed dwad =0T 7 sRvgRIREn
HCHHos el AU AR, AT AMADBIDhd 372N JRRR TCSHIa FHIL
HRUGMATS] SMANTHS IS H% Ihel.

SHRRTET HAEdl e YUl SIedTHeR, AN Wleflel  dTeiebiRal

3T 9IRd et~

(v) T = fhar wameR® fhal tHTATAS Kol |9 030~
29 AT 039-32 TSI FRIFU IRVIAREAT GCHiHS SiTelel
HIRICTITE UHUT AT fdham dreT MifoT &9 2033-33 AT ARYRd

3 FHTIIST ATOT 372 A% fhar dieardl faffrm 99 TaR
¥ odr Ager 37efl VanH;

(@) RN du fhar waeRS® fhar tHTaTAS el |9 030-
29 30T 2039-32 WIS FHHU 7 HRUGNARE UCh b SHTetel]
IR YUl b1 fhdl dIeT 30T | 033-33 WIS AYRd
3@ FHIAISTT SIM0T QM BT fdhar afem dAlcardl IahH, Sil
G NG 9GS HROATT 3fTelell Fegd! ST S fafrm
qo AR [GHNA ol Ugel;

(¥1) fra=ror prefraeiiedr SART BreadinRal THul Hegell TR 10T

4151 &R a1 Yo d DR IIRATS! AT VAT 3felel hRaad.
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TR T BROINIRET UChiEe AN AT detedn ETelie
gehial FHEY A, o IeeRe FRIF0T dRNid e ofT o
ISleR YHEl HO ABUR ARl 3 fAclcl. (AT "cHhi gl
GTATTYHTOT 37T~

(T) < MU= "eH;

(&)  wrueEidd 95d;

(&) e snfor/fear gzd SgqTeal fhAdHdiar dwEdiges e
eI dqdl;

faepidiier awrad;

IS W= aRRI fhar aRemdld AR Agal fetedn
s (clauses) 1€ RTE, TS g dro
G SR dBIIdes drol BRG] el qwblad;
(TH) MR- URYIT JATHRIT THIA ;

(Sh) <TE-wIfel HoINTS! IRUSHIA TSI &RIclel dwbTad; ST

(=) AT-d18e aXIcilel qwhlad.

“ g

TRIBTh AT BHARRIAI dhrdal fhar ufed dwad) Sam=m g9y
IS0 HRUGRRE gehiEll AR™NMDHST Siieell Siid; Wbl 372
GTellel "ehidl, g o TATATgRad Jifad = Ir8dl, a9l e -

S) AT 9 <@ Sdidid dwiad;
3) DDA AEIDIA BT=HefeT T

R0 7 HROTARE geHHS FHeldr TH1 fhar dier ArgdiAn o
HRUATE e

ST SRT=A1 AR [IeRIT gdeled] SHIdihgd @Al boledl SHAT
Gailel IHEde, el SdihgT WNal holedl Bl
o= uiRTE, MR Gueiar sielell TpUl %I fdar drer
fafe go.g H&1 fAffE deargaR, ATa® daarar M dueirear
Sl BRI FHARISTT B DT AN BRI Ugel.
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() WA HiSaelasiel Toredl YhHdel dbldd;
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faffra| .9 78 gHIfae AT Se9 gd 3foT ISl W< W 3for
3IAR-ITSY URYUT S{ThRIIA ThIacifes IR0 WRAMIIRSBI BIURT
THUT %I fhar Al WBHIAT STe-UTh BRI (Zrad) SHT FHRITG
JMBR AT WRTRATS! ] RV Used; ATATS! IT JATHRT HAIRID
JareR. e i SR e, a1 fafmiae fafafase exvaa
reaTyATY SfoT AT fafuARarel AN UIRT defedT SR
fafegq oRvad Iga IO T T SRR el dxdraR
FTARR qa-HoR= T A, HRUAd A5,

Wg AW @I, AU wroEde ufdedr  auidld  dfeed
HEATHRAT FS-ECH IMMBRTAT (Zsac) AT, PG TURIVTER
3METRT, qa-HoR] =14l dHIe;

TR AU 3™ @i, IR0 IRAMERS Ss-9ed MHRTT d-
ASRINATST, dholell Wd d AN HI=Ue fSelell @ IMdiel dwradra
auefiar onfor fd=vr wramesd=r ufeen avfen ufden Afg=aran

TSATGUTATS] AN 3aegeh clell TURNAIR TRITUET g Jeeed

SRITAST, RN SR [eledl M e BRI ;

it ufdedr AR, W= M derga FEier deten
fqotediel Su @ SMfYT @REl deledr fqoren @ SMfiy JAR-I19Y
GICSEERGH

Zpac TATRUT URAFAERGIAT HYUl [dehlar, DIVATE] ATSHIAT DIVIB!

ge 7 o, A Il

T IR BIvTTE! Al ERE! doled] faoi=aT Heemd 14T
G BoIMAR, ST g ITOT dIST W@Nel w@d I ITaR-I1ST URYOT
JMBR TG TIeT THIAAT IMIRTAR Zpae AT GRIAVAT T
AMHRON BRI st M7 S84 g for/fhar e wRel @
] fhar smféra dwrad I oMuR, B IRIUMT HRUI AR
1)

fizor wraEdr ufeer auidiar ufecr afRR|RIST Zpae o
feoiean T=med, dolel @9 M1 Al fooiedn Yo Jragmdie
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JBTgar queiial Mo =0T Hremadi=an AHIRTT A-ATATS!, Zeac
A BRRR AFIAGRAT, AN USAI@viTe! e 3Telell
ORATOT 3fOT gecwred Swrdstren queilel, | i

e PRI Sramadiea ufdear auikiid gfger dfz=r gHiae
AT, SIS Zppc ol Ja-HORI JATIID MBI,

R SMUE! ¥ DI, ARV WRAFERS, FRIF HlAad=an
cld  Afeardael Qre W M damga i deten
fIotaiel o9 W ST WREl deledl faoiavlel @ ST fiR--15Y

IRYUT JMMHR AW dbiaaral dueid, Tdd ARFaR a8 (go)
feaar=an 3T KMTET de@rer, BRITGR JORIMIo!, |aR i,

N IS @I, fAORU WRAMERS, YA Zpye T JoAd
AR HTEIBRAT qd TTEHIAT AT HRUAN SMMTAT Zye I AT
AN TSATRUITATST JTaegeh 3TAetell YRIU=T queiiel M7 gect

TUTRT BIIGUS FTGR Bl ;

N UGl S DI, [IARUT URATTERD, Zpac AT] HRUITATS
TN feled] HORET qUel, radl §exdcadlal Ahd-R@[eR,
PHANGRCEISE
FS-TCH  MMEHRIAT U9 FHRINH  MHR - (THTH)  9rTm=
RIOHATS] aroRTaATe G YeIIgHTol e -

Zrac (Rs crore) = F+C+B
9,
Zrac = YU GHIIINGH JMMHRIGNRA(THUHT) YHT -
S-Uch IAHR;

F = faf9 .9 7 gwIfdse rgelelt wWd: =T die
fafrard= su9 wara Jnfor 9 wRE=aT g9 ST
JTAR-ITSY URYUT ATHRITA dGa;

C = IR HH agall/SATET gYeldR Hie=ared] godriell
Taferd Tl MUY (3¥9) G-I 940 JITR™T 372
& Ho JUMAT TR ST AT,

B = SI&l agell/dHl ageiid Rl GRS g,
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“ua” AT JMERTIIATAT S THRITS IAMHRTATS! TRITOHET
Zpac n (Rs crore) = Fyo + Cho + Bhoo,

S,

F., = “ua-3” gfe=urardl wad: 970 doiedr faoi=ar sg=mn
W ITOT WRETl holed] faoiar wd T SiaR-v~y
URYUT 3ThRIAT daol MTOT I IRITIMET WTeTTIH 7ol

HROYT ISl ;

F (Rs. Crore) = Apc,Gen T Arcpp, + Arc

S,

Arccm = - 99 Edkilal dad. I deorel IR,
IHPh T3, FERIAN] dqUR, $ 9151 AR 9r=adT feoial
ey efoT YT I=aT MR HRUATT I,

Arcpr = I AIIIBGT WG doledl faoiedr IR 3ot/ e
RRR waiqdier gec1. 81 9qa1, Ii fafgdia fafed deie
amfor e IS SR ARER e gadr
RO HYQUd M7 1] qun=aT fepuiean Sfefi
NESAERERINEIE

Cor = "n-2" ARIATS! BIVATE! ST RGll/HHT aGAITS!

SIS CE]

JNAR-ITSY YRYYT JAHRIci dael;

Arc

B2 (Rs. Crore) = Zpacn4 - Roa

S,

B, = “n -2 HRATATS! ST&T gGell/HH IGATBR
THTATST g,

Zracnda = “n-4” Afg=arTS) Zrc;

Ry = “n-2” AEIHE “n-4” ARG YI& I

BTl Zrac;
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R RIS FHoled! GAMAR, THUT TLA-ATT Zeae A1 aGell  TTE
fspIHE " TfT JfIe' JTIHTON HRUATT Il

g 3 B, HlexX 7 gAfdeied] Aedhieal drecild, AN S
feled Yeadg % dhelcd] URIVFTAR 3720 UTEHI beled]
3QIT fAehTeaT SMEN BIEAA Zpac TGA-ATT BT ;

W ATOET 3 B, AN Al faeledr ardeiuer faaror
WRAMERGE Jdel i IS AR 81fv Siegl SIRA 8
degr, ol ST faoRur gERl (IFewdld) AHIed JahH UHU
THA-AT Zppc T BHI HRUATT IS,

IS SRS [T Urgd aviaRl/Su-aiqR/aTaRTe SWT ATh IR Ui
ITE Zpac o IRIVFT Wlellel ATTAR HRUIT Agel -

Zrac cat (Rs/KWh) = [Zrac / (Metered sales + Unmetered consumption estimates
+ Excess distribution losses)] * k * 10,

i
Zpac Cat = faRre CIN| X PIEEY IR/~
THARI/ATRTE] TATHRAT Zppe |FT DI Sl
“Su Tl e e SRifdern Siige
k = WA ATHRON &R/ AR IS RaSIrar &

IRAR] JMHRUT & (Average Billing Rate) = =TSl [qaRTE| sreen
fARre 5 av UEd IHRY/Su-aIaRl/araRr
At | GRS I 631 1 BT I B o B GRS
AT foeten “oud ufa gie” weia “avmad
S IEIRYIE I

R 3 DI, WX THA UBHIBRAT AR ATHROTT &%

Bl AN OXgH  fdoledl YRR IR hodTyATol 3721

OTEHIHT deled] IQTrd famiar MeTRd 3T,

AR I qRacArEl @d (ACOS) = WU RN G &Rl
AQed agetrare! Jgal faotar “eud ufd
e Aele AR A RaSAET @9
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W M B, AP Zppe B AT SRS IR HEITRAT Q0
I, fbdl STRITT SRYA <3l 3720 3= HATCUET, SR e

U SIURET 3 DI, IR FAAGHS Zpac AU DIORIGT BHI
Rl & ge Jilevard Yo Mfor M fATRUT WRAFIEgRS AT
e 33 foaen vt Fremadid e wRar g,

9090 FRAAT byt fHar WRIAERGR [od  FRATGIN b
TAGROTAT faetel il fhar SN qikd dhelell gAfdaie
JATQT D BIVRT RS GRUIMH, Zpue BRI =T =07 =
PROGMARA] Gared] IHTAT (Zoye) HIEHHIGA R0 Drefraei=n
ga=T, fo=ar @ e auire! arfte drarar il SRMed AN

Hod, IT fafraiaiiad iRd ®Ruard SfTetedT STRANT=AT SIS
T HRUA FMRTAR, UEDBibgT dgdl HRUATT Asdl.

90.99 TR WRAFERG  FRFT Sregdiear ga=a1, =r @ graen
qYATS! ETGATT TSYic URYUT TR gaairdl TRV Zoye
= HIEATQE dl¥e dRdrEaR [JaRUT WRaERST 45l S’
ARG Hod, 1 fAFIHd IR qiRd dholedl JTamaed
T HRugrT Agel AIHU, UTgdhidhgT dgel HRUAT sd.

90.92 ddfgg AR Hul fhaT WRAFERGH ST holedl  ITIb<l
MR Zoue HITaT HROIT IS,

90.93 30T FHramaeir uftedr g drRar 9uid, AR duer fdar
RAMYRGIAR e IRITAA  febar ~aramferaron= feeian frara
far AT wIRA Fetell YIRS AR BIVIRT SMIHRTS
gRUmY 3NfYT fAaRUT WRAFERG ST AT JTAR-IST 37T
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PAFMp1
NAPAF

CCpi= (0.20 x AFC)x (%) x ( ) subject to ceiling of (0.20 x AFC)x (1—12)
CCpo= {(0.20 x AFC)x (%) X (P::PAZ ) subject to ceiling of (0.20 x AFC)x ( }-CCy

CCps= {(0.20 x AFC)x (1) x (PAFM’B) subject to ceiling of (0.20 x AFC)x ( }— (CC, + CCR)]}

4 NAPAF

)
)

CCop1= {(0.80 x AFC)x (i) x (m) subject to ceiling of (0.80 x AFC)x (—)}

2 NAPAF 12
CCop= {(0.80 x AFC)x (%) x (”AFM"”Z) subject to ceiling of (0.80 x AFC)x (6)} CCopi
CCop= {(0.80 x AFC)x

1
(%) NAPAF
(i) x (Pzifjp?’) subject to ceiling of (0.80 x AFC)x G)} —(CCopi +
CCop)1}
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CC,i= {(0.20 x AFC)x (—) X ("“ﬂ) subject to ceiling of (0.20 x AFC)x (E)}
1

NAPAF
CCpo= {(0.20 x AFC)x ) (”A”“’Z) subject to ceiling of (0.20 x AFC)x (g }-CCyy

PAFMp6
NAPAF

( NAPAF )
CCp3= {(0.20 x AFC)x G) (P::P P ) subject to ceiling of (0.20 x AFC)x G)} —(CC, +CCpp)
CCp= {(0.20 x AFO)x (3) x ("::Zf ) subject to ceiling of (0.20 x AFC)x ()}~ (CCpy + CCyot+
CC,ys)
CCys= {(0.20 x AFC)x (2) x (P22 subject to ceiling of (0.20 x AFCQ)x ()}~ (CCpy+ CCpt+
CCoyt CCps)

(

CCe= {(0.20 x AFO)x (3) x (Z2e
CCp3+ CCpat CCys)

CCyr= {(0.20 x AFO)x () x (
CCp3+ CCpyt CCost CCy)

CCyps= {(0.20 x AFC)x (2) x (222
CCpy+ CCpyt CCpst CCpt CCy)
CCpo= {(0.20 x AFC)x (%) X (‘:‘:f"") subject to ceiling of (0.20 x AFC)x G)} —(CCpy + CCpt

CCpyt CCpat CCpst CCpst CCyrt CCi)

) subject to ceiling of (0.20 x AFC)x (5)}~ (CCpy + CCyot+

PAFMp7

. . ;
NAPAF ) subject to ceiling of (0.20 x AFC)x (E)} —(CCpy + CCpyt

) subject to ceiling of (0.20 x AFC)x (g)} —(CCp + CCpt

PAFMop1

1
NAPAF ) subject to ceiling of (0.80 x AFC)x (E)}
(PAFMop

) NAPAF ) subject to ceiling of (0.80 x AFC)x (2) ~ CCop
) (PAFMUw) subject to ceiling of (0.80 x AFC)x (4)} (CCopi *
) x )

CCopi= {(0.80 x AFO)x (=) x (
CCopo= {(0.80 x AFC)x
CCops= {(0.80 x AFC)x

(5

(
CCyp2)

(

(

NAPAF

CCops= {(0.80 x AFC)x % (P;ZA::M) subject to ceiling of (0.80 x AFC)x (3 }-(CCop1 +
Ccop2+ CCop?)

5 A 5 5
CCups= {(0.80 x AFC)x () x (Z2252E%) subject to ceiling of (0.80 x AFC)x (=)}~ (CCopi +

CCoprt CCopst CCops)

CCop6= {(080 x AFC)x (i) x (
CCoprt CCopst CCopyt CCops)
CCopr= {(0.80 x AFC)x (L) x (PADMop?
CCop2+ CC0p3+ CC0P4+ CC°1’5+ CCOP )
CCope= (080 x AFO)x (2) x (“AEM908) bt to ceiling of (0.80 x AFC)x ()}~ (CCopt +
CCoprt CCopst CCopat CCopst CCopst CCop7)

CCp= (080 x AFC)x (2) x (PAM%) (pjcet 10 ceing of (0.80 x AFC)x ()} (CCor+

CCop2+ Ccop3+ CC0p4+ Ccop5+ CCop6+ CCop7+ CCopX)

PAFMop6

ATHOPS) subject to ceiling of (0.80 x AFQ)X (£)}— (CCop +

) subject to ceiling of (0.80 x AFC)x ()}~ (CCop +

AYFHIBIOMs  dq  rFeard, FMRTdl du-lel bds ot d
TS @ M7 FHoiasiel TSI a¥jell WRarfl Suard Agal.
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R el @i, MR dueied] Hha-WIREaR Sdld  qgdhrl
ol 3MTfOT TpuT beRifthe odiedT Hdasar queiiel 9 gyl fbad
WIS, QR Hladl, AT dbolell hlodl, $-3ATde Dlodl,
forrse, 9T 9y, SRUSUSH, §d $99 3. =1 fhAa, Imam
P BIBTAERIEGR QLI DI AT UIRR,  $-3ATaRIA
DDA YATOT 5. & quefic] AP drarar Uaf¥id oruard dgd,
3T Tl Hhd-¥ear 9 Afg=giear drefadiardl g1 queiiet
SEREIIEAE R ECICEUE IR
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a1 fafH=r fafd ge .3 A fiffee SRaR, ge EHme
(I=g qroft €E fhar wH AN 29, S 3 99), Hadl
TdTaR, HHTA ATl el ATl SRE WIH YR Hehredl
TR AU TaA-99  Holuel SIRG Seled] U ol
RIS oo U ¥l JFE a1 Udb™ &R HIcATEa-318H <4
RIE 3Mf7 wHTel AFTOfT FFeiedl  drared] SXRIE 693 9R
YTHIA] AeIThI IO Y- Hoiel] SR SiTeled] Ucdel 3ol
RIS 4o T Uiy e a1 TdHa SRM AIEET-3Iee <1
NHK

i GRAOMT HROT G i WO H0l

STot-faega e datean amffe fRR R aReorET, a1 fafesia
fafafese Forcar favi=ar smuR, Iffe awaear BRuATd dsel ST
T aGell, &Hd JATHR (NS -3 AHIIE AFeleT) AT
ol AMBGRIEE, ARTH TR HRoAd Usal 9 T JAHR
YR BIhg, A baredl eFdadil el et fEeearea
EEINICEEUEIERI ]

EAT SHR ATV FHoll BRI ARTART 9l BRG] aTvh
RRR SMHRIRER, aweaRGbgT, M barear eaqandid i=n
feeearenr gHoNa fofore 9Te 9 Sid Wfieae Sdia ARG acdTay,
<Y RTEC.

STat-fag@ Ml BeTe Udhl dolex AlR=a1d <F IFelell &l
MMBR (VAT ISR Wl T 0! el -

AFC x 0.5 x NDM / NDY x (PAFM / NAPAF) (in Rupees)

S

AFC = Geferd auieRdr faffase sruarda seiar affe fRR @,
JUITHE

NAPAF=  JHIUTHTIAR I I3 IUALT T, ThpaRIAL]

NDM = et feawr) g
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NDY = quideT foaan dxan

PAFM = g Afg=ad 91T Polell §IF  SUAA]  TCH,
TFhARITEY
PAFM AT GRITUMT ETeliel GATHATI HRUGTT Tl
N
PAFM =100 x = DC;/ {NxICx(1-AUX)} %
i=1
Y
AUX = THIUTHTIAR FERABR] Holl aTiR, TRhARHE]
DC =  gRRudd i fSagrefRar kg wHEId wH diF

MRS qRY Wbl 3R (VeRT-a%1 HaTde Hefled)
YT &Hadr, St 98RTE I 9R N0 ha dl
feaq FucaT=ia] THTOTd hell 3.

Aqul AR et (Ferde Aeie) i e
AfE=Tde TSt dwn

IC

N

T ATHIRBTHGA, TRIVMET HRUATT Teled] Holl ATHRTAT &R,
ThT Poter AN ATYERGI UdRI-gd ddlaR gRAST PRGN
AT THUT HorAS], Hofl MMBR T A, Uehl ARG
AR SuTern SO SR UPUT Sl 3MBR TTATATHIO! e

Energy Charges in Rs = (Energy Charge Rate in Rs. / kWh) x {Scheduled Energy
(ex-bus)} for the month in kWh

So-fagld Rl demadid, Tea-a9 d@aR Sl MMGRIET &%
(HIRIR) vl ghe dugiwed O S WRUAd @rettel GATJHR
fega sxuad Jgar-

ECR = AFCx0.5 /{DEx(1-AUX)}

S,

pE= STo-faEfa MR FereiRar gieqsr fiftfee sxoama smerel
afes fEsmeT Soll, St Wrelid =™ ga.0 =1 = g
3.
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ThT auieRTEl Sia-fagd T barl fawara Ffa e,
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g9) P AW R, FHAT dUdlbgT IS BRUA  IATele]
Tferehar 3Mmach (JferT) TwaraR @Il Tl HRIATE! HRUATT Jsd -

() arffier R Waifea U Caadiedl Jalid ol STHRMde
C el 9HN S axjel dRuATdl IR SuaTd Jgd.

W 3 Bl STa-faga M barel goge dior i
fESITST Holue STAfde™ gchres (Bagiaro] bhaer) ¢ Iy
fESITST SHoid YR PRUITAS! HefAd STAfder Alfedias

(GF) oI a¥ 2096-99 T MMfId 9§ 09%-0 TAT=T I
FrAadier=ae Ipa fSemEa Soe (veri-s9)  fawrama
FEiRT SO (TRI-99) B IS Holl ATHRME SlTetel!
DIURE! e, Sff MR derer Mo s[d afor S
e =0T Brefaddl SR ayfel BRUATT ATelell T, AT
faf =T @e (Uh) TR a9d HRUI dsdl.

fafe ya.g A= GRIVET dolell, Soi-faga MR daien ol
TR &R (SHIR), "l e Tegg Yeriven SR 1A, 30T
UHT Iuidiel T8 fIhl-aIv oIl { DE x (1 — AUX ) } kWh, U&TT SRl
A TR, aRIel Y&l SR AT Hoidrs! qgdbla Weh Ui e
THI 99 (9%0) T SHofl MHR ATGvaTd Jsd;

THTHUAS T MeR& RN faRfafma o4, Sude = aifvd
FRIGITAT Fd FHored] TAH ARMAS!, So-faga MR Fsfen
IBTIAGRN 3H WTU I3, SAMT AV FG FATHERGIAT HROATT
3ol fagld daiial T Hefed areqi=ar YA BRuaTd Age.

TRE WG wid-faga iR &=

e g WBRS STai-fdgd baTdre! qdd TIR BRUATE! Jead!
TN AR AT faeledr 41 Nl PRRIAR ¥el 301

7 RAFREER 794,
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9 UM, 030 FaR AMISIS AR BB go BRI TS
RIS STd-fagd barea R Tl aRevET qiffe dw@ER a1
fafragiaa fafRfés v sreredr ey SR BRI Asd,
30T AT &HT SMDHR WU ARD d<alar ggell HRUATd Ugdl.
AR DI &N JATBR < IMBTeA;

R ™ ®I, M e dfgedn \dmr arvicued dwarEaR
BHGTST GO el i Mfor M baren arofoye dwerer
BEGIST go  STArEl [ A1 BIoAEel SRR <F  &Hdl
MR fHfeediarome yareEmEe!, M bs qul SrogrErdt
STl Gl JMTE] felldbelad fareireal YR diiie RR wd
HIGUATT A
TS IR - AT el YT delvek AR=IRIS! oF
3Tl &N JATHR YSTTHT AT
(AFC x NDM / NDY) (3UI™ed), SR YT Afegmdiel qogel disl e

g A Fgm <7 afR=uEel arReredT TR Soiuel] SR fohdn
9y TIFRITSAD! I, ITOT

{(AFC x NDM / NDY) x (T AfR™e] Hdied AN dRA SR
gy A / @ Afesn xwm A de™ aroRetedr af|i
ol 9y Tob) (JUAHE)}, SR YdT Afegmdie goer drer e
g A dem @ At aTuRelen iR St vy TaRIveT
HHI 3.

Sy,

AFC = & quigrel fafafee oxuarg smoien afte RR @4,
BYITHEY -

NDM = T Aig=aigeiier feawi= A

NDY = T auiHefiel faaardt e,

N 3T B, T auieRHId gege I S7for e arqRetel!
el TG Soll AT JMUR Iu=dT SRINIT FHITST BRI Jsol;

YRGBT SIS HolUen S YRAST HRIGIred] UGl R

oI RTAT ST ATdosiax el SNINEBISG ST UTdSIaNTel STATSATHEY
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T goft EEvIST TR $Hotedl 9y THh Hore!, TdH

ATHIRBTHGT Tad UleR e dearear Ui e 0 0 a1 SR
C AN ~ AN C

ol BRI AR ThTd aRM (Tl TRM), ol ATHR 3T IMEdlel.

At dusien vaTr Afe=arardt U el Sl MHR WA ITHTo!
AT -

= 0.20 x {Energy generated (ex-bus) for the month in kWh — (Design Energy for the
month (DE,,) + 75% of the energy utilized in pumping the water from the lower

elevation reservoir to the higher elevation reservoir for the month)},

o1,
DE, = STol-Tagld Rt dharanRar @ Afg=arare! faffase sruara
3fTetell gFeHdier fesmeT ol

R I B, Yl Aeamey TR delel o, |1 A=

fESIST SHOIRMAR W=l Uiddla’lel STAed $9  rdesiasiat
STATRIIMEY g0l WIS T AT aliReled] S0l 94 Tdb
SHoTUET HHl 0T ST, ATHIRGIHST I R Holl IATHR
Y 3.

AT S, =T UrdSeNd ST Alseldl ANfite  arof
AMMUT T Ydodldslel  STARIATEl  UTogrdl  Urdasl  SfToT  ETetedn
dfg dYa.

o el uvgrenr Nfffe yaE™E SUGE oreicdl uTva™
AT ANV IR SR ST YRAST BRUATAT JATaIdhd] T8l ;

U 31 BI, I BU, HIOTATE! 98 HROMRIEN B-JRER
fhar o=, wWdaled ARUT  TNolcdl  HIA@UER™IE  Eletl
qIddiadlel SISl UTofl aR=aT UTdaiaNiel  STerITaed  gagT=
Gad A9 fhar I emdsdd! It [ wkid T fhar
qrogrel A9fiie UdlE 9T "Oiedd  JTedTd f¥eg Sel R, T
e &FdT SMHR ATEIRSBIHGT ad [BUIR T8l

R SV 3 Bl AT A, ST e Hedren
GORINSI/QEHTANTS]  Ea/ba Thl duid 9y cqrdiudd  dg
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fhar uvaren A9fTe  uaErl $ofl auwd, 9o A T
HIUGATSID I8 HROT AT FASTUITT J8l;

U 3T DI, UpT quId UPUT Tt §g (ATICH) 9y SFRATUET
ST SITedT™ qUART a¥fel dholel THUT &He] DR Wetlel Jeadie
TATTATO TITAR. FATIISTT HRUAT Il o

(ACC)y = (ACC) g x (1- ATO)/85
S,

(ACC)aq = THATIINTT delel AT &THdT MHR

(ACC) x = A Delel dlbeh &l JATHR

ATO = R 3T I SMTHCHEE T auiciiel UHUT JATHC ool
W@;

DIl T YRATT A9 (SJfeT) Yeaireal aciiar fSadraar |d brol-

TGSl S-38S  dodlay gl Il SUTEd] SRS "I
HIUITY I e,

MY &mar Rt o9 erafqol

THEHUCTSI] Siegl e ddle Al faga MR dusten e
AR Serht ST emar Rieg o7 SrEardt arrd.

R R budl aita emar e Be wdhell A, R MR
ST T AAcIel dlfed RR ATBR, T8 WU HH HRUIN Idldl,

o= IS BITdl/AICTHRAT Ufdedl gdhiedl  eylhiRdl
quidicl Jaial gebredr Tvonardt & &1 HIfifad ofid ared el

foga Rl Fefen wmEr Aigad! (AFES) THUETASRN @
B-INTC!] SUde ITerel MM AT AlGae\ed I Hraad-ral d

ATl Alg 3JuITd Ao,
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b TIR HRUI AT RN WO

3T faga M beieRar aifie RR MeR, ol AHR, Fu7
AR TSI M1 MeATe=I-31fIeT afe) <ae T STer-faege
ffel hefeRar emar smer AT Sofl ATbR AT <d 9 i
YROT HIRTh TedTd) BRI Jso.

dPhldd 3ThRR

A FHora uer Th sid:egur onftr fFRfSTa <k oo
THIad, MO ATHIIRGT el -<h drol Waoft anfor fFrfora -=<h
dreT Gguildiiel dwad, e Faid ThEadiJaRr Sdeudd Isd
30T 31 IHIFdATS=Al JATbRE FaaT qerTe e e
AN (hTaciear fEenageiel drRiugdr T Hefed aret) fafrm,

R09% JHIX hRUYTd qscc'i.

W I B, HWeRNE fAE@ M manT  (dwracdidl
fEremagciie wrivgd enfer wefda amlt) fafem, 209 =1 fafem §
JAR AT Ui 37aT defel fhal 7T delel qHIAd DR b
TeRTg faga e smanT (Awmacdian fReeyd erivgd e
Hafrd gl faffRE, 09) =1 A 0 AR M Soie s
dhotel fhan SIfTd dhelel ARTR AHIET MHR dIST SRTT HATH

AR BIDh G Tl /AN BHRAT VR TS

W ATURET 3 B, HERTE fAg[d e AN (qwracdie
fEenayeii=l drRivgd AT Heferd arel) fafem, 209) = fafraH <
TIR  fIoRU WRAMTERSHT QT belel fhar AT belel ThIEd
JMBR ISl ST HATEHAR ATHIRGBIbG  dgel/AHTINNT Bl
It .

Ng el B, WeRTg fdgd M SN (Awradiedn
fEenaycii=l SrRiug:d T Fefe arel) fafraH, 209% =1 faff =™ qo
TAR IRV GRAFERSBAl QT betel fhar AT delel S1iaRsh
BT 3R ISl SRTe] HIEGHIT IR GG agel/FHIINNSTT
HRAT IR AR,
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YRYUT O STANTHITERIGR. BRIYTT ATl Sl ol GRYT HRR
T aRTHRAT &) fTad HRoardt a1 vrma |HIfase 3Tl
[EISEERSINEIENISE

R SMUREl 3 HI, A URYY WRAMERGM SRR
DAl XA fqed™ F=0Eed a9 qRYUT FHUE WX Hidell R,
JATART, R0 Hreradididl IART auinRdl il BR-fead, srem
URYUT  RAMIERSGM  FR—FAT SreEdidiel SaRd auidrel Ul
HqEgell RS HPed SIS gl dhelell ATfDI fTaRIT o,
PRI,

=T derd 3¢ (9) =T WRdbiaid, ALl swi%ﬁm) IRYU]
GfaeT arRuIRATS! trﬁw RAMIEIRGT SREA  heoledl  ATrerdhel
IS, &%, 3R, 371 Moy eredt faffese e ar 9rmd sfayd
3T ISl T I 3N AN dgdl.

NS == 9T

YRYUT RAFIYRGTAT ITSATdId URYUT AF0HET YIS g =0Tl
IR HRUIAISIAT URYT BRI Eleilcidd! DIl WRTl
e e FARTET (SIFRHEE) FHEe 3 id.

(T) YRYUT IO U9 AR ;

(&) aIf¥e TRV AMHR;

(1) IR BeledT Hordre! Ui I AThR;

(3N Reffeee ol MR,

ST IRYUT 0] Ua9T Hesfauamrardt orsl wrudreh<ar gra
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maTreT fAfraeigaR s/ e fefquarer gab ITeidl SMiT AT
fafraaid o udwr fesfavarardt fafafase wRvaa simerear meRil
YROTT HRUYTT 1 SIEGR T8ldl.

W0 - a7 A= pEioEE, S e RN qh
JARMRATST T3 S[ACATS UIRYUT & Bahidd dIcy HRUATATS] 375
Fel AR T T T FHBATAASt T FRvATS W Fed AR,
R FHY YT Y& 'TTGPH URYU AFUN  IUIARTRAT  FEUH
AT EFHHE] d1¢ HRUITATS! 375 dhell MM MM o™ qRy

Sleg] 3@ YRYU] IV SYANThATI] ISgiciia IRy 0w
TS AU STAeied] IRV arfg=ar fhdl $av YRYUT HTefH<l
SYRTITD HH BRI AT 3 dvy, JRYOT UNATATIR BT, 32T
STgDh YRYUT G0 SURNDHIN Jd3 SUIMATST dbeled] Fd HrHiay

SITelell aroTdl @, YRV AN Jae JATHRIGT Il HRUATA Tab

RTETe.

IR At g fafd yu.3 @rell T AR el 3 B BRUl
JAMEALIH A AR URYU WRAMYRE M1 BHEGR ATl T,
faff Y990 AR, FRIFAV Bremadikiid gde guid dii¥e gRyo|

JTHRIGT el BYIel.

SR gde  HfuarrdEl BIvREl B 3Tge RN G0N
SUANTH el Il TR, YRYU GRAHIERSTH 37eA B Do
YUATATS! AT BIFTRIGNS @Al 94% S JAderu] 3MHR
I RO BID MRl SAIOT ST PG YRYT
REATTYRGBIT 3= DIVTE! T agel BRI ah IRIUR T8l

N 3 DI, A YISl JATHR HeEd URYU RATERSBI]
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RAMIIRS AT IRYUT IO STIRTHAT AT Sl diol GRYT
PRRTA] BIATGLT, TRYVT RAFTIRBIDHGT BRUAT Ugel.

TSI URYUT A0 TANITS! dholed] BTG  Gardl
IFPH SR YRYUT AT ITARTHI MGT hell a¥ Slb diol IRy
PRIRTAT AR IRYIT JF STATGATA] A Fd - hoted]
3TN HTHAT BART IOl TR Bab I[eIdl;

NG I DI, URYU WRAMYRGIA] oG YRYT 0
Uae BT FUME SR GRYU G0N IUIRTRT B bell A
IR Sl ISl URYUT HRRTAT FHGIOR 37efl B Wa:dhs S
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(T) gder Hesfquaredr d&I IR IFT SYIARTGHAA UHMd dol
YhH ST Do, fbar
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(=) Tt (T) ST (&) = PO FART (iR,
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2 800 Quad Bersimis £29
3 $0o Twin Moose yay
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4 $00 Quad Zebra €59
g Qoo Quad AAAC &6
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aRRre - g
IRYU YT Ydd ARl STae=l aRIvEadt 93

0 0
AV, (Availability of 0 no. of AC lines) =2 Wi(Ti -Tyai) > Wi
=1 Ti i=1
s s
AVs(Availability of s no. of HVDC pole) =2 Wi(Tj -TNA]) > Wj
=1 Tj j=1
q q
AV, (Availability of g no. of ICTs) =2 Wk(Tk - Tnak) >Wk
K=1 k=1
r r
AV, (Availability of r no. of SVCs) =|> 0.5Wyl (Ty/-Tyail) +2 0.5 Wcl(Tcl = ach)
=1 T =1 Tcl
r r
205w/ + X 05Wcl
=1 =1
p p
AVp(Availability of p no. of Switched = Y Wm(Tm-Tyam) > Wm
Bus reactors) m=1 Tm m=1
t t
AVt (Availability of t no. of HVDC = Y Wn(Tn-Tyan) > Wn
Back-to-back Blocks) n=1 Tn n=1
Where Wi = Weightage factor for i transmission line
Wj = Weightage factor for j™ HVDC pole
Wk = Weightage factor for k" ICT
Wil&W ] = Weightage factors for inductive & capacitive operation
of 1" SVC
Wm = Weightage factor for m™ bus reactor
Wn = Weightage factor for n™ HVDC back to back block.
Ti, Tj, Tk, T, Tcl, = The total hours of i AC line,j" HVDC pole, k" ICT, 1" SVC
Tm&Tn (Inductive Operation), 1™ SVC (Capacitive Operation),m™ Switched Bus

Reactor &n™ HVDC back-to-back block during the period under
consideration (excluding time period for outages not attributable to

Transmission Licensee for reasons given in Para 6 of the procedure)
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Tyal s Tnaj s Tnak = The non-availability hours (excluding the time period for Tyai/, Tnac/,
Tnam, outages not attributable to transmission Licensee taken as Tna#,
deemed availability as per Para 5 of the procedure) for i AC
line, , j"HVDC pole, X" ICT, I" SVC (Inductive Operation), 1"
SVC (Capacitive Operation), m™ Switched Bus Reactor and
n HVDC back-to-back block.
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MAHARASHTRA ELECTRICITY REGULATORY COMMISSION
(MULTI YEAR TARIFF) REGULATIONS, 2019

ELECTRICITY ACT, 2003.

No. MERC/Tech/Regulation/2019/471.- In exercise of the powers conferred by clause (h), (i),
G), (D), (m), (0), (y), (zd), (ze), (zf), (zg), (zh) and (zp) of sub-section (2) of Section 181 read
with the proviso to sub-section (1) of Section 36, sub-clause (ii) of clause (d) of sub-section (2)

of Section 39, second proviso to sub-clause (ii) of clause (d) of sub-section (2) of Section 39,

sub-clause (ii) of clause (c) of Section 40, second proviso to sub-clause (ii) of clause (c) of

Section 40, first proviso to Section 41, first proviso to Section 51, Section 61, sub-sections (2)
and (5) of Section 62, sub-sections (1) and (3) of Section 64, Section 65 and clause (b) of sub-
section (1) of Section 86 of the Electricity Act, 2003 (36 of 2003) and all other powers enabling
it in that behalf, the Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission hereby makes the

following Regulations. These Regulations supersede the Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory
Commission (Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2015.

1.1

1.2
1.3

1.4

Short title, extent, applicability and commencement

These Regulations may be called the Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission
(Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2019.

These Regulations shall extend to the whole of the State of Maharashtra.

These Regulations shall be applicable to existing and future Generation Companies,
Transmission Licensees, Distribution Licensees, Maharashtra State Load Despatch
Centre (MSLDC), and their successors for determination of Aggregate Revenue
Requirement, Tariff, and Fees and Charges of MSLDC in all matters covered under these
Regulations from April 1, 2020 up to March 31, 2025.

These Regulations shall come into force from the date of their publication in the Official
Gazette:

Provided that for all purposes, including review matters pertaining to the period till
March 31, 2020, the issues relating to determination of Aggregate Revenue Requirement
and Tariff shall be governed by the provisions of the Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory
Commission (Terms and Conditions of Tariff) Regulations, 2005 or Maharashtra
Electricity Regulatory Commission (Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2011, or
Mabharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2015,
including amendments thereto, as may be applicable.
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Definitions

In these Regulations, unless the context otherwise requires:

(1) “Accounting Statement” means for each Year, the following statements, namely-

(1)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

balance sheet, prepared in accordance with the format prescribed by the
Commission from time to time, with reference to each licensed or regulated
business separately, duly certified by the statutory auditors;

profit and loss account, prepared in accordance with the format prescribed by
the Commission from time to time, with reference to each licensed or regulated
business separately, duly certified by the statutory auditors;

cash flow statement, prepared in accordance with the format prescribed by the
Commission from time to time, with reference to each licensed or regulated
business separately, duly certified by the statutory auditors;

balance sheet, prepared in accordance with the form contained in the Companies
Act, 1956 or Companies Act, 2013, as applicable;

profit and loss account, complying with the requirements contained in the
Companies Act, 1956 or Companies Act, 2013, as applicable;

cash flow statement, prepared in accordance with the applicable Accounting
Standards of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India;

report of the statutory auditors;

reconciliation statement, duly certified by the statutory auditors, showing the
reconciliation between the total expenses, revenue, assets and liabilities, of the
entity as a Company and the expenses, revenue, assets and liabilities, separately
for each business regulated by the Commission and unregulated business
operations;

cost records prescribed by the Central Government under the Companies Act,
1956 or Companies Act, 2013, as applicable;

together with notes thereto, and such other supporting statements and information as

the Commission may direct:

Provided that separate Accounting Statements shall be prepared and submitted to the

Commission for each licensed Business in accordance with the Licence conditions, and

for each regulated Business:

Provided further that, in case separate Accounting Statements are not submitted for

each licensed Business in accordance with the Licence conditions and for each

R
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(@)

3)

“

regulated Business for the Financial Year (FY) 2020-21 onwards, the Petitions filed
by the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC, may be rejected by the
Commission after giving the Petitioner a reasonable opportunity of being heard:

Provided also that the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC shall submit the
Statutory Auditor's comments, observations and notes to Accounts, along with the
Accounting Statements, and a summary of the key issues highlighted by the Statutory
Auditor and the steps taken to address them:

Provided also that, in respect of a Local Authority engaged in the business of
distribution of electricity, the Accounting Statement shall mean the items mentioned
above as prepared and maintained in accordance with the relevant statutes applicable
to such Local Authority:

Provided also that till the MSLDC remains a part of it, separate books of accounts for
MSLDC shall be maintained by the Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission
Company Limited and shall be audited and certified by the statutory auditor;

“Act” means the Electricity Act, 2003 (36 of 2003), as amended from time to time;

“Aggregate Revenue Requirement” means the revenue requirement comprising
allowable expenses and return on capital pertaining to the Generating Company,
Transmission Licensee or Distribution Licensee or MSLDC, to be recovered through
Tariff or Fees and Charges in accordance with these Regulations;

“Allocation Statement” means, for each Year, a statement in respect of each of the
Other Businesses of the Generating Company or Transmission Licensee or
Distribution Licensee undertaken for optimum utilisation of its assets, showing the
amounts of any revenue, cost, asset, liability, reserve or provision, etc., which has been
charged from or to each such Other Business together with a description of the basis
of that charge; or determined by apportionment or allocation between different
Businesses of the Generating Company or Licensee, together with a description of the
basis of the apportionment or allocation:

Provided that, for the purposes of these Regulations, the licensed Business of a
Distribution Licensee for its area of supply would be bifurcated into Distribution Wires
Business and Retail Supply Business:
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®)

(6)

0

®)

Provided further that such allocation statement in respect of a Generating Station
owned and/or maintained and/or operated by a Distribution Licensee shall be prepared
such as to enable Tariff determination, stage-wise, Unit-wise and/or for the entire
Generating Station;

“Allotted Capacity” shall have the same meaning as in the Regulations of the
Commission governing Transmission Open Access or Distribution Open Access, as
may be applicable;

“Auditor” means an auditor appointed by the Generating Company or Licensee or
MSLDC qualified for such appointment in accordance with the relevant provisions of
the Companies Act;

“Auxiliary Energy Consumption” in relation to a period, in case of a generating
Station or Unit, means the quantum of energy consumed by its auxiliary equipment,
such as equipment used for operating plant and machinery, including switchyard of the
generating Station and the transformer losses within the generating Station, and shall
be expressed as a percentage of the sum of gross energy generated at the generator
terminals of all the Units of the Generating Station:

Provided that it shall not include energy consumed for supply of power by the
generating Station to its housing colony and other facilities, and for construction works
at the generating Station;

(a) “Availability” in relation to a thermal Generating Station/Unit for any period
means the average of the daily average declared capacities as certified by MSLDC for
all the days during that period, expressed as a percentage of the installed capacity of
the Generating Station/Unit minus the normative auxiliary consumption in Megawatts
(MW), as specified in these Regulations, and shall be computed in accordance with the
following formula:

N
Availability = 100 x > DC; / {NxICx(1-AUXy))} %
i=1
where - N = number of time blocks in the given period
DC = Average Declared Capacity in MW for the i time block in
such period
IC = Installed Capacity of the Generating Station/Unit in MW
AUX = Normative Auxiliary Consumption in MW, expressed as a
percentage of gross generation:

NRR
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Provided that Availability of a thermal Generating Station/Unit for any period shall not

exceed hundred per cent;

(b) “Availability” in relation to a transmission system for a given period means the
time in hours during that period for which the transmission system is capable of
transmitting electricity at its rated voltage, expressed in percentage of total hours in the
given period, and shall be computed as provided in Annexure-II to these Regulations:

Provided that Availability of a transmission system for any period shall not exceed

hundred per cent;

“Balancing and Settlement Code” means such Code as may be stipulated by the
Commission, or by the MSLDC with the approval of the Commission, for the
balancing of energy accounts and settlement of differences among the users of the grid
in the State of Maharashtra;

(10)“Bank Rate” shall mean the Bank Rate as declared by the Reserve Bank of India from

time to time;

(11)“Base Rate” shall mean the one-year Marginal Cost of Funds-based Lending Rate

(‘MCLR’) as declared by the State Bank of India from time to time;

(12) “Beneficiary” shall mean

a. inrelation to a Generating Station, the purchaser of electricity generated at such
Station whose Tariff is determined under these Regulations;

b. inrelation to a Transmission Licensee, the Transmission System Users;
in relation to the Distribution Wires Business, the Generating Companies
connected to the distribution system and consumers;

d. in relation to the Retail Supply Business, the consumers;
in relation to the MSLDC, the Distribution Licensees and Open Access
consumers who utilise the Intra-State Transmission system for transmission of
electricity and / or utilise the distribution system of a Licensee in the State for
wheeling of electricity and / or avail the services of the MSLDC relating to
scheduling and real-time grid operations, State energy accounting, operation of
pool account, etc.:
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(13)“Block” in relation to a combined cycle thermal Generating Station includes
combustion turbine — generators, associated waste heat recovery boilers, connected
steam turbine — generators and auxiliaries;

(14)“Bulk Power Transmission Agreement” means an executed Agreement that contains
the terms and conditions under which a Transmission System User is entitled to access
to an intra-State transmission system of a Transmission Licensee;

(15)"Change in Law" means occurrence of any of the following events:

a. enactment, bringing into effect or promulgation of any new Indian law; or

b. adoption, amendment, modification, repeal or re-enactment of any existing
Indian law; or

c. change in interpretation or application of any Indian law by a competent court,
Tribunal or Indian Governmental Instrumentality, which is the final authority
under law for such interpretation or application; or

d. change of any condition or covenant by any competent statutory authority in
relation to any consent or clearances or approval or Licence available or obtained
for the Project; or

e. any change in taxes or duties, or introduction of any taxes or duties levied by the
Central or any State Government.

(16)"Charges" means payments to be collected by the Generating Company or Licensee
or MSLDC for the services rendered by it;

(17)“Coincident Peak Demand” means the demand as measured at G-T interface for the

Distribution Licensee occurring at the time of system peak demand for the State;
(18)“Commission” means the Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission;

(19)“Competitive Bidding” means a transparent process for procurement of power,
equipment, services and works in which bids are invited by the procurer by open
advertisement covering the scope and specifications of the power requirement,
equipment, services and works required, and the terms and conditions of the proposed
contract as well as the criteria by which bids shall be evaluated, and shall include
domestic competitive bidding and international competitive bidding;

(20)“Conduct of Business Regulations” means the Regulations of the Commission

governing its Conduct of Business;

Ro%
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(21)“Contracted Capacity” means the capacity in MW contracted by a long-term

Transmission System User as part of its long-term power procurement plan through a

power purchase agreement or arrangement, and shall be equivalent to the deemed

Transmission Capacity Right of a Transmission System User as specified under the

Regulations of the Commission governing Transmission Open Access;

(22)“Control Period” means the period comprising five Years from April 1, 2020 to

March 31, 2025, and as may be extended by the Commission;

(23) “Cut-off Date” means the last day of the calendar month after thirty-six months from

the date of commercial operation of the project;

(24)“Day” means the 24-hour period starting at 0000 hour;

(25)“Date of Commercial Operation” or "COD" means -

a.

in case of a generating Unit or block of a thermal generating Station, the date
declared by the Generating Company after demonstrating the maximum
continuous rating (MCR) or the installed capacity (IC) through a successful
trial run after notice to the Beneficiaries, if any; and, in case of the generating
Station as a whole, the date of commercial operation of the last generating Unit
or block of the generating Station:

Provided that, where arrangements have been entered into with Beneficiaries
for purchasing power from the generating Station, the trial run shall commence
after seven days’ notice by the Generating Company to the Beneficiaries, and
scheduling shall commence from 0000 hour after completion of the trial run;

Provided further that the Generating Company shall certify that the generating
Station meets the technical standards specified by the Central Electricity
Authority and the State Grid Code;

in case of a generating Unit of a hydel generating Station, including pumped
storage hydel generating Station, the date declared by the Generating
Company from 0000 hour, and in relation to the generating Station as a whole,
the date declared by the Generating Company after demonstrating peaking
capability corresponding to the installed capacity of the generating Station
through a successful trial run:
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Provided that, where arrangements have been entered into with Beneficiaries
for purchasing power from a generating Station, the scheduling process for a
Unit of the generating Station or demonstration of peaking capability
corresponding to installed capacity of the generating Station through a
successful trial run shall commence after seven days’ notice by the Generating
Company to the Beneficiaries and scheduling shall commence from 0000 hour
after completion of the trial run;

Provided further that the Generating Company shall certify that the generating
Station meets the technical standards specified by the Central Electricity
Authority and the State Grid Code;

Provided also that, in case a hydel generating Station with pondage or storage
is not able to demonstrate peaking capability corresponding to the installed
capacity for the reason of insufficient reservoir or pond level, the date of
commercial operation of the last Unit of the generating Station shall be
considered as the date of commercial operation of the generating Station as a
whole, and it will be mandatory for such hydel generating Station to
demonstrate peaking capability equivalent to installed capacity of the
generating Unit or the generating Station as and when such reservoir or pond
level is achieved:

Provided also that, if a run-of-river hydel generating Station or a generating
Unit thereof is declared under commercial operation during lean inflows
period when the water inflow is insufficient for such demonstration of peaking
capability, such hydel generating Station or generating Unit shall demonstrate
peaking capability equivalent to installed capacity as and when sufficient
water inflow is available;

in case of a transmission system, the date declared by the Transmission
Licensee from 0000 hour of which an element of the transmission system is in
regular service after successful trial operation for transmitting electricity and

communication signal:

Provided that, in case a transmission system or an element thereof is prevented
from regular service for reasons not attributable to the Transmission Licensee
or its suppliers or contractors but on account of the delay in commissioning of
the concerned generating Station or the upstream or downstream transmission

system or distribution system, the Transmission Licensee may seek approval
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of the Commission of the date of commercial operation of such transmission

system or an element thereof:

Provided further that, in case of an existing Transmission Licensee, such
request may be included as part of its Multi Year Tariff (MYT) Petition or
Mid-Term Review Petition or True-up Petition to be filed under these

Regulations;

(26) "De-capitalisation" means the reduction in Gross Fixed Assets corresponding to the

removal of assets as approved by the Commission;

(27)“Declared Capacity” means, in relation to a generating Station, the capability to
deliver ex-bus electricity in MW declared by such generating Station in respect of any
time-block of the day as defined in the State Grid Code or whole of the day, taking into
account the availability of fuel and/or water, and subject to further qualification in the

relevant Regulation;

(28)"Deemed Distribution Licensee" means a person deemed to be a Distribution

Licensee under Section 14 of the Act;

(29)“Design Energy” in relation to a hydel power Generating Station means the quantum
of energy, which could be generated in a 90 per cent dependable year with 95 per cent
installed capacity of the Generating Station;

(30)“Distribution Business” means the Business of operating and maintaining a
distribution system for supplying electricity in the area of supply of a Distribution

Licensee;

(31)"Distribution Licensee" means a Licensee authorised to operate and maintain a

distribution system for supplying electricity to consumers in its area of supply;

(32) “Distribution Wires Business” means the Business of operating and maintaining a
distribution system for wheeling of electricity in the area of supply of a Distribution

Licensee;

(33) “Detailed Project Report Scheme” (or "DPR Scheme") means a capital expenditure
Scheme with projected capital cost exceeding the limits specified in these Regulations,
for which the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC is required to obtain prior

in-principle approval by submitting a Detailed Project Report (DPR) in accordance
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with the Guidelines of the Commission for In-Principle Clearance of proposed
Investment Schemes.

(34)“Extra High Tension” (or “EHT”) means all voltages above 33 kiloVolt;

(35)“Expected Revenue from Tariff and Charges” means the revenue estimated to
accrue to the Generating Company or Transmission Licensee or Distribution Licensee
from the Regulated Business at the prevailing level of Tariff and Charges;

(36) “Existing Generating Unit/Station” means a Generating Unit or Station declared as
under commercial operation prior to April 1, 2020;

(37)“Event” means an unscheduled or unplanned occurrence in the intra-State
transmission system, including faults, incidents and breakdowns;

(38)"Extended Life" means the life of a generating Station or Unit thereof or of a
transmission system or element thereof beyond the period of Useful Life, as may be
approved by the Commission on a case to case basis;

(39)“Fees” means the payments to be collected by the MSLDC for services rendered on
account of registration, membership or any other account as determined by the
Commission;

(40)“Force Majeure Event” means, with respect to any party, any event or circumstance,
or combination of events or circumstances, which is not within the reasonable control
of, and is not due to an act of omission or commission of that party and which, by the
exercise of reasonable care and diligence, could not have been prevented; and, without
limiting the generality of the foregoing, shall include the following events or
circumstances:

a. acts of God, including but not limited to lightning, storm, action of the
elements, earthquakes, flood, torrential rains, drought and natural disaster;

b. strikes and industrial disturbances having a State-wide or extensive impact in
the area of supply of a Licensee, but excluding strikes and industrial
disturbances in the Licensee's own organisation;

c. acts of war, invasion, armed conflict or act of foreign enemy, insurrections,
riots, revolution, terrorist or military action;

d. unavoidable accident, including but not limited to fire, explosion, radioactive

contamination and toxic chemical contamination;
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e. any shutdown or interruption of the grid, which is required or directed by the
concerned Load Despatch Centre;

(41) “Generation Business” means the Business of production of electricity from a
Generating Station for the purpose of (i) giving supply to any premises or enabling
supply to be so given, or (ii) for the purpose of supply of electricity to any Distribution
Licensee in accordance with the Act and the rules and regulations made thereunder, or
(iii) subject to the Regulations made under sub-section (2) of Section 42 of the Act,
supply of electricity to any consumer;

(42) "Generating Company" means any company or body corporate or association or
body of individuals, whether incorporated or not, or artificial juridical person, which
owns or operates or maintains a generating Station;

(43) "Generating Station" (or ""Station'') means a Station or a Unit thereof for generating
electricity, including any building and plant with step-up transformer, switch-gear,
switch yard, cables or other appurtenant equipment used for that purpose and the site
thereof; a site intended to be used for a generating Station, and any building used for
housing the operating staff of a generating Station, and where electricity is generated
by water-power, includes penstocks, head and tail works, main and regulating
reservoirs, dams and other hydraulic works, but does not include any sub-Station;

(44)“Gross Calorific Value” (or "GCV") in relation to a thermal Generating Station
means the heat produced in kilocalories (kcal) by complete combustion of one
kilogram (kg) of solid fuel or one litre of liquid fuel or one standard cubic metre of
gaseous fuel, as the case may be;

(45)“Gross Station Heat Rate” means the heat energy input in kcal required to generate
one kilo Watt hour (kWh) of electrical energy at generator terminals;

(46)“High Tension” (or “HT”) means all voltages above and including 650 Volt and up
to and including 33 kiloVolt;

(47)"Indian Governmental Instrumentality” means the Government of India, State
Government and any Ministry or Department or Board or Agency controlled by
Government of India or the Government of the State where the Project is located or
regulatory or quasi-judicial authority constituted under the relevant statutes in India;
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(48)"Infirm power" means electricity injected into the grid prior to the commercial
operation of a Unit or Block of the Generating Station;

(49)“Installed Capacity” means the summation of the name plate capacities of all the
Units of the Generating Station or the capacity of the Generating Station (reckoned at
the generator terminals);

(50) “Intra-State Transmission System" (or "InSTS”) means any system for conveyance
of electricity by transmission lines within the area of the State of Maharashtra, and
includes all transmission lines, sub-stations and associated equipment of Transmission
Licensees in the State:

Provided that the definition of point of separation between a transmission system and
distribution system and between a Generating Station and transmission system shall be
guided by the Regulations notified by the Central Electricity Authority under clause
(b) of Section 73 of the Act;

(51) "Licensee" for the purpose of these Regulations shall mean a Transmission Licensee
or Distribution Licensee, as the case may be, duly authorised by the Commission;

(52)“Low Tension” (or “LT”) means all voltages below 650 Volt;

(53)“Market operation function” means the functions of scheduling, despatch, data
acquisition, energy accounting and deviation settlement, transmission loss calculation
and apportionment, operation of pool account and congestion charge account,
administering ancillary services, information dissemination and any other functions
assigned to the MSLDC by the Act or Regulations or Orders;

(54)“Maximum Continuous Rating” (or "MCR") in relation to a Unit of a thermal
Generating Station means the maximum continuous output at the generator terminals,
guaranteed by the manufacturer at rated parameters; and, in relation to a Block of a
combined cycle thermal Generating Station, means the maximum continuous output at
the generator terminals, guaranteed by the manufacturer with water or steam injection
(if applicable) and corrected to 50 Hz grid frequency and specified site conditions;

(55) “New Generating Unit/Station” means a Generating Unit or Station declared under
commercial operation on or after April 1, 2020;
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(56)“Ninety (90) % Dependable Year” shall mean the year in which the annual energy
generation has the probability of being equal to or in excess of 90% of the expected
period of operation of the Plant;

(57)“Non-Coincident Peak demand” means the peak demand as measured at G-T
interface for a Distribution Licensee during a period, which may or may not occur at
the time of system peak demand in the State as a whole;

(58)"Non-DPR Scheme" means a capital expenditure Scheme with projected capital cost
within the limits specified in these Regulations, for which the Generating Company or
Licensee or MSLDC is not required to obtain prior in-principle approval of the
Commission;

(59)“Non-Pithead generating station” means a generating station, which is not covered
under Pithead Generating Station;

(60) “Non-Tariff Income” means the income relating to the regulated Business other than
from Tariff, excluding any income from Other Business and, in case of the Retail
Supply Business of a Distribution Licensee, excluding income from receipts on
account of cross-subsidy surcharge and additional surcharge and Other Business;

(61)“Normative Annual Plant Availability Factor” (or “NAPAF”), in relation to a hydel
Generating Station, means the Availability Factor specified in Regulation 46 for hydel
Generating Stations;

(62) “Officer” means an officer of the Commission;

(63)“Operation and Maintenance expenses” (or “O&M expenses”) in respect of a
Generating Company means the expenditure incurred on operation and maintenance
of the Generating Station or Unit of a Generating Company, or part thereof, and
includes the expenditure on manpower, repairs, spares, consumables, insurance and
overheads, but excludes fuel expenses; and, in respect of a Licensee, means the
expenditure incurred on operation and maintenance by a Transmission Licensee or
Distribution Licensee, or part thereof, and includes the expenditure on manpower,
repairs, spares, consumables, insurance and overheads;
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(64)“Original Project Cost” means the capital expenditure incurred by a Generating
Company or Transmission Licensee within the original scope of the Project, up to the
cut-off date as admitted by the Commission;

(65) “Petitioner” means a Generating Company or Transmission Licensee or Distribution
Licensee or MSLDC, who has filed a Petition for determination of Tariff or Fees and
Charges or for True up or for Mid-term Review in accordance with the Act and these
Regulations, and includes a Generating Company or Transmission Licensee or
Distribution Licensee or MSLDC whose Tariff or Fees and Charges is the subject of a
review by the Commission on a suo-motu basis or as part of a Truing-up exercise or
Mid-term Review;

(66)“Pithead generating station” means a generating station having captive
transportation system for its exclusive use for transportation of coal from the loading
point at the mining end up to the unloading point at the generating station without using

the normal public transportation system;

(67) “Plant Availability Factor” (or “PAF”), in relation to a hydel Generating Station for
any period, means the average of the daily declared capacities (DCs) for all the days
as certified by the MSLDC during that period, expressed as a percentage of the
installed capacity in MW, reduced by the normative auxiliary energy consumption;

(68)“Plant Load Factor” (or “PLF”), in relation to a thermal Generating Station or Unit
for a given period, means the total sent-out energy corresponding to scheduled
generation during such period, expressed as a percentage of sent-out energy
corresponding to installed capacity in that period, and shall be computed in accordance
with the following formula:

N
Plant Load Factor (%) =100 x > SGi / {NxICx(1-AUX.)} %
i=1
where - N = number of time blocks in the given period

SG = Scheduled Generation in MW for the i time block in such

period

IC = Installed Capacity of the Generating Station in MW

AUX, = Normative Auxiliary Consumption in MW, expressed as a

percentage of gross generation;
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(69)"Pool Account”" means the accounts for payments relating to Unscheduled
Interchanges (‘UI Account’) applicable under the Inter-State Availability Based Tariff
(ABT) mechanism or Intra-State ABT Settlement Charges as identified under the Intra-
State ABT mechanism operating in the State, or Reactive Energy Exchanges (Reactive
Energy Account) or Deviation Settlement Mechanism under the Maharashtra
Electricity Regulatory Commission (Deviation Settlement Mechanism and Related
matters) Regulations, 2019 or any other such Accounts, which may be operated by the
MSLDC in accordance with the Regulations or directions of the Commission;

(70)“Project” means a Generating Station or the transmission system, as the case may be
and, in case of a hydel Generating Station, includes all components of the generating
facility such as penstocks, head and tail works, main and regulating reservoirs dams
and other hydraulic works, intake water conductor system, power Generating Station

and generating Units, as apportioned to power generation;

(71)"Prudence Check" means the scrutiny of reasonableness of expenditure incurred or
proposed to be incurred, financing plan, use of efficient technology, cost and time over-
run and such other factors as may be considered appropriate by the Commission for
determination of Aggregate Revenue Requirement and Tariff or Fees and Charges;

(72) "Pumped Storage Hydel Generating Station" means a hydel Station which generates
power through energy stored in the form of water energy, pumped from a lower

elevation reservoir to a higher elevation reservoir;

(73)“Rated Voltage” means the voltage at which the transmission system is designed to
operate or such lower voltage at which the line is charged, for the time being, in
consultation with Transmission System Users;

(74)“Revised Emission Standards” in respect of thermal generating station means the
revised norms notified as per Environment (Protection) Amendment Rules, 2015 or
any other Rules as may be notified from time to time;

(75) “Retail Supply Business” means the Business of sale of electricity by a Distribution
Licensee to its consumers in accordance with the terms of its Licence;

(76) “Run-of-river Generating Station” means a hydel Generating Station, which does

not have upstream pondage;
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(77) “Run-of-river Generating Station with pondage” means a hydel Generating Station
with sufficient pondage for meeting the diurnal variation of power demand;

(78)“Scheduled Energy” means the quantum of energy scheduled by the concerned Load
Despatch Centre to be injected into the grid by a generating station for a given time

period;

(79)“Scheduled Generation” or “SG” at any time or for any period or time block means
schedule of ex-bus generation in MW or MWh, given by the concerned Load Despatch
Centre;

Note:

For open cycle gas turbine generating station or a combined cycle generating station if
the average frequency for any time-block, is below 49.52 Hz but not below 49.02 Hz
and the scheduled generation is more than 98.5% of the declared capacity, the
scheduled generation shall be deemed to have been reduced to 98.5% of the declared
capacity, and if the average frequency for any time-block is below 49.02 Hz and the
scheduled generation is more than 96.5% of the declared capacity, the scheduled
generation shall be deemed to have been reduced to 96.5% of the declared capacity. In
such an event of reduction of scheduled generation of gas turbine generating station,
the corresponding drawal schedule of beneficiaries shall be corrected in proportion to
their scheduled drawal with adjustment of transmission losses on post facto basis.

(80) “Small Gas Turbine Generating Station” means and includes open cycle gas turbine
or combined cycle Generating Stations with gas turbines in the capacity range of 50
MW or below;

(81) “Storage-type Power Station” means a hydel power Generating Station associated
with large storage capacity to enable variation in generation of electricity according to

demand,;

(82) "State Grid Code" means the Code specified by the Commission under clause (h) of
sub-section (1) of Section 86 of the Act;

(83)"Thermal Generating Station" means a generating Station or a Unit thereof that
generates electricity using fossil fuels such as coal, lignite, gas, liquid fuel or

combination of these as its primary source of energy;
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(84)“Transmission System” means a line or a group of lines with or without associated
sub-Station, and includes equipment associated with transmission lines and sub-
stations;

(85)“Transmission Capacity Rights” means the right of a Transmission System User to
transfer power in MW, under normal circumstances, between such points of injection
and drawal as may be set out in the Bulk Power Transmission Agreement;

(86) "Transmission Licensee” means a Licensee authorised by the Commission to
establish or operate transmission lines under Section 14 of the Act;

(87) “Transmission System User” for the purpose of these Regulations means the
Distribution Licensees and long-term Open Access Users, but excludes partial Open
Access Users;

(88)“Unit” in relation to a thermal Generating Station (other than combined cycle thermal
Generating Station) means steam generator, turbine-generator and auxiliaries or, in
relation to a combined cycle thermal Generating Station, means turbine-generator and
auxiliaries; and, in relation to a hydel Generating Station, means turbine-generator and

its auxiliaries;

(89)“Useful Life” in relation to a Unit of a Generating Station, transmission system,
distribution system and communication system from the date of commercial operation

shall mean the following, namely:-

i.  Coal/Lignite based thermal generating Station: 25 years;

ii.  Gas/Liquid fuel based thermal Generating Station: 25 years;
iii.  Hydro Generating Station including Pumped Storage

Hydro Generating Station: 40 years;

iv. AC and DC sub-Station: 35 years;

v. Gas Insulated sub-Station: 35 years;

vi.  Transmission line (including HVAC and HVDC): 35 years;

vii.  Distribution line: 35 years;

viii. ~ Communication System: 15 years:

Provided that the useful life for AC and DC sub-Stations and Gas Insulated sub-
Station for which Notice Inviting Tender was floated before 01.04.2016 shall be
considered as 25 years:
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Provided further that the extension of life of the projects beyond the completion of
their Useful Life shall be decided by the Commission;

(90)“Year” means a financial year (‘FY”);

(91)“Z-factor Charge” is the charge allowed to a Generation Company, Transmission
Licensee and Distribution Licensee on account of uncontrollable factors, viz., fuel
surcharge adjustment and cost pertaining to identified uncontrollable factors as
specified in these Regulations;

Words or expressions used in these Regulations but not defined herein shall have the
meanings assigned to them in the Act or Rules or Regulations framed thereunder.

Scope of Regulations

The Commission shall determine the Aggregate Revenue Requirement, Tariff and Fees
and Charges, including terms and conditions thereof, in accordance with these
Regulations for all matters for which the Commission has jurisdiction under the Act,
including the following:-

>i) For supply of electricity by a Generating Company, except from Renewable
Sources of energy, to a Distribution Licensee:

(i1))  For Intra-State transmission of electricity;
(iii)  For use of intervening transmission facilities;
(iv)  For Wheeling of electricity;

(v)  For Retail supply of electricity;

(vi)  For MSLDC, in terms of Fees and Charges;

(vii) For Surcharge in addition to the charges for wheeling under the first proviso to
sub-section (2) of Section 42 of the Act, in accordance with the Regulations of the
Commission governing Distribution Open Access and Orders issued by the

Commission;

(viii) For Additional surcharge on the charges for wheeling under sub-section (4) of
Section 42 of the Act, in accordance with the Regulations of the Commission

governing Distribution Open Access and Orders of the Commission:

Provided that the Commission shall determine such Tariff and Fees and Charges, having
regard to the terms and conditions contained in Parts E, F, G, H and I of these
Regulations, as may be applicable.
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Notwithstanding anything contained in these Regulations, the Commission shall adopt
the Tariff if such Tariff has been determined through a transparent process of bidding in
accordance with the guidelines issued by the Central Government under Section 63 of
the Act:

Provided that the Petitioner shall provide such information as the Commission may
require to satisfy itself that the guidelines issued by the Central Government have been
duly followed.

PART- A: GENERAL PRINCIPLES

4.2

Multi-Year Tariff Framework

The Commission shall determine the Tariff and Fees and Charges for matters covered
under clauses (i), (ii), (iii), (iv), (v), (vi), (vii), and (viii) of Regulation 3.1, under a Multi-
Year Tariff framework with effect from April 1, 2020.

The Multi-Year Tariff framework shall be based on the following elements, for
computation of Aggregate Revenue Requirement and expected revenue from Tariff and
Charges for Generating Companies, Transmission Licensees, Distribution Wires
Business, Retail Supply Business, and Fees and Charges of MSLDC:

(1) A Multi-Year Tariff Petition comprising the forecast of Aggregate Revenue
Requirement, expected revenue from existing Tariff or Fees and Charges in case
of MSLDC, expected revenue gap, and proposed Tariff or Fees and Charges for
each year of the Control Period, shall be submitted by the Generating Company
or Licensee or MSLDC:

Provided that the Distribution Licensee shall propose the category-wise Tariffs
for each year of the Control Period:

Provided further that the performance parameters whose trajectories have been
specified in these Regulations shall form the basis of projection for the
Aggregate Revenue Requirement for the entire Control Period;

(i)  Determination of the Aggregate Revenue Requirement and Tariff or Fees and
Charges for Generating Companies, Transmission Licensees, Distribution Wires
Business, Retail Supply Business, and MSLDC by the Commission for each year
of the Control Period, at the start of the Control Period:

Provided that the Commission shall also approve the sharing proportion amongst
the Transmission System Users of the MSLDC Fees and Charges for the Control
Period;
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(iii)  Petition for Mid-term Review of operational and financial performance vis-a-vis
the approved forecast for the first three years of the Control Period; and revised
forecast of Aggregate Revenue Requirement, expected revenue from existing
Tariff, expected revenue gap, and proposed category-wise Tariffs for the fourth
and fifth year of the Control Period, shall be submitted by the Generating
Company or Licensee or MSLDC;

(iv)  True-up for the first and second years of the Control Period based on audited
accounts and provisional true-up for the third year of the Control Period of
operational and financial performance vis-a-vis the approved forecast for the
respective years shall be submitted by the Generating Company or Licensee or
MSLDC along with its Petition for Mid-term Review;

(v)  Determination of the revised Aggregate Revenue Requirement and Tariff or Fees
and Charges for Generating Companies, Transmission Licensees, Distribution
Wires Business, Retail Supply Business, and MSLDC by the Commission for
the fourth and fifth year of the Control Period based on the Mid-term Review;

(vi)  True-up for the first and second years of the Control Period, provisional true-up
for the third year of the Control Period of operational and financial performance
vis-a-vis the approved forecast for the respective years, and categorization of
variation in performance as those caused by factors within the control of the
Petitioner (controllable factors) and by factors beyond its control (uncontrollable
factors) by the Commission, along with the Mid-term Review;

(vii) The mechanism for pass-through of approved gains or losses on account of
uncontrollable factors as specified by the Commission in these Regulations;

(viii)) The mechanism for sharing of approved gains or losses arising out of
controllable factors as specified by the Commission in these Regulations.

5 Petitions to be filed in the Control Period
5.1  The Petitions to be filed in the Control Period under these Regulations are as under:

a) Multi-Year Tariff Petition, which is complete in all aspects as per these Regulations,
shall be filed by November 1, 2019 by Generating Companies and Transmission
Licensees and SLDC, and by November 30, 2019, by Distribution Licensees,

comprising:

i. Truing-up for FY 2017-18 and FY 2018-19 to be carried out under the
Maharashtra  Electricity Regulatory Commission (Multi Year Tariff)
Regulations, 2015:
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b)

il

ii.

iv.

Provided that the Commission may, if it considers appropriate, carry out the
Truing-up for years prior to FY 2017-18 under the Maharashtra Electricity
Regulatory Commission (Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2015, along with the
Truing-up for FY 2017-18, in case such Truing-up is yet to be completed;

Provisional Truing-up for FY 2019-20 to be carried out under the Maharashtra
Electricity Regulatory Commission (Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2015;

Aggregate Revenue Requirement for each year of the Control Period under these
Regulations;

Revenue from the sale of power at existing Tariffs and charges and projected
revenue gap for each year of the Control Period under these Regulations;

Proposed category-wise Tariff or Fees & Charges for each year of the Control
Period under these Regulations.

Mid-Term Review Petition, which is complete in all aspects as per these Regulations,

shall be filed by November 1, 2022 by Generating Companies, Transmission
Licensees and SLDC, and by November 30, 2022, by Distribution Licensees,

comprising:

L.

ii.

iii.

iv.

Truing-up for FY 2019-20 to be carried out under the Maharashtra Electricity
Regulatory Commission (Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2015;

Truing-up for FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22 to be carried out under the
Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (Multi Year Tariff)
Regulations, 2019;

Provisional Truing-up for FY 2022-23 to be carried out under the Maharashtra
Electricity Regulatory Commission (Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2019;

Revised forecast of Aggregate Revenue Requirement, expected revenue from
existing Tariff and charges, expected revenue gap, and proposed category-wise
Tariff for the fourth and fifth year of the Control Period;

¢) True-up Petition, which is complete in all aspects as per these Regulations, for the
third and fourth year of the Control Period shall be filed by November 1, 2024 by
Generating Companies, Transmission Licensees and SLDC, and by November 30,

2024, by Distribution Licensees, comprising:

1.

Truing-up for FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24 to be carried out under the
Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (Multi Year Tariff)
Regulations, 2019;
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ii.  Provisional Truing-up for FY 2024-25 to be carried out under the Maharashtra
Electricity Regulatory Commission (Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2019:

Provided that, in case of a Deemed Distribution Licensee whose tariff is yet to be
determined by the Commission till March 31, 2020, the Commission may relax the
timelines for submission of the Multi-Year Tariff Petition, Mid-term Review Petition
and Truing-up Petitions, in case such specific relaxation is sought by such Distribution
Licensee:

Provided further that such Deemed Distribution Licensee may be permitted to first file
a Petition for approval of a ceiling or other provisional tariff in its area of supply,
followed by a Petition for approval of Power Purchase Agreement or arrangement, after
which the Multi-Year Tariff Petition may be filed:

Provided also that if the Petition is not filed within the specified timelines and/or data
sought by the Commission for processing the Petition is not submitted within the
stipulated time, then the carrying cost due to consequential delay in issue of the Order,
shall not be allowed to the Generating Company or Transmission Licensee or
Distribution Licensees or SLDC, as the case may be:

Provided also that a Petition may be filed at any time during the Control Period in case
of variation in uncontrollable factors that may result in sudden, steep, and sustained

increase in tariff.

The Petitioner shall submit separate audited Accounting Statements along with the
Petition for determination of Tariff or Fees and Charges and Truing-up under these
Regulations:

Provided that, in case complete accounting segregation has not been done between the
Distribution Wires Business and Retail Supply Business of a Distribution Licensee, its
Aggregate Revenue Requirement shall be apportioned between the Distribution Wires
Business and Retail Supply Business in accordance with the Allocation Matrix specified
in Part G of these Regulations.

Incumbent Distribution Licensees shall have the option of filing separate Petitions under
these Regulations for an area in respect of which the Commission has issued multiple
Distribution Licences:

Provided that each such separate Petition shall contain all necessary details of expenses,
revenue, assets, liabilities, capitalisation, and category-wise tariff to enable the
Commission to determine the Aggregate Revenue Requirement and Tariff for each
separate arca for which it has been filed:

N
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Provided further that such expenses, revenue, assets, liabilities, and capitalisation
considered for each such area shall be excluded while submitting the Petition for the
remaining area of supply:

Provided also that the Distribution Licensee shall submit the reconciliation statement for
expenses, revenue, assets, liabilities, and capitalisation between the entity as a whole and
each such separate area of supply for which the Distribution Licensee has filed a separate
Petition.

Multi-Year Tariff Petition

The Multi-Year Tariff Petition shall include a forecast of Aggregate Revenue
Requirement and expected revenue from Tariff for each year of the Control Period in
the manner specified in these Regulations, and be accompanied by applicable fees.

The forecast of Aggregate Revenue Requirement may be based on assumptions relating
to the behaviour of individual variables during the Control Period, including category-
wise sales and demand projections, power procurement plan, capital investment plan,
financing plan and physical targets, in accordance with guidelines and formats as may
be prescribed by the Commission.

The capital investment plan shall show, separately, on-going projects that will spill over
into the Control Period, and new projects (with justification) that will commence in the
Control Period but may be completed within or beyond it, for which relevant technical
and commercial details shall be provided.

The Distribution Licensee shall project the realistic power purchase requirement from
all Generating Stations considered for power purchase based on the Merit Order
Despatch principles, the Renewable Purchase Obligation (RPO) specified by the
Commission under the relevant Regulations, and the target set, if any, for Energy
Efficiency (EE) and Demand Side Management (DSM) schemes:

Provided that Merit Order Despatch principles shall not apply to purchase of power from
Renewable Energy sources up to the RPO specified by the Commission.

The forecast of expected revenue from Tariff and charges shall be based on the
following:

(a) In the case of a Generating Company, estimates of quantum of electricity to be
generated by each Unit/Station for each year of the Control Period;

(b) In the case of a Transmission Licensee, estimate of Aggregate Revenue
Requirement or estimates of transmission capacity allocated to Transmission
System Users, as appropriate, for each year of the Control Period;
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(c) In the case of a Distribution Licensee, estimates of quantum of electricity to be
supplied to consumers and wheeled on behalf of Distribution System Users for
each year of the Control Period:

Provided that the Distribution Licensee shall submit relevant details of category-
wise sales separately for each Distribution Franchisee area, including the Input
Energy and the Input Rate;

(d) Prevailing Tariff as on the date of filing of the Petition.

Based on the forecast of Aggregate Revenue Requirement and expected revenue from
Tariff and charges, the Generating Company or Distribution Licensee or MSLDC shall
submit the proposed Tariff or Fees and Charges, category-wise if applicable, for each
year of the Control Period, that would meet the gap, if any, in the Aggregate Revenue
Requirement, including unrecovered revenue gaps of previous years to the extent
proposed to be recovered.

Full details supporting the forecast shall be provided, including but not limited to details
of past performance, proposed initiatives for achieving efficiency or productivity gains,
technical studies, contractual arrangements and secondary research, to enable the
Commission to assess the reasonableness of the forecast.

On receipt of the Petition, the Commission shall either-

(a) issue an Order approving the Aggregate Revenue Requirement and Tariff for the
Control Period, subject to such modifications and conditions as it may stipulate; or

reject the Petition for reasons to be recorded in writing, after giving the Petitioner
a reasonable opportunity of being heard.

Specific trajectory for certain variables

The Commission, while approving the Multi-Y ear Tariff Petition, may stipulate a trajectory for

certain variables, including but not limited to transmission losses, distribution losses, collection

efficiency, and payment efficiency.

8.1

Mid-term Review

A Petition for Mid-term Review and Truing-up of the Aggregate Revenue Requirement
and Revenue for the Years 2020-21 and 2021-22, and provisional Truing-up for the Year
2022-23, shall be filed by November 1, 2022 by Generating Companies, Transmission
Licensees and SLDC, and by November 30, 2022, by Distribution Licensees:

R
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Provided that the Petition shall include information in such form as may be stipulated by
the Commission, together with the Accounting Statements, extracts of books of account
and such other details, including Cost Accounting Reports or extracts thereof, as it may
require to assess the reasons for and extent of any difference in operational and financial
performance from the approved forecast of Aggregate Revenue Requirement and
expected revenue from Tariff and charges:

Provided further that if the Petition is not filed within the specified timelines and/or data
sought by the Commission for processing the Petition is not submitted within the
stipulated time, then the carrying cost due to consequential delay in issue of the Order,
shall not be allowed to the Generating Company or Transmission Licensee or
Distribution Licensees or SLDC, as the case may be.

The scope of the Mid-term Review shall be a comparison of the actual operational and
financial performance vis-a-vis the approved forecast for the first three years of the
Control Period; and revised forecast of Aggregate Revenue Requirement, expected
revenue from existing Tariff, expected revenue gap, and proposed category-wise Tariffs
for the fourth and fifth year of the Control Period:

Provided that as part of the Mid-term Review, the Commission may inter-alia modify
the category-wise sales, power purchase expenses, O&M expenses, capital expenditure
related expenses, principles/basis of tariff categorisation, applicability of charges,
Generation Tariff, Transmission Tariff, Wheeling Charges, and category-wise Tariff, as
considered appropriate based on the data made available for the first three years of the
Control Period:

Provided further that necessary justification for the modifications made in the Mid-term
Review shall be elaborated in the Mid-term Review Order.

Upon completion of the Review under Regulation 8.2, the Commission shall attribute
any variations or expected variations in performance, for variables specified under
Regulation 9, to factors within the control of the Petitioner (controllable factors) or to
factors beyond its control (uncontrollable factors):

Provided that any variations or expected variations in performance, for variables other
than those specified under Regulation 9.1, shall not ordinarily be reviewed by the
Commission during the Control Period and shall be attributed entirely to controllable
factors:

Provided further that, where the Petitioner believes, for any variable not specified under
Regulation 9.1, that there is a material variation or expected variation in performance for
any year on account of uncontrollable factors, it may apply to the Commission for
inclusion of such variable.
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8.4 Upon completion of the Mid-term Review, the Commission shall pass an order

9.2

recording-

(a)

(b)

(©

the approved aggregate gain or loss to the Generating Company or Licensee or
MSLDC on account of controllable factors for the Years 2020-21 and 2021-22,
and provisional Truing-up for the Year 2022-23, and the amount of such gains or
such losses that may be shared in accordance with Regulation 11;

the approved aggregate gain or loss to the Generating Company or Licensee or
MSLDC on account of uncontrollable factors for the Years 2020-21 and 2021-22,
and provisional Truing-up for the Year 2022-23, and the amount of such gains or
such losses that were not recovered during the respective years and which may be
shared in accordance with Regulation 10;

the approved modifications to the Aggregate Revenue Requirement and Tariffs or
Fees and Charges for the remainder of the Control Period.

Controllable and uncontrollable factors

The “uncontrollable factors” shall comprise the following factors, which were beyond

the control of, and could not be mitigated by the Petitioner, as determined by the

Commission:

(a)  Force Majeure events;

(b)  Change in law;

(c)  Variation in fuel cost on account of variation in price of primary and/or secondary
fuel prices;

(d)  Variation in sales;

(¢)  Variation in the cost of power purchase due to variation in the rate of power
purchase, subject to clauses in the power purchase agreement or arrangement
approved by the Commission;

(f)  Variation in inter-State Transmission Charges;

(g)  Variation in market interest rates for long-term loan; and

(h)  Variation in freight rates.

Variations or expected variations in the performance of the Petitioner, which may be

attributed by the Commission to controllable factors include, but are not limited to the

following:

(@)

Variation in technical and commercial losses;

R
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(b)  Variation in operational norms;
(c)  Variation in amount of interest on working capital;
(d)  Variation in Operation & Maintenance expenses;

()  Variation in Coal transit losses.

Mechanism for pass-through of gains or losses on account of uncontrollable factors

The aggregate gain or loss to a Generating Company on account of variation in cost of
fuel from the sources considered in the Tariff Order, including blending ratio of coal
procured from different sources, shall be passed through as an adjustment in its Energy
Charges on a monthly basis, as specified in Regulation 50.6.

The aggregate gain or loss to a Distribution Licensee on account of variation in cost of
fuel, power purchase, and inter-State Transmission Charges, covered under Regulation
9.1, shall be passed through under the Fuel Adjustment Charge (FAC) component of the
Z-factor Charge (Zrac), as an adjustment in its Tariff on a monthly basis, as specified in
these Regulations and as may be determined in orders of the Commission passed under
these Regulations, and shall be subject to ex-post facto approval by the Commission on
a quarterly basis:

Provided that the Zrac for the first month of the first year of the Control Period shall
require the prior approval of the Commission, based on prudence check;

Provided further that the Distribution Licensee shall submit, in the stipulated formats,
details of the variation between expenses incurred and those approved by the
Commission, and the detailed computations and supporting documents as may be
required for verification by the Commission for the first month of the first year of the
Control Period, for prior approval of Zgac;

Provided also that the Distribution Licensee shall submit the details of variation in fuel
costs relating to power generated from own generation Stations and cost of power
procured, and inter-State Transmission Charges for the first month of the first year of
the Control Period, after completion of the first month.

The Zrac component shall be applicable to the entire sales of a Distribution Licensee

without any exemption to any consumer.

The Zrac component shall be computed and charged on the basis of actual variation in
cost of fuel and power purchase, and inter-State Transmission Charges relating to power

procured during any month subsequent to such costs being incurred, in accordance with
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these Regulations, and shall not be computed on the basis of estimated or expected
variations in fuel and/or power purchase costs.

After approval by the Commission of the Zrac for the first month of the first year of the
Control Period, the Distribution Licensee shall submit such details, in the stipulated
formats, of the variation between expenses incurred and the figures approved, and the
detailed computations and supporting documents as may be required for verification by
the Commission for the subsequent months of the Control Period for post-facto approval
of Zrac:

Provided that the first quarter of the first year of the Control Period shall include the first
month of the first year of the Control Period, for which prior approval of Zgac is required;

Provided further that the Distribution Licensee shall submit the details of variation in
fuel costs relating to power generated from its own generation stations, cost of power
procured, and inter-State Transmission Charges for the subsequent months of the Control
Period on a quarterly basis within 60 days of the close of each quarter, for post facto
approval;

Provided also that the Distribution Licensee shall submit the Zrac levied to all consumers
for the preceding quarter vis-a-vis the Zpac recoverable, along with the detailed
computations and supporting documents as may be required, for verification by the

Commission:

Provided also that the Distribution Licensee shall provide details of the Commission's
approval of levy of Zrac on its internet website.

10.6 The formula for computation of the FAC component of Z-factor Charge is as follows:

10.7

Zrac (Rs crore) = F+C+B,

Where,

Zrac = Z-factor Charge component for FAC;

F = Change in fuel cost of own generation, cost of power purchase, and

inter-State Transmission Charges as covered under Regulation 9.1;
C = Carrying Cost for any under recovery/over recovery, computed at the
Base Rate prevailing at the beginning of the month, plus 150 basis
points;
B = Adjustment factor for over-recovery/under-recovery.

The calculation for FAC to be charged for the month "n" is as follows:

Zrac n (Rs crore) = Fra + Coa + Bao,

Where,

R
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Frn = Change in fuel cost of own generation, cost of power purchase, and
inter-State Transmission Charges, for the month "n-2", and shall be

computed as

F (Rs. Crore) = Arc,Gen + Arcpr + Atc,

Where,

AFC Gen = Change in fuel cost of own generation, to be computed based
on the directives and norms approved by the Commission,
including heat rate, auxiliary consumption, etc.;

Arcpp = Change in variable and/or fixed cost of power procured from
other sources, which would be allowed to the extent it satisfies
the criteria prescribed in these Regulations and the prevailing
Tariff Order, and subject to applicable norms;

Arc = Change in inter-State Transmission Charges;

Ci2 = Carrying cost for any under recovery/over recovery for the month "n-
2";
Bi-2 (Rs. Crore) = Zrac n-4 - Ra

Where:

Bn2= Adjustment factor for over-recovery / under-recovery for the month "n-
2;

Zeacna=  Zrac for the month “n-4”;

Ruo = Zgac for the month “n-4” actually recovered in the month “n-2:

10.8 The total Zrac recoverable as per the formula specified above shall be recovered from
the actual sales in terms of “Rupees per kilowatt-hour”:

Provided that, in case of unmetered consumers, the Zrac shall be recoverable based on
estimated sales to such consumers, computed in accordance with such methodology as

may be stipulated by the Commission:

Provided further that, where the actual annual sliding distribution losses of the
Distribution Licensee exceed the level approved by the Commission, the amount of Zrac
corresponding to the excess distribution losses (in kWh terms) shall be deducted from
the total Zrac recoverable.

10.9 The Zrac per kWh for a particular Tariff category/sub-category/consumption slab shall
be computed as per the following formula:

Zrac cat (Rs/kWh) = [Zrac / (Metered sales + Unmetered consumption estimates + Excess

distribution losses)] * k * 10,

Where:
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Zrac cat = Zrac component for a particular Tariff category/sub-category/consumption slab
in ‘Rupees per kWh’ terms;

k = Average Billing Rate / ACOS;

Average Billing Rate = Average Billing Rate for a particular Tariff category/sub-
category/consumption slab under consideration in ‘Rupees per kWh’ as approved by the
Commission in the Tariff Order:

Provided that the Average Billing Rate for the unmetered consumers shall be based on
the estimated sales to such consumers, computed in accordance with such methodology
as may be stipulated by the Commission:

ACOS = Average Cost of Supply in ‘Rupees per kWh’ as approved for recovery by the
Commission in the Tariff Order:

Provided that the monthly ZFAC shall not exceed 20% of the variable component of
Tariff or such other ceiling as may be stipulated by the Commission from time to time:

Provided further that any under-recovery in the Zrac on account of such ceiling shall be
carried forward and shall be recovered by the Distribution Licensee over such future
period as may be directed by the Commission.

10.10 The consequential impact of decisions of higher Courts or Tribunals or Review Orders
passed by the Commission on the Generating Company or Licensee shall be passed
through under the ‘Other Uncontrollable Cost’ component of the Z-factor Charge (Zouc)
as an adjustment in the Tariff on a yearly basis for the second, third and fifth Years of
the Control Period, as may be determined in the Order of the Commission passed under
these Regulations.

10.11 The impact of change in the intra-State transmission charges payable by the Distribution
Licensee for the second, third and fifth Years of the Control Period shall be passed
through under the Zouc as an adjustment in the Tariff of the Distribution Licensee on a
yearly basis, as may be determined in the Order of the Commission passed under these
Regulations.

10.12 The Zouc shall be determined based on a Petition filed by the concerned Generating
Company or Licensee.

10.13 The consequential impact of decisions of higher Courts or Tribunals or Review Orders
passed by the Commission on the Generating Company or Licensee, and the impact of
change in the intra-State transmission charges payable by the Distribution Licensee, for
the first and fourth Years of the Control Period shall be addressed in the Multi-Year
Tariff Order and Mid-term Review Order, respectively.

R
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Mechanism for sharing of gains or losses on account of controllable factors

The approved aggregate gain to the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC on
account of controllable factors shall be dealt with in the following manner:

(a) Two-third of the amount of such gain shall be passed on as a rebate in Tariff over
such period as may be stipulated in the Order of the Commission under
Regulation 8.4;

(b) The balance amount of such gain shall be retained by the Generating Company or
Licensee or MSLDC.

The approved aggregate loss to the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC on
account of controllable factors shall be dealt with in the following manner:

(a) One-third of the amount of such loss may be passed on as an additional charge in
Tariff over such period as may be stipulated in the Order of the Commission under
Regulation 8.4;

(b) The balance amount of such loss shall be absorbed by the Generating Company or
Licensee or MSLDC.

PART- B: PROCEDURE FOR DETERMINATION OF TARIFF

12
12.1

12.2

12.3

13
13.1

13.1.

Filing of Petition for determination of Tariff

A Petition for determination of Tariff shall be filed in such form and in such manner as

specified in these Regulations, and be accompanied by applicable fees.

The proceedings for determination of Tariff shall be undertaken by the Commission in
accordance with the Regulations governing its Conduct of Business.

Notwithstanding anything contained in these Regulations, the Commission shall have
the authority, either suo motu or on a Petition filed by the Generating Company or
Licensee or MSLDC, to determine its Tariff or Fees and Charges, including terms and
conditions thereof.

Determination of Generation Tariff

Existing Generating Station

1 Where the Commission has, at any time prior to April 1, 2020, approved a power
purchase agreement or arrangement between a Generating Company and a Distribution
Licensee or has adopted the Tariff contained therein for supply of electricity from an
existing generating Unit/Station, then the Tariff for supply of electricity by such
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Generating Company to the Distribution Licensee shall be in accordance with the
Tariff mentioned in such power purchase agreement or arrangement for such period as
so approved or adopted by the Commission.

13.1.2 Where, as on April 1, 2020, the power purchase agreement or arrangement between a
Generating Company and a Distribution Licensee for supply of electricity from an
existing generating Unit/Station or the Tariff therein has not been approved by the
Commission, or where there is no power purchase agreement or arrangement, the
supply of electricity by such Generating Company to the Distribution Licensee after
April 1, 2020 shall be in accordance with a power purchase agreement approved by the
Commission in accordance with Part C of these Regulations:

Provided that the Petition for approval of such power purchase agreement or
arrangement shall be filed by the Distribution Licensee with the Commission within
three months from the date of notification of these Regulations:

Provided further that the supply of electricity shall be allowed to continue under the
present agreement or arrangement until such time as the Commission approves such
power purchase agreement, and shall be discontinued forthwith if the Commission
rejects it, for reasons to be recorded in writing.

13.2 New Generating Stations

The Tariff for the supply of electricity by a Generating Company to a Distribution Licensee
from a new generating Unit/Station shall be in accordance with the Tariff determined in
accordance with Part E of these Regulations.

13.3 Own Generating Stations

13.3.1 Where a Distribution Licensee also undertakes the Business of generation of
electricity, the transfer price at which electricity is supplied by its Generation Business
to its Retail Supply Business shall be determined by the Commission:

Provided that the Commission shall have regard to the terms and conditions specified
in Part E of these Regulations in determining the transfer price for such supply.

13.3.2 The Distribution Licensee shall maintain a separate record for its Generation Business
and an Allocation Statement so as to enable the Commission to identify the direct and
indirect costs relating to such Business and return on equity capital accruing to it.

13.4 The Distribution Licensee shall submit, along with the separate Petition for
determination of Tariff for retail supply of electricity, the information required under
Part E of these Regulations relating to the Generation Business.

QR
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Determination of Tariff and Fees and Charges for Transmission, Distribution
Wires Business, Retail Supply Business, and MSLDC

The Commission shall determine the Aggregate Revenue Requirement and Tariff for
Transmission Licensees, Distribution Wires Business, Retail Supply Business, and Fees
and Charges for MSLDC, upon consideration of a Petition filed by the Licensee or
MSLDC, as the case may be, in accordance with the procedure contained in this
Regulation.

The Commission shall determine the Tariff for the Licensee or Fees and Charges for the
MSLDC for -

(a) Transmission of electricity, in accordance with the terms and conditions contained
in Part F of these Regulations;

(b) Distribution Wires Business, in accordance with the terms and conditions
contained in Part G of these Regulations;

(¢) Retail Supply Business, in accordance with the terms and conditions contained in
Part H of these Regulations; and

(d) MSLDC, in accordance with the terms and conditions contained in Part I of these
Regulations.

The Petitioner shall provide, as part of its Petition and in such form as may be stipulated
by the Commission, details of computation of the Aggregate Revenue Requirement and
expected revenue from Tariff and charges, and thereafter shall furnish such further
information or particulars or documents as the Commission or its Secretary or any
Officer designated for the purpose by the Commission may reasonably require to assess
such calculation:

Provided that the Petition shall be accompanied, where relevant, by a detailed Tariff
revision proposal showing category-wise Tariffs and how such revision would meet the
gap, if any, in Aggregate Revenue Requirement for each year of the Control Period:

Provided further that the Commission may stipulate different formats for details to be
submitted by the Petitioner as it may reasonably require for assessing the Aggregate
Revenue Requirement and for determining the Tariff:

Provided also that the Commission may conduct a Technical Validation Session prior to
admission of the Petition.

The Petitioner shall submit a duly completed draft Public Notice for the Commission's
approval as per the stipulated template, for publication as and when intimated by the

Commission.
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Upon receipt of a complete Petition accompanied by the requisite information,
particulars and documents in compliance with the requirements specified in this
Regulation, the Petition shall be admitted, and the Commission or its Secretary or
designated Officer shall intimate to the Petitioner that it is ready for publication.

The Petitioner shall, within three days of an intimation given to it in accordance with
Regulation 14.4, publish a Public Notice in at least two English and two Marathi
language daily newspapers widely circulated in the area to which the Petition pertains,
outlining the proposed Tariff, and such other matters as may be stipulated by the
Commission, and inviting suggestions and objections from the public:

Provided that the Petitioner shall make available a hard copy of the complete Petition to
any person, at such locations and at such rates as may be stipulated by the Commission:

Provided further that the Petitioner shall also provide on its internet website, in text-
searchable format or in downloadable spreadsheet format and showing detailed
computations, the Petition filed before the Commission along with all regulatory filings,
information, particulars and documents in the manner stipulated by the Commission:

Provided also that the web link to the information mentioned in the second proviso to
this Regulation shall be easily accessible, archived for downloading and be prominently

displayed on the Petitioner's internet website:

Provided also that the Petitioner may be exempted by the Commission from providing
any such information, particulars or documents as are confidential in nature.

Explanation — For the purpose of this Regulation, the term ‘“downloadable
spreadsheet format” shall mean one (or multiple, linked) spreadsheet
software files containing all assumptions, formulae, calculations,
software macros and outputs forming the basis of the Petition.

The Petitioner shall furnish to the Commission all such books and records (or certified
true copies thereof), including the Accounting Statements, operational and cost data, as
may be required by it for determination of Tariff.

The Commission mayi, if it considers necessary, make or cause to be made available to
any person such information as has been provided by the Petitioner to it, including
abstracts of books and records (or certified true copies thereof) on such terms and
conditions as may be specified in Regulations of the Commission governing its Conduct
of Business.

The Commission may direct the Generating Company or Licensee to submit such
performance-related data as it may stipulate, with the Petitions to be filed under these
Regulations.

R
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14.10 The procedural aspects pertaining to the Petition contained in this Regulation shall apply

15
15.1

15.2

15.3

16
16.1

only to such an extent as may be required by the Commission having regard to the
circumstances of an individual case, to -

(a) a Petition filed by a Transmission Licensee under Section 36 of the Act;
(b) aPetition filed by a Generating Company or Licensee under Section 64 of the Act;
(¢) aPetition filed by the MSLDC under Section 32 of the Act.

Tariff Order

The Commission shall, within one hundred and twenty days from receipt of a complete
Petition, and after considering all suggestions and objections received from the public:

(a) issue a Tariff Order accepting the Petition with such modifications or conditions
as may be stipulated in that Order;

(b) reject the Petition for reasons to be recorded in writing if such Petition is not in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and the rules and Regulations made
thereunder or any other provisions of law, after giving the Petitioner a reasonable
opportunity of being heard.

The Petitioner shall publish the Tariff approved by the Commission in at least two
English and two Marathi language daily newspapers having wide circulation in its
Licence area, provide the approved Tarift schedule on its internet website, and make
available for sale a booklet containing such Tariff to any person upon payment of
reasonable reproduction charges:

Provided that, where the Petitioner is a Generating Company, such publication shall be
made in newspapers widely circulated in the area of supply of the Distribution Licensee
to whom the electricity is proposed to be supplied in terms of the Tariff Order, and shall
also be provided on the internet website of that Distribution Licensee.

The Tariff so published shall be in force from the date stipulated in the Order and shall,
unless amended or revised, continue to be in force for such period as may be stipulated
therein.

Adherence to Tariff Order

No Tariff or part of any Tariff may ordinarily be amended more frequently than once in
a year, except in respect of any changes expressly permitted under Z-factor Charge as
specified in Regulation 10.
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If any Generating Company or Licensee recovers a price or charge exceeding the Tariff
determined under Section 62 of the Act and in accordance with these Regulations, the
excess amount shall be payable to the person who has paid such price or charge, along
with interest equivalent to the Bank Rate declared by the Reserve Bank of India
prevailing during the relevant period, without prejudice to any other liability to which
such Generating Company or Licensee may be subjected to:

Provided that such interest payable to any party shall not be allowed to be recovered
through the Aggregate Revenue Requirement of the Generating Company or Licensee:

Provided also that the Generating Company or Licensee shall maintain separate details
of such interest paid or payable by it, and shall submit them to the Commission along
with its Petition.

The Generating Company or Licensee shall submit periodic returns as may be required
by the Commission, containing operational and cost data to enable it to monitor the
implementation of its Order.

Deviation from ceiling tariff

The tariff determined in these Regulations shall be a ceiling tariff, and the Generating
Company and its Beneficiaries may mutually agree to charge a lower tariff.

The Generating Company may opt to charge a lower tariff for a period not exceeding the
validity of these Regulations on agreeing to deviation from operational parameters,
reduction in Operation and Maintenance expenses, reduced Return on Equity and
incentive specified in these Regulations.

The deviation from the ceiling tariff determined by the Commission, shall come into
effect from the date agreed to by the Generating Company and the Beneficiaries.

The Generating Company and the Beneficiaries of a Generating Station shall be required
to intimate the Commission for charging lower tariff in accordance with Regulation 17.1
to 17.3 above. The details of the accounts and the tariff actually charged under
Regulation 17.1 to 17.3 shall be submitted at the time of true up.

The revenue loss on account of charging lower than approved tariff shall be borne
entirely for all times by the Generating Company and the impact of such revenue loss
shall not be passed on to the Beneficiaries, in any form.

N
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PART C: POWER PROCUREMENT

18

Applicability

The Regulations contained in this Part shall apply to power procurement by a Distribution

Licensee from a Generating Company or Trading Licensee or Distribution Licensee or from

any other source through agreement or arrangement for purchase of power for distribution and

supply within the State.

19
19.1

19.2

19.3

20
20.1

Power procurement guidelines

The Distribution Licensee shall undertake its power procurement during the year in
accordance with the power procurement plan for the Control Period, which may include
long-term, medium-term and short-term power procurement, approved by the
Commission in accordance with these Regulations.

A Distribution Licensee shall follow the guidelines contained in this Part with respect
to:

(a)  Procurement of power under any arrangement or agreement with a term or duration
exceeding seven years but not exceeding twenty-five years (i.e., long-term power
procurement);

(b)  Procurement of power under any arrangement or agreement with a term or duration
exceeding one year but not exceeding seven years (i.e., medium-term power
procurement); and

(c) Procurement of power under any arrangement or agreement with a term or duration

less than or equal to one year (i.e., short-term power procurement).

All future procurement of short-term or medium-term or long-term power, including
Renewable Energy, shall invariably be undertaken through competitive bidding in
accordance with Guidelines notified by the Government of India under Section 63 of the
Act:

Provided that in case either no competitive bids are received or the bids received are
higher than the prevailing market rates or on any other sufficient reason, then the
Distribution Licensee may procure medium-term or long-term power under Section 62
of the Act, subject to fulfilling the conditions specified in Regulation 21.

Power Procurement Plan

The Distribution Licensee shall prepare a plan for procurement of power to serve the



TERTZ A TSAUS AR HET TR-F, AT R, 0%%/SMATT R0, Ik ]8R 333

demand for electricity in its area of supply and submit such plan to the Commission for

approval:

Provided that such power procurement plan shall be submitted for the Control Period
commencing on April 1, 2020, along with the Petition for determination of Tariff for the
Control Period from April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2025, in accordance with Part A of
these Regulations;

Provided further that such power procurement plan may include long-term, medium-
term and short-term sources of power procurement, in accordance with these
Regulations.

20.2 The power procurement plan of the Distribution Licensee shall comprise the following:

(a) A quantitative forecast of the unrestricted base load and peak load for electricity
within its area of supply;

(b)  An estimate of the quantities of electricity supply from the identified sources of
power purchase, including own generation if any;

(c) An estimate of availability of power to meet the base load and peak load
requirement:
Provided that such estimate of demand and supply shall be on month-wise basis
in Mega-Watt (MW) as well as expressed in Million Units (MU);

(d) Standards to be maintained with regard to quality and reliability of supply, in
accordance with the relevant Regulations of the Commission;

() Measures proposed for energy conservation, energy efficiency, and Demand
Side Management;

(f)  The requirement for new sources of power procurement, including augmentation
of own generation capacity, if any, and identified new sources of supply, based
on (a) to (e) above;

(g) The sources of power, quantities and cost estimates for such procurement:

Provided that the forecast or estimates contained in the long-term procurement plan shall
be separately stated for peak and off-peak periods, in terms of quantities of power to be
procured (in MU) and maximum demand (in MW):

Provided further that the forecast or estimates for the Control Period from FY 2020-21
to FY 2024-25 shall be prepared for each month over the Control Period:

Provided also that the long-term/medium-term procurement plan shall be a least cost
plan based on available information regarding costs of various sources of supply.
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Explanation — For the purpose of this Regulation, the term “peak period” shall mean
such block of three or more continuous hours during a twenty-four hour period

representing maximum power demand for the Distribution Licensee.

The forecast or estimate shall be prepared using forecasting techniques based on past
data and reasonable assumptions regarding the future:

Provided that the forecast or estimate shall take into account factors such as overall
economic growth, consumption growth of electricity-intensive sectors, advent of
competition in the electricity sector, trends in captive power, impact of loss reduction
initiatives, improvement in Generating Station Plant Load Factors and other relevant
factors.

Where the Commission has specified a percentage of the total consumption of electricity
in the area of a Distribution Licensee to be purchased from co-generation or renewable
sources of energy, the power procurement plan shall include the plan for procurement
from such sources up to the specified level.

The Distribution Licensee shall forward a copy of its power procurement plan to the
State Transmission Utility for verification of its consistency with the transmission
system plan for the intra-State Transmission System, prepared in accordance with the

Regulations of the Commission governing Transmission Open Access:

Provided that the Distribution Licensee shall also consult the State Transmission Utility
at the time of preparation of the power procurement plan, to ensure consistency of such
plan with the transmission system plan.

The Commission shall approve the power procurement plan for the Control Period as
part of its Order on the MYT Petition.

The Distribution Licensee may, as a result of additional information not previously
known or available to it at the time of submission of the procurement plan under
Regulation 20.1, apply for modification in the power procurement plan for the remainder
of the Control Period, as part of its Petition for Mid-term Performance Review under
Regulation 8.

The Commission may, as a result of additional information not previously known or
available to the Commission at the time of approval of the procurement plan under
Regulation 20.6, if it deems appropriate, suo motu or on a Petition filed by the
Distribution Licensee, modify the procurement plan of the Distribution Licensee for the
remainder of the Control Period, as part of the Mid-term Review.
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Approval of long-term/medium-term power purchase agreement/arrangement

Every long-term/medium-term agreement or arrangement for power procurement,
including on a Standby basis, by a Distribution Licensee from a Generating Company or
Licensee or from another source of supply, and any change to an existing agreement or
arrangement shall come into effect only with the prior approval of the Commission:

Provided that the prior approval of the Commission shall not be required for purchase of
power from Renewable Energy sources at the generic/preferential tariff determined by
the Commission for meeting its Renewable Purchase Obligation (RPO).

The Petition for approval of Power Purchase Agreement or arrangement shall include
the power procurement plan for its duration:

Provided that public consultation shall not be required for adoption of tariff discovered
through competitive bidding under Section 63 of the Act:

Provided further that in case of power procurement under Section 62 of the Act, public
consultation as stipulated under Regulation 21.3 to 21.5 shall be followed.

The Petitioner shall submit a duly completed draft Public Notice for the Commission's
approval as per the stipulated template, for publication as and when intimated by the

Commission.

Upon receipt of a complete Petition accompanied by the requisite information,
particulars and documents in compliance with the requirements specified in this
Regulation, the Petition shall be admitted and the Commission or its Secretary or
designated Officer shall intimate to the Petitioner that the Petition is ready for

publication.

The Petitioner shall, within three days of an intimation given to it in accordance with
Regulation 21.4, publish a Public Notice, in at least two English and two Marathi
language daily newspapers widely circulated in the area to which the Petition pertains,
outlining the salient features of the proposed agreement or arrangement for power
procurement and the impact on the power procurement cost and Tariff, and such other
matters as may be stipulated by the Commission, and inviting suggestions and objections

from the public:

Provided that the Petitioner shall make available a hard copy of the complete Petition to
any person at such locations and at such rates as may be stipulated by the Commission;

Provided further that the Petitioner shall also provide the Petition filed before the
Commission along with all regulatory filings, information, particulars and documents in
the manner stipulated by the Commission on its internet website:

EER
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Provided also that the web-link to the information mentioned in the second proviso to
this Regulation shall be easily accessible, archived for downloading and shall be
prominently displayed on the Petitioner's internet website:

Provided also that the Petitioner may be exempted by the Commission from providing

any such information, particulars or documents as are confidential in nature.

The Commission shall consider a Petition for approval of power procurement agreement
or arrangement having regard to the approved power procurement plan of the
Distribution Licensee and the following factors:

(a) Requirement of power procurement under the approved power procurement plan;

(b)  Adherence to a transparent process of bidding in accordance with guidelines issued
by the Central Government under Section 63 of the Act or Adherence to the terms
and conditions for determination of Tariff specified under Part E of these
Regulations;

(c) Competitiveness of the Tariff vis-a-vis the Tariff prevalent in the market and/or
Tariff discovered through competitive bidding under Section 63 of the Act;

(d) Availability (or expected availability) of capacity in the intra-State transmission
system for evacuation and supply of power procured under the agreement or
arrangement;

(¢) Need to promote co-generation and generation of electricity from renewable
sources of energy.

Upon completion of its consideration of the power procurement agreement or
arrangement, the Commission shall:

(a) issue an Order approving the power procurement agreement or arrangement,
subject to such modifications and conditions as it may stipulate; or

(b)  reject the Petition for reasons to be recorded in writing, after giving the Petitioner
an opportunity to be heard.

Additional power procurement

The Distribution Licensee may undertake additional power procurement during the year,
over and above the power procurement plan for the Control Period approved by the
Commission, in accordance with this Regulation.

Where there has been an unanticipated increase in the demand for electricity or a
shortfall or failure in the supply of electricity from any approved source of supply during
the Year or when the sourcing of power from existing tied-up sources becomes costlier
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than other available alternative sources, the Distribution Licensee may enter into
additional agreement or arrangement for procurement of power.

22.3 Any variation, during the first or second block of six months of a Year, in the quantum
or cost of power procured, including from a source other than a previously approved
source, that is expected to be in excess of five per cent of that approved by the
Commission, shall require its prior approval:

Provided that the five per cent limit shall not apply to variation in the cost of power
procured on account of changes in the price of fuel for own generation or the fixed or
variable cost of power purchase that is allowed to be recovered in accordance with
Regulation 10.

22.4 Where the Distribution Licensee has identified a new short-term source of supply from
which power can be procured at a Tariff that reduces its approved total power
procurement cost, it may enter into a short-term power procurement agreement or
arrangement with such supplier without the prior approval of the Commission.

22.5 The Distribution Licensee may enter into a short-term arrangement or agreement for
procurement of power without the prior approval of the Commission when faced with
emergency conditions that threaten the stability of the distribution system, or when
directed to do so by the MSLDC to prevent grid failure.

22.6 Within fifteen days from the date of entering into an agreement or arrangement for short-
term power procurement for which prior approval is not required, the Distribution
Licensee shall submit to the Commission its details, including the quantum, Tariff
computations, duration, supplier particulars, method of supplier selection and such other
details as the Commission may require so to assess that the conditions specified in this
Regulation have been complied with.

22.7 Where the Commission has reasonable grounds to believe that the agreement or
arrangement entered into by the Distribution Licensee does not meet the criteria
specified in Regulations 22.2 to 22.5, it may disallow any increase in the total cost of
power procurement over the approved level arising therefrom or any loss incurred by the
Distribution Licensee as a result, from being passed through to consumers.

PART D: FINANCIAL PRINCIPLES

23 Financial Prudence

23.1 The Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC shall manage its finances in an

optimum and prudent manner.
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23.2 In determining the Aggregate Revenue Requirement and Tariff of the Generating

233

Company or Licensee or MSLDC, the Commission shall assess the financial prudence

exercised with regard to the following factors:

(a)
(b)
(©)

revenue;
revenue expenditure;

capital expenditure:

Provided that the Commission may disallow a part of the Aggregate Revenue

Requirement, as an efficiency measure, if it finds the exercise of such prudence to have

been deficient.

The financial prudence with respect to revenue shall be assessed in terms of the

following parameters:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)
®

(2

(h)

whether category-wise sales projections are based on realistic estimates, and
adequate justification has been provided for any anomalous increase in sales
projected by the Distribution Licensee;

whether projected generation is based on realistic estimates, and adequate
justification has been provided for any anomalous increase in generation projected
by the Generating Company;

billing efficiency measured as a percentage of the units billed by the Generating
Company or Licensee to the total units injected into the transmission or
distribution system, as the case may be;

collection efficiency measured as a percentage of the amount collected by the
Generating Company or Licensee to the total amount billed;

reduction in arrears receivable from Beneficiaries/consumers;

percentage of metered consumers and metered consumption out of the total, in the
case of Distribution Licensee;

percentage of bills raised on the basis of assessed consumption out of the total
number of bills raised by the Distribution Licensee;

whether revenue collected is in line with the projections made in the Petition and
approved by the Commission.

23.4 The financial prudence with respect to revenue expenditure shall be assessed in terms of

the following parameters:
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(a) monitoring of the revenue expenditure as against the revenue earned, such that the
expenses and payment obligations of the Generating Company or Licensee to
other entities are met in a timely manner;

(b) mechanism put in place for monitoring adherence to the approved revenue
expenditure, including schedule of interest payments for long-term loans and
working capital;

(c) transparent method of power procurement, with the objective of optimising the
power purchase expenses, as specified in Regulations 19, 20, 21, and 22:

(d) optimum purchase of power considering factors such as requirement of power,
Merit Order Despatch, potential for earning additional net revenue based on the
differential between the rate for purchase of power from different sources and the
market rate for sale of surplus power, if any:

Provided that, in case the excess of revenue expenditure over the revenue earned
exceeds 5%, the Generating Company or Licensee shall submit detailed justification
for the mismatch along with its Petition for True-up, including a comparison of the
revenue expenditure and revenue estimated in the Petition with the amounts approved
by the Commission and with the actual amount of revenue expenditure and revenue,

under key heads;

Provided further that the Generating Company or Licensee shall submit a detailed cash
flow statement for the respective Business showing the various sources of revenue, the
actual amount of cash collected against the amount billed to different consumer
categories for sale of electricity, the comparison of the actual revenue expenditure and
capital expenditure with the projected and approved revenue expenditure and capital
expenditure:

Provided also that, in case its payment obligations to other entities are not regularly
met, the Generating Company or Licensee shall provide justification for such shortfall
with reference to its cash flow statement:

Provided also that the Generating Company or Licensee shall submit the Cost Audit
Report along with the true-up Petition to justify the revenue expenses incurred as well

as inventory management policies.

23.5 The financial prudence with respect to capital expenditure shall be assessed in terms of
the following parameters:

(a) whether projected capital expenditure and capitalisation is based on realistic
estimates, and adequate justification has been provided for any anomalous



R¥o

TERTZ A TSAUS AR HET TR-F, AT R, 0%%/SMATT R0, Ik ]8R

increase in capital expenditure and capitalisation projected by the Generating

Company or Licensee;

(b) mechanism put in place for monitoring the physical progress of projects with
respect to their original schedule;

(c) optimum drawal of loans in accordance with the physical progress of the capital
expenditure schemes, and efficient utilisation of such loans;

(d) in case the actual capital expenditure or capitalisation exceeds 10% of that
approved by the Commission, the Generating Company or Licensee shall submit
detailed justification for such excess along with its Petition for True-up;

(e) in case any scheme has not been commenced during the year despite the
Commission's approval, detailed justification shall be submitted along with the

Petition for True-up.

24  Capital Cost and Capital Structure
24.1 Capital cost for a capital investment Project shall include:

(a) the expenditure incurred or projected to be incurred, including interest during
construction and financing charges, as admitted by the Commission after prudence
check;

(b) capitalised initial spares subject to the ceiling rates specified in this Regulation;

(c) expenses incurred by the Licensee on obtaining right of way, as admitted by the

Commission after prudence check;
(d) additional capitalisation determined under Regulation 25;

(e) any gain or loss on account of foreign exchange rate variation pertaining to the loan
amount availed up to the cut-off date, as admitted by the Commission after prudence
check:

Provided that any gain or loss on account of foreign exchange rate variation pertaining
to the loan amount availed up to the date of commercial operation shall be adjusted only

against the debt component of the capital cost:

Provided further that the capital cost of the assets forming part of the Project but not put
to use or not in use, shall be excluded from the capital cost of Generation Project and

transmission system:
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Provided also that the Generating Company or Transmission Licensee or Distribution
Licensee shall submit documentary evidence in support of its claim of assets being put

to use:

Provided also that the Commission may undertake a sample check to verify the assets
put to use as submitted by the Generating Company or Licensee or SLDC, as the case
may be, independent of the tariff determination process:

Provided also that any capital expenditure incurred based on the specific requirement of
a Generating Company or Licensee shall be substantiated with necessary documentary
evidence of such request and undertaking received:

Provided also that the following shall be excluded from the capital cost of the existing
and new projects:

(a) The assets forming part of the project, but not in use, as declared in the tariff petition;

(b) De-capitalised Assets after the date of commercial operation on account of
replacement or removal on account of obsolescence or shifting from one project to
another project:

Provided that in case replacement of transmission asset is recommended by State
Transmission Utility, such asset shall be decapitalised only after its redeployment;

Provided further that unless shifting of an asset from one project to another is of
permanent nature, there shall be no de-capitalization of the concerned assets.

(c) In case of hydro generating stations, any expenditure incurred or committed to be
incurred by a project developer for getting the project site allotted by the State
Government by following a transparent process;

(d) Proportionate cost of land of the existing project which is being used for generating
power from generating station based on renewable energy; and

(e) Any consumer contribution or grant received from the Central or State Government
or any statutory body or authority for the execution of the project, which does not carry
any liability of repayment.

The capital cost admitted by the Commission after prudence check shall form the basis
for determination of Tariff:

Provided that prudence check may include scrutiny of the reasonableness of the capital
expenditure, financing plan including the choice and manner of funding, interest during
construction, use of efficient technology, cost over-run and time over-run, and such other
matters as may be considered appropriate by the Commission for determination of Tariff:

¥R
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Provided further that the entire gain to the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC
on account of variations in capitalisation, in terms of variation in Interest and Finance
Charges, Return on Equity, and Depreciation, shall be passed on as a rebate in Tariff
over such period as may be stipulated in the Order of the Commission after prudence
check:

Provided also that the loss to the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC on
account of variations in capitalisation, in terms of variation in Interest and Finance
Charges, Return on Equity, and Depreciation, shall be shared between the Generating
Company or Licensee or MSLDC and the respective Beneficiary or consumer in the
manner stipulated by the Commission in its Order after prudence check.

The approved capital cost shall be considered for determination of Tariff, and any
escalation in the capital cost for which sufficient justification is provided may be
considered by the Commission subject to prudence check and in accordance with the
conditions and methodology specified in Regulation 39:

Provided that, in case the actual capital cost is lower than the approved capital cost, the
actual capital cost, subject to prudence check and in accordance with the conditions and
methodology specified in Regulation 39 for the capital cost of new generating
Unit/Station, shall be considered for determination of Tariff of the Generating Company.

The capital cost of the concerned asset/s shall be considered after deducting the amount
of accumulated depreciation computed till the period of asset utilisation for unregulated
business or for the period the assets remain unutilised, for the purpose of tariff

determination, in the following instances:

a) The asset/s have been used for a period of time for unregulated business or the asset/s
have become part of the asset base of the regulated business after lapse of time with
respect to the COD of the asset;

b) If the asset has not been put to use for the regulated business after COD.

The actual capital expenditure on a scheme as on COD for the original scope of work
based on audited accounts of the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC or
Project, as the case may be, shall be considered subject to prudence check by the

Commission.

The Commission may approve, for each year of the Control Period, an additional amount
equivalent to 20% of the total capital expenditure approved for that year, towards

planned or unplanned capital expenditure that is yet to be approved by the Commission.

The cumulative amount of capitalisation against non-DPR schemes for any Year shall

not exceed 20% or such other limit as may be stipulated by the Commission through an
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Order, of the cumulative amount of capitalisation approved against DPR schemes for
that Year:

Provided that the Commission may allow capitalisation against non-DPR schemes for
any Year in excess of 20% or such other limit as may have been stipulated by the
Commission through Order, on a request made by the Generating Company or Licensee
or MSLDC:

Provided further that the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC should ensure
that expenses that would normally be classified as O&M expenses are not categorised
under non-DPR schemes.

Where the power purchase agreement or bulk power transmission agreement provides
for a ceiling on capital cost, the capital cost to be considered shall not exceed such
ceiling.

The revenue earned from sale of infirm power prior to the COD in excess of fuel cost as
specified under Regulation 44, shall be adjusted against the Capital Cost.

24.10 The capital cost may include initial spares capitalised as a percentage of the Plant and

Machinery cost up to the cut-off date, subject to the following ceiling norms:
(a) Coal based/lignite fired Generating Stations: 4.0%;
(b)  Gas turbine/combined cycle Generating Stations: 4.0%;

(c) Hydel Generating Stations, including pumped storage
hydel generating Stations: 4.0%;

(d) Transmission System and Distribution System
(i) Transmission Line & Distribution Line: 1.0%;

(i) Transmission sub-Station & Distribution sub-Station

(green-field): 4.0%;
(iii) Transmission sub-Station (brown-field): 6.0%;
(iv) Series compensation devices and HVDC sub-Station: 4.0%;
(v) Gas Insulated sub-Station (GIS): 5.0%;
(vi) Communication System: 3.5%;
(vii) Static Synchronous Compensator: 6.0%.

24.11 The impact of revaluation of assets shall be permitted provided it does not result in

increase in Tariff of the Generating Company or Licensee:

¥R
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Provided that any benefit from such revaluation shall be passed on to persons sharing
the capacity charge in case of a Generating Company, to long-term intra-State open
access customers of the Transmission Licensee or Distribution Licensee or retail supply
consumers of Distribution Licensees, at the time of MYT Tariff determination or Mid-

term Review or final Truing-up for the Control Period, as the case may be.

24.12 Any expenditure on replacement, renovation and modernisation or extension of life of

25
25.1

old fixed assets, as applicable to Generating Companies or Licensees, shall be considered
after writing off the net value of such replaced assets from the original capital cost, and
shall be computed as follows:

Net Value of Replaced Assets = OCRA — AD;
Where;
OCRA: Original Capital Cost of Replaced Assets;
AD: Accumulated depreciation pertaining to the Replaced Assets:

Provided that, in case the original capital cost of the replaced asset is not available for
any reason, it shall be considered by the Commission on a case to case basis:

Provided further that the amount of insurance proceeds received, if any, towards damage
to any asset requiring its replacement shall be first adjusted towards outstanding actual
or normative loan; and the balance amount, if any, shall be utilised to reduce the capital
cost of such replaced asset, and any further balance amount shall be considered as Non-
Tariff Income.

Explanation — For the purpose of this Regulation, the term ‘renovation and
modernisation' shall have the same meaning as in Section 80 IA of the Income-Tax Act,
1961.

Additional Capitalisation

The capital expenditure, actually incurred or projected to be incurred, on the following
counts within the original scope of work, after the date of commercial operation and up

to the cut-off date, may be admitted by the Commission subject to prudence check:

(1)  Undischarged liabilities recognized to be payable at a future date;

(i)  Works deferred for execution;

(ii1) Procurement of initial capital spares within the original scope of work, in
accordance with the provisions of Regulation 24;

(iv) Liabilities to meet award of arbitration or for compliance of directions or order
of any statutory authority or order or decree of any court of law; and
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(v)  Change in law or compliance of any existing law; and

(vi) Force majeure events:
Provided that the details of works included in the original scope of work along with
estimates of expenditure, liabilities recognized to be payable at a future date and the
works deferred for execution shall be submitted along with the Petition for
determination of final Tariff after the date of commercial operation of the Generating
Unit/Station or transmission system.

25.2 The capital expenditure incurred or projected to be incurred in respect of a new Project
on the following counts within the original scope of work after the cut-off date may be

admitted by the Commission, subject to prudence check:

(i) Liabilities to meet award of arbitration or for compliance of directions or order of
any statutory authority or order or decree of any court of law;

(i) Change in law or compliance of any existing law;

(iii) Deferred works relating to ash pond or ash handling system in the original scope
of work;

(iv) Any liability for works executed prior to the cut-off date, after prudence check of
the details of such undischarged liability, total estimated cost of package, reasons
for such withholding of payment and release of such payments, etc.;

(v) Any additional capital expenditure which has become necessary for efficient
operation:

Provided that the claim shall be substantiated with the technical justification duly
supported by documentary evidence like test results carried out by an independent
agency in case of deterioration of assets, damage caused by natural calamities,
obsolescence of technology, up-gradation of capacity for the technical reason such
as increase in fault level:

Provided further that the approval of additional capital expenditure for efficient
operation shall be subject to submission of report on impact assessment done by
any reputed third-party technical expert/agency on the benefits realised from
previous investments under this head in the last five years;

(vi) Force majeure events;

(vii) Liability for works admitted by the Commission after the cut-off date to the extent
of discharge of such liabilities by actual payments; and

(viii) Raising of ash dyke as a part of ash disposal system:

Provided that in case of replacement of assets deployed under the original scope of the

existing project after cut-off date, the additional capitalization may be admitted by the

Commission, subject to prudence check on the following grounds:

a) The useful life of the assets is not commensurate with the useful life of the project

and such assets have been fully depreciated in accordance with the provisions of
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b)

c)

d)

these Regulations;

The replacement of the asset or equipment is necessary on account of change in law
or Force Majeure conditions;

The replacement of such asset or equipment is necessary on account of
obsolescence of technology; and

The replacement of such asset or equipment has otherwise been allowed by the
Commission.

25.3 The capital expenditure, in respect of existing generating Station or the transmission

system including communication system, incurred or projected to be incurred on the

following counts beyond the original scope, may be admitted by the Commission,

subject to prudence check:

(1)
(i1)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)

(vi)

Liabilities to meet award of arbitration or for compliance of the order or directions
of any statutory authority or order or decree of any court of law;

Change in law or compliance of any existing law;

Force majeure events;

Need for higher security and safety of the plant as advised or directed by appropriate
Indian Government Instrumentality or statutory authorities responsible for national
or internal security;

Deferred works relating to ash pond or ash handling system in addition to the
original scope of work, on case to case basis;

Usage of water from sewage treatment plant in thermal generating station:

Provided that any expenditure, which has been claimed under Renovation and

Modernisation or repairs and maintenance under O&M expenses, shall not be claimed

under this Regulation.

25.4 The additional capital expenditure required to be undertaken by the existing generating

station for compliance of the Revised Emissions Standards, may be admitted by the

Commission, subject to prudence check based on the following details to be submitted

by the Generating Company:

(@)

(i)
(iii)
(iv)
W)
(vi)
(vii)

details of proposed technology as specified by the Central Electricity Authority or
alternative technology based on appropriate justification;

scope of work;

phasing of expenditure;

schedule of completion;

estimated completion cost including foreign exchange component, if any;
detailed computation of indicative impact on tariff to the beneficiaries; and

any other information considered to be relevant by the Generating Company:

Provided that the Commission may grant approval after due consideration of the
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reasonableness of the cost estimates, financing plan, schedule of completion, interest
during construction, use of efficient technology, cost-benefit analysis, and such other
factors, as may be considered relevant by the Commission.

25.5 Impact of additional capitalisation on Tariff, if any, shall be considered during the
subsequent tariff determination process.

26  Consumer Contribution, Deposit Work, Grant and Capital Subsidy

26.1 The expenses on the following categories of works carried out by the Generating
Company or Licensee or MSLDC shall be treated as specified in Regulation 26.2:

(a) Works undertaken from funds, partly or fully, provided by the users, which are in
the nature of deposit works or consumer contribution works;

(b) Capital works undertaken with grants or capital subsidy received from the State
and Central Governments;

(c) Other works undertaken with funding received without any obligation of
repayment and with no interest costs.

26.2 The expenses on such capital works shall be treated as follows:-
(a) normative O&M expenses as specified in these Regulations shall be allowed;

(b) the debt:equity ratio, shall be considered in accordance with Regulation 27, after

deducting the amount of such financial support received,;

(c) provisions related to depreciation, as specified in Regulation 28, shall not be
applicable to the extent of such financial support received;

(d) provisions related to return on equity, as specified in Regulation 29 shall not be
applicable to the extent of such financial support received;

(e) provisions related to interest on loan capital, as specified in Regulation 30 shall
not be applicable to the extent of such financial support received.

27  Debt-equity ratio

27.1 For a capital investment Scheme declared under commercial operation on or after April
1, 2020, debt-equity ratio as on the date of commercial operation shall be 70:30 of the
amount of capital cost approved by the Commission under Regulation 24, after prudence
check for determination of Tariff:

Provided that the equity investment to be considered in any year shall not exceed the
difference between the sum of cumulative return on equity allowed by the Commission
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in previous years, efficiency gains and losses, incentives and disincentives, and income
earned from investment of return on equity, and the cumulative equity investment
approved by the Commission in previous years, unless the Generating Company or
Licensee or MSLDC submits documentary evidence for the actual deployment of equity
and explain the source of funds for the equity:

Provided further that the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC shall substantiate
such investment of return on equity and income thereon through documentary evidence:

Provided also that if the equity actually deployed is more than 30% of the capital cost,
equity in excess of 30% shall be treated as normative loan for the Generating Company
or Licensee or MSLDC for determination of Tariff:

Provided also that where equity actually deployed is less than 30% of the capital cost of
the capitalised asset, the actual equity shall be considered for determination of Tariff:

Provided also that the equity invested in foreign currency shall be designated in Indian
rupees on the date of each investment.

Explanation.- The premium, if any, raised by the Generating Company or the Licensee
while issuing share capital and investment of internal resources created out of its free
reserves, for the funding of the Scheme, shall be reckoned as paid up capital for the
purpose of computing return on equity, provided such premium amount and internal
resources are actually utilised for meeting the capital expenditure of the Generating
Station or the transmission system or the distribution system, and are within the ceiling
of 30% of capital cost approved by the Commission.

In case of the Generating Company or Licensee, if any fixed asset is capitalised on
account of capital expenditure Scheme prior to April 1, 2020, the debt-equity ratio
allowed by the Commission for determination of Tariff for the period ending March 31,
2020 shall be considered:

Provided that in case of retirement or replacement or de-capitalisation of the assets, the
balance equity capital invested in the regulated Business approved in accordance with
Regulation 27.1, shall be deducted from the regulatory equity of the Business:

Provided further that in case of retirement or replacement or de-capitalisation of the
assets, the debt capital approved as mentioned above, shall be reduced to the extent of
outstanding debt component based on documentary evidence, or the outstanding
normative loan component, as the case may be, of the original cost of such assets.

Any expenditure incurred or projected to be incurred on or after April 1, 2020, as may
be admitted by the Commission as additional capital expenditure for determination of
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Tariff, and renovation and modernisation expenditure for life extension, shall be serviced

in the manner specified in this Regulation.

Depreciation

The Generating Company, Licensee, and MSLDC shall be permitted to recover

depreciation on the value of fixed assets used in their respective Businesses, computed

in the following manner:

(a)

(b)

(©

The approved original cost of the fixed assets shall be the value base for calculation
of depreciation:

Provided that the depreciation shall be allowed on the entire capitalised amount of
the new assets after reducing the approved original cost of the retired or replaced
or de-capitalised assets.

Depreciation shall be computed annually based on the straight line method at the
rates specified in the Annexure I to these Regulations:

Provided that the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC shall ensure that
once the individual asset is depreciated to the extent of seventy percent, remaining
depreciable value as on 31% March of the year closing shall be spread over the
balance Useful Life of the asset including the Extended Life, as provided in this
Regulation:

Provided further that the Generating Company or Licensee or SLDC shall submit
all such details or documentary evidence as may be required, to substantiate the
above claims.

The salvage value of the asset shall be considered at 10 per cent of the allowable
capital cost and depreciation shall be allowed upto a maximum of ninety per cent
of the allowable capital cost of the asset:

Provided that the Generating Company or Licensee or SLDC shall submit
certification from the Statutory Auditor for the capping of depreciation at ninety
per cent of the allowable capital cost of the asset:

Provided further that the salvage value of Information Technology equipment and
computer software shall be considered at O per cent of the allowable capital cost.

28.2 Land other than the land held under lease and the land for reservoir in case of hydel

Generating Station shall not be a depreciable asset and its cost shall be excluded from

the capital cost while computing depreciable value of the assets.
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In case of existing assets, the balance depreciable value as on April 1, 2020, shall be
worked out by deducting the cumulative depreciation as admitted by the Commission up
to March 31, 2020, from the gross depreciable value of the assets:

Provided that depreciation shall be chargeable from the first year of commercial

operation.

In case of projected commercial operation of the assets for part of the year, depreciation
shall be computed based on the average of opening and closing value of assets.

Depreciation shall be re-computed for assets capitalised at the time of Truing-up along
with the Mid-term Review or at the end of the Control Period, based on documentary
evidence of assets capitalised by the Petitioner, subject to the prudence check of the
Commission, such that the depreciation is allowed proportionately from the date of
capitalisation.

The Generating Company or Licensee or SLDC shall submit the depreciation
computations separately for assets added upto March 31, 2020 and assets added on or
after April 1, 2020.

Return on Equity

Return on Equity for the Generating Company, Transmission Licensee, Distribution
Wires Business and MSLDC shall be allowed on the equity capital determined in
accordance with Regulation 27 for the assets put to use, at the rate of up to 15.5 per cent
per annum in Indian Rupee terms, and for the Retail Supply Business, Return on Equity
shall be allowed on the amount of equity capital determined in accordance with
Regulation 27 at the rate of up to 17.5 per cent per annum in Indian Rupee terms:

Provided that Return on Equity shall be allowed in two parts viz. Base Return on Equity,
and Additional Return on Equity linked to actual performance:

Provided further that Additional Return on Equity shall be allowed at time of truing up
for respective year based on actual performance, after prudence check of the

Commission:

Base Return on Equity for the Generating Company, Transmission Licensee,
Distribution Wires Business and MSLDC shall be allowed on the equity capital
determined in accordance with Regulation 27 for the assets put to use, at the rate of 14
per cent per annum in Indian Rupee terms, and for the Retail Supply Business, Return
on Equity shall be allowed on the amount of equity capital determined in accordance
with Regulation 27 at the rate of 15.5 per cent per annum in Indian Rupee terms:
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Provided that in case the Generation Company or Licensee or MSLDC claims Return on
Equity at a rate lower than the normative rate specified above for any particular year,
then such claim for lower Return on Equity shall be unconditional:

Provided further that such claim for lower Return on Equity shall be allowed subject to
the condition that the reduction in Return on Equity shall be foregone permanently for
that year and shall not be allowed to be recouped at the time of Mid-Term Review or

true-up as applicable.
The Base Return on Equity shall be computed in the following manner:

(a) Return at the allowable rate as per this Regulation, applied on the amount of
equity capital at the commencement of the Year; plus

(b) Return at the allowable rate as per this Regulation, applied on 50 per cent of
the equity capital portion of the allowable capital cost, for the investments put
to use in Generation Business or Transmission Business or Distribution
Business or MSLDC, for such Year:

Provided that Base Return on Equity in respect of additional capitalization after cut-off
date beyond the original scope excluding additional capitalization due to Change in Law
or revised emission standards, shall be computed at the weighted average rate of interest

on actual loan portfolio of the generating station or the transmission system.

In case of a new project, the rate of Return on Equity shall be reduced by 1.00% for such
period as may be decided by the Commission, if the generating station or transmission
system is found to be declared under commercial operation without commissioning of
any of the Restricted Governor Mode Operation (RGMO) or Free Governor Mode
Operation (FGMO), data telemetry, communication system up to load dispatch centre or
protection system based on the report submitted by the SLDC.

In case of existing generating station, as and when any of the requirements under
Regulation 29.4 are found lacking based on the report submitted by the SLDC, rate of
Return on Equity shall be reduced by 1.00% at the time of true-up, for the period for
which the deficiency continues.

In case of a thermal generating Unit, with effect from 1.4.2020, at the time of true-up:

a) an additional rate of Return on Equity of 0.25% shall be allowed for every
incremental ramp rate of 0.10% per minute achieved over and above the
ramp rate of 1% per minute, subject to ceiling of additional rate of Return
on Equity of 0.50%, for the year in which such ramp rate is achieved:

Provided that the additional rate of Return on Equity shall be allowed on
pro-rata basis for incremental ramp rate of more than 0.10% per minute.

M
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b) an additional rate of Return on Equity shall be allowed as per the following
schedule:

i.  0.50% for Unit that achieves Mean Time Between Failure (MTBF)
of at least 45 days;

ii.  0.75% for Unit that achieves Mean Time Between Failure (MTBF)
of at least 90 days;

iii.  1.00% for Unit that achieves Mean Time Between Failure (MTBF)
of at least 120 days:

Provided that the Mean Time Between Failure (MTBF) shall be computed as
provided in Annexure-III to these Regulations:

Provided further that the equity base for the respective Unit shall be considered
in proportion to the installed capacity of the generation station, in case the tariff
is determined for the generation station as a whole.

29.7 In case of Transmission, an additional rate of Return on Equity shall be allowed on
Transmission Availability, at time of truing up as per the following schedule:

a) For every 0.50% over-achievement in Transmission Availability up to
Transmission Availability of 99.50% for AC System and 96.50% for HVDC
bi-pole links and HVDC back-to-back stations, rate of return shall be
increased by 0.75%;

b) For every 0.25% over-achievement in Transmission Availability above
99.50% for AC System and 96.50% for HVDC bi-pole links and HVDC
back-to-back stations, rate of return shall be increased by 0.75%, subject to
ceiling of additional rate of Return on Equity of 1.50%;

Provided that the additional rate of Return on Equity shall be allowed on pro-
rata basis for incremental Availability higher than Target Availability:

Provided further that Target Availability for additional rate of Return on Equity
shall be as per Regulation 60.

29.8 In case of Distribution Wires Business, an additional rate of Return on Equity shall be

allowed on Wires Availability at the time of true-up as per the following schedule:

a) The target Wires Availability for recovery of base rate of return on equity
shall be 95 percent for MSEDCL and 98% for other Distribution Licensees;

b) Forevery 0.50% over-achievement in Wires Availability, rate of return shall
be increased by 0.50%, subject to ceiling of additional rate of Return on
Equity of 1.50%;
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c)

Wires Availability shall be computed in accordance with the following
formula:

Wires Availability = (1- (SAIDI / 8760)) x 100:

Provided that the System Average Interruption Duration Index (SAIDI)
shall be calculated in accordance with the definition specified in
Mabharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (Standards of Performance
of Distribution Licensees, Period for Giving Supply and Determination of
Compensation) Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time.

29.9 In case of Retail Supply Business, an additional rate of Return on Equity shall be allowed

30
30.1

30.2

30.3

at the time of true-up, as per the following schedule:

a)

b)

d)

If the percentage of assessed bills is less than 1.5% of the total number of
bills issued during the year, then rate of return shall be increased by 1%;

If the percentage of assessed bills is more than 1.5% of the total number of
bills issued during the year, for every 0.5% reduction in the percentage of
assessed billing, rate of return shall be increased by 0.25%, subject to ceiling
of additional rate of Return on Equity of 1.00%.

If overall collection efficiency for the year is above 99 %, then rate of return
shall be increased by 1%;

If overall collection efficiency for the year is below 99 %, for every 0.5%
improvement in the overall collection efficiency, rate of return shall be
increased by 0.25%, subject to ceiling of additional rate of Return on Equity
of 1.00%.

Interest on loan

The loans arrived at in the manner indicated in Regulation 27 on the assets put to use

shall be considered as gross normative loan for calculation of interest on loan:

Provided that in case of retirement or replacement or de-capitalisation of assets, the loan

capital approved as mentioned above, shall be reduced to the extent of outstanding loan

component of the original cost of such assets based on documentary evidence.

The normative loan outstanding as on April 1, 2020, shall be worked out by deducting

the cumulative repayment as admitted by the Commission up to March 31, 2020, from

the gross normative loan.

The loan repayment during each year of the Control Period from FY 2020-21 to FY

2024-25 shall be deemed to be equal to the depreciation allowed for that year.

MR
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Notwithstanding any moratorium period availed, the repayment of loan shall be
considered from the first year of commercial operation of the Scheme and shall be equal
to the annual depreciation allowed.

The rate of interest shall be the weighted average rate of interest computed on the basis
of the actual long-term loan portfolio at the beginning of each year:

Provided that at the time of Truing-up, the weighted average rate of interest computed
on the basis of the actual long-term loan portfolio during the concerned year shall be
considered as the rate of interest:

Provided further that if there is no actual long-term loan for a particular year but
normative long-term loan is still outstanding, the last available weighted average rate of
interest for actual long-term loan shall be considered:

Provided also that if the Generating Company or the Licensee or the MSLDC, as the
case may be, does not have actual long-term loan even in the past, the weighted average
rate of interest of its other Businesses regulated by the Commission shall be considered:

Provided also that if the Generating Company or the Licensee or the MSLDC, as the
case may be, does not have actual long-term loan, and its other Businesses regulated by
the Commission also do not have actual long-term loan even in the past, then the
weighted average rate of interest of the entity as a whole shall be considered:

Provided also that if the entity as a whole does not have actual long-term loan, then the
Base Rate at the beginning of the respective year shall be considered as the rate of
interest for the purpose of allowing the interest on the normative loan.

The interest on loan shall be computed on the normative average loan of the year by
applying the weighted average rate of interest:

Provided that at the time of Truing-up, the normative average loan of the concerned year
shall be considered on the basis of the actual asset capitalisation approved by the
Commission for the year.

The above interest computation shall exclude interest on loan amount, normative or
otherwise, to the extent of capital cost funded by Consumer Contribution, Deposit
Works, Grants or Capital Subsidy.

The finance charges incurred for obtaining loans from financial institutions for any Year
shall be allowed by the Commission at the time of Truing-up, subject to prudence check.

The excess interest during construction on account of time and/or cost overrun as
compared to the approved completion schedule and capital cost or on account of excess
drawal of the debt funds disproportionate to the actual requirement based on Scheme
completion status, shall be allowed or disallowed partly or fully on a case to case basis,
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after prudence check by the Commission based on the justification to be submitted by
the Generating Company or Transmission Licensee or Distribution Licensee along with
documentary evidence, as applicable:

Provided that where the excess interest during construction is on account of delay
attributable to an agency or contractor or supplier engaged by the Generating Entity or
the Transmission Licensee, any liquidated damages recovered from such agency or
contractor or supplier shall be taken into account for computation of capital cost:

Provided further that the extent of liquidated damages to be considered shall depend on
the amount of excess interest during construction that has been allowed by the
Commission:

Provided also that the Commission may also take into consideration the impact of time
overrun on the supply of electricity to the concerned Beneficiary/ies.

30.10 The Generating Company or the Licensee or the MSLDC, as the case may be, shall make
every effort to re-finance the loan as long as it results in net savings on interest and in
that event, the costs associated with such re-financing shall be borne by the Beneficiaries
and the net savings shall be shared between the Beneficiaries and them in the ratio of
2:1, subject to prudence check by the Commission:

Provided that refinancing shall not be done if it results in net increase on interest:

Provided further that if refinancing is done and it results in net increase on interest, then
the rate of interest shall be considered equal to the Base Rate as on the date on which the
Petition for determination of Tariff is filed:

Provided also that the re-financing shall not be subject to any adverse terms and
conditions and additional cost:

Provided also that the Generating Company or the Licensee or the MSLDC, as the case
may be, shall submit documentary evidence of the costs associated with such re-
financing:

Provided also that the net savings in interest shall be computed after factoring all the
terms and conditions, and based on the weighted average rate of interest of actual
portfolio of loans taken from Banks and Financial Institutions recognised by the Reserve
Bank of India for Indian institutions, before and after re-financing of loans:

Provided also that the net savings in interest shall be calculated as an annuity for the
term of the loan, and the annual net savings shall be shared between the entity and
Beneficiaries in the specified ratio.
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30.11 Interest shall be allowed only on the amount held in cash as security deposit from

31
31.1

31.2

31.3

32
32.1

Transmission System Users, Distribution System Users and Retail consumers at the
Bank Rate as on 1%April of the Year for which the interest is payable:

Provided that at the time of Truing-up, the interest on the amount of security deposit for
the year shall be considered on the basis of the actual interest paid by the Licensee during
the year, subject to prudence check by the Commission.

Foreign Exchange Rate Variation

The Generating Company or Licensee may hedge foreign exchange exposure in respect
of the interest on foreign currency loan and repayment of foreign loan acquired for the
generating Station or the transmission system or distribution system, in part or in full at

its discretion.

The Generating Company or Licensee shall be permitted to recover the cost of hedging
of foreign exchange rate variation corresponding to the foreign debt, in the relevant year
as expense, subject to prudence check by the Commission, and extra rupee liability
corresponding to such variation shall not be allowed against the hedged foreign debt.

To the extent that the foreign exchange exposure is not hedged, any extra rupee liability
towards interest payment and loan repayment corresponding to the foreign currency loan
in the relevant year shall be allowed subject to prudence check by the Commission,
provided it is not attributable to such Generating Company or the Licensee or its

suppliers or contractors.

Interest on Working Capital
Generation
(a) Incase of coal based/lignite-fired Generating Stations, working capital shall cover:

(i)  Cost of coal or lignite and limestone towards stock, if applicable, for fifteen
days for pit-head Generating Stations and thirty days for non-pit-head
Generating Stations, for generation corresponding to target availability, or
the maximum coal/lignite stock storage capacity, whichever is lower;

(i1))  Cost of coal or lignite and limestone for thirty days for generation

corresponding to target availability;

(iii))  Cost of secondary fuel oil for two months corresponding to target

availability;

(iv)  Normative Operation and Maintenance expenses for one month;
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(v)  Maintenance spares at one per cent of the opening Gross Fixed Assets for
the Year; and

(vi)  Receivables for sale of electricity equivalent to forty-five days of the sum of
annual fixed charges and energy charges approved in the Tariff Order for
ensuing year/s, computed at target availability and excluding incentive, if

any:
minus

(vii)  Payables for fuel (including oil and secondary fuel oil) to the extent of thirty
days of the cost of fuel computed at target availability, depending on the
modalities of payment:

Provided that in case the Fuel Supply Agreement provides for payment of cost of fuel
in advance, the payables for fuel shall not be deducted for the purpose of computing
the working capital requirement to the extent of actual payment of such advance, as

substantiated by documentary evidence:

Provided further that for the purpose of Truing-up, the working capital shall be
computed based on the scheduled generation or target availability of the generating
Station, whichever is lower:

Provided also that for the purpose of Truing up, the working capital shall be computed
based on the actual average stock of coal or lignite and limestone or normative stock
of coal or lignite and limestone of the generating Station, whichever is lower:

Provided also that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, the working capital
requirement shall be re-computed on the basis of the values of revised normative
Operation & Maintenance expenses and actual Revenue from sale of electricity
excluding incentive, if any, and other components of working capital approved by the
Commission in the Truing-up before sharing of gains and losses;

(b) In case of oil-fired Generating Stations, working capital shall cover:

(i) Cost of oil for thirty days towards stock, if applicable, for generation
corresponding to target availability, or the maximum oil stock storage

capacity, whichever is lower;
(i1))  Cost of oil for thirty days for generation corresponding to target availability;
(ii1))  Normative Operation and Maintenance expenses for one month,;

(iv)  Maintenance spares at one per cent of the opening Gross Fixed Assets for
the Year; and
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(v)  Receivables for sale of electricity equivalent to forty-five days of the sum of
annual fixed charges and energy charges approved in the Tariff Order for
ensuing year/s, computed on target availability and excluding incentive, if

any:
minus

(vi)  Payables for fuel to the extent of thirty days of the cost of fuel computed at
target availability, depending on the modalities of payment:

Provided that for the purpose of Truing-up, the working capital shall be computed
based on the scheduled generation or target availability of the generating Station,
whichever is lower:

Provided further that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, the working capital
requirement shall be re-computed on the basis of the values of revised normative
Operation & Maintenance expenses and actual Revenue from sale of electricity
excluding incentive, if any, and other components of working capital approved by the
Commission in the Truing-up before sharing of gains and losses;

(c) Incase of Open Cycle Gas Turbine/Combined Cycle Generating Stations, working

capital shall cover:

(i)  Fuel cost for thirty days corresponding to target availability duly taking into
account the mode of operation of the Generating Station on gas fuel and

liquid fuel;
(ii)  Liquid fuel stock for fifteen days corresponding to target availability;
(iii)  Normative Operation and maintenance expenses for one month;

(iv)  Maintenance spares at one per cent of the opening Gross Fixed Assets for
the Year; and

(v)  Receivables for sale of electricity equivalent to forty-five days of the sum of
annual fixed charges and energy charges approved in the Tariff Order for
ensuing year/s, computed on target availability and excluding incentive, if

any:
minus

(vi)  Payables for fuel (including liquid fuel stock) to the extent of thirty days of
the cost of fuel computed at target availability, depending on the modalities
of payment:
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Provided that for the purpose of Truing-up, the working capital shall be computed
based on the scheduled generation or target availability of the generating Station,

whichever is lower:

Provided further that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, the working capital
requirement shall be re-computed on the basis of the values of revised normative
Operation & Maintenance expenses and actual Revenue from sale of electricity
excluding incentive, if any, and other components of working capital approved by the
Commission in the Truing-up before sharing of gains and losses;

(d) In case of Hydro power Generating Stations including pumped storage hydel
electric generating Station, working capital shall cover:

(i) Normative Operation and maintenance expenses for one month;

(i)  Maintenance spares at one per cent of the opening Gross Fixed Assets for the
Year; and

(iii))  Receivables for sale of electricity equivalent to forty-five days of the annual
fixed charges for ensuing year/s, approved in the Tariff Order, computed on

normative capacity index and excluding incentive, if any:

Provided that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, the working capital
requirement shall be re-computed on the basis of the values of revised normative
Operation & Maintenance expenses and actual Revenue from sale of electricity
excluding incentive, if any, and other components of working capital approved by the
Commission in the Truing-up before sharing of gains and losses;

(e) In case of own Generating Stations of the Retail Supply Business, no amount shall
be allowed towards receivables, to the extent of supply of power by the Generation
Business to the Retail Supply Business, in the computation of working capital in
accordance with this Regulation.

(f) Rate of interest on working capital shall be on normative basis and shall be equal
to the Base Rate as on the date on which the Petition for determination of Tariff is
filed, plus 150 basis points:

Provided that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, interest on working capital
shall be allowed at a rate equal to the weighted average Base Rate prevailing during
the concerned Year plus 150 basis points.

32.2 Transmission
(a) The working capital requirement of the Transmission Licensee shall cover:

(i) Normative Operation and maintenance expenses for one month;
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(ii) Maintenance spares at one per cent of the opening Gross Fixed Assets for
the Year; and

(iii)) One and a half months equivalent of the expected revenue from
transmission charges at the Tariff approved in the Order for ensuing

year/s;
minus

(iv) Amount held as security deposits in cash, if any, from Transmission
System Users:

Provided further that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, the working
capital requirement shall be re-computed on the basis of the values of revised
normative Operation & Maintenance expenses and actual Revenue from
Transmission Charges excluding incentive, if any, and other components of
working capital approved by the Commission in the Truing-up before sharing of
gains and losses;

(b) Rate of interest on working capital shall be on normative basis and shall be equal

to the Base Rate as on the date on which the Petition for determination of Tariff is
filed, plus 150 basis points:

Provided that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, interest on working capital
shall be allowed at a rate equal to the weighted average Base Rate prevailing during
the concerned Year plus 150 basis points.

32.3 Distribution Wires Business

(a) The working capital requirement of the Distribution Wires Business shall

cover:
(i)  Normative Operation and maintenance expenses for one month;

(il)  Maintenance spares at one per cent of the opening Gross Fixed Assets for
the Year; and

(iii))  One and half months equivalent of the expected revenue from charges for
use of Distribution Wires at the Tariff approved by the Commission for

ensuing year/s;
minus
(iv)  Amount held as security deposits in cash from Distribution System Users:

Provided further that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, the working
capital requirement shall be re-computed on the basis of the values of revised
normative Operation & Maintenance expenses and actual Revenue from sale of
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electricity excluding incentive, if any, and other components of working capital

approved by the Commission in the Truing-up before sharing of gains and losses;

(b) Rate of interest on working capital shall be on normative basis and shall be

equal to the Base Rate as on the date on which the Petition for determination

of Tariff is filed, plus 150 basis points:

Provided that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, interest on working

capital shall be allowed at a rate equal to the weighted average Base Rate

prevailing during the concerned Year plus 150 basis points.

32.4 Retail Supply of Electricity

(a) The working capital requirement of the Retail Supply Business shall cover:

®
(i)

(iii)

(iv)
V)

Normative Operation and maintenance expenses for one month;

Maintenance spares at one per cent of the opening Gross Fixed Assets for
the Year; and

One and half months equivalent of the expected revenue from sale of
electricity at the Tariff approved by the Commission for ensuing yeat/s,
and including revenue from cross-subsidy surcharge and additional
surcharge, if any;

minus
Amount held as security deposits in cash from retail supply consumers;

One month equivalent of cost of power purchased, including the
Transmission Charges and SLDC Charges, based on the annual power
procurement plan:

Provided that in case of power procurement from own Generating
Stations of the Retail Supply Business, no amount shall be reduced from
working capital requirement towards payables, to the extent of supply of
power by the Generation Business to the Retail Supply Business, in the

computation of working capital in accordance with these Regulations:

Provided further that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, the working

capital requirement shall be re-computed on the basis of the values of revised

normative Operation & Maintenance expenses and actual Revenue from sale of

electricity excluding incentive, if any, and other components of working capital

approved by the Commission in the Truing-up before sharing of gains and losses;

WR
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(b) Rate of interest on working capital shall be on normative basis and shall be
equal to the Base Rate as on the date on which the Petition for determination

of Tariff is filed, plus 150 basis points:

Provided that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, interest on working
capital shall be allowed at a rate equal to the weighted average Base Rate

prevailing during the concerned Year plus 150 basis points.

32.5 MSLDC

(a)  The working capital requirement of the MSLDC shall cover:

(i)  Operation and maintenance expenses for one month;

(i1))  One and a half months equivalent of the expected revenue from levy of
Annual Fixed Charges approved by the Commission for ensuing year/s:

Provided further that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, the working
capital requirement shall be re-computed on the basis of the values of revised
normative Operation & Maintenance expenses and actual Revenue from sale
of electricity excluding incentive, if any, and other components of working
capital approved by the Commission in the Truing-up before sharing of gains

and losses;

(b) Rate of interest on working capital shall be on normative basis and shall be
equal to the Base Rate as on the date on which the Petition for determination

of Fees and Charges is filed, plus 150 basis points:

Provided that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, interest on working
capital shall be allowed at a rate equal to the weighted average Base Rate

prevailing during the concerned Year plus 150 basis points.

32.6 For the purpose of Truing-up for each year, the variation between the normative interest
on working capital computed at the time of Truing-up and the actual interest on working
capital incurred by the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC, substantiated by
documentary evidence, shall be considered as an efficiency gain or efficiency loss, as
the case may be, on account of controllable factors, and shared between it and the

respective Beneficiary/ies or consumer as the case may be, in accordance with

Regulation 11:

Provided that the Delayed Payment Surcharge and Interest on Delayed Payment as per
books of accounts of the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC shall be deducted
from the actual interest on working capital, before sharing of the efficiency gain or

efficiency loss, as the case may be:
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Provided also that if actual interest on working capital exceeds the normative interest on
working capital, then the interest expenses incurred for funding of Regulatory Assets
approved by the Commission shall be deducted from the actual interest on working
capital, before sharing of the efficiency gain or efficiency loss, as the case may be.

Carrying Cost or Holding Cost

Commission shall allow Carrying Cost or Holding Cost, as the case may be, on the

admissible amounts, with simple interest, at the weighted average Base Rate prevailing during

the concerned Year, plus 150 basis points:

Provided that Carrying Cost or Holding Cost shall be allowed on the net entitlement after

sharing of efficiency gains and losses as approved after true-up:

Provided further that in case of Distribution Licensees, the Incentive on account of Distribution

Losses, as applicable, shall be deducted from the net entitlement, for the purpose of computing

Carrying Cost or Holding Cost.

34
34.1

Income Tax

The Income Tax for the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC for the regulated
business shall be allowed on Return on Equity, including Additional Return on Equity
through the Tariff charged to the Beneficiary/ies, subject to the conditions stipulated in
Regulations 34.2 to 34.6:

Provided that no Income Tax shall be considered on the amount of efficiency gains and
incentive approved by the Commission, irrespective of whether or not the amount of
such efficiency gains and incentive are billed separately:

Provided further that no Income Tax shall be considered on the amount of income from
Delayed Payment Charges or Interest on Delayed Payment or Income from Other
Business, as well as on the income from any source that has not been considered for
computing the Aggregate Revenue Requirement:

Provided also that the Income Tax shall be computed for the Generating Company as a
whole, and not Unit-wise/Station-wise:

Provided also that the deferred tax liability only before March 31, 2020 shall be allowed
by the Commission, whenever they get materialised, after prudence check.

RER
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The rate of Return on Equity, including additional rate of Return on Equity as allowed
by the Commission under Regulation 29 of these Regulations shall be grossed up with
the effective tax rate of respective financial year.

The base rate of return on equity shall be rounded off to three decimal places and shall
be computed as per the formula given below:

Rate of pre-tax return on equity = Base rate of Return on Equity / (1-t),

Where “t” is the effective tax rate

The effective tax rate shall be considered on the basis of actual tax paid in respect of
financial year in line with the provisions of the relevant Finance Acts by the concerned
Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC, as the case may be:

Provided that, in case of the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC has engaged
in any other regulated or unregulated Business or Other Business, the actual tax paid on
income from any other regulated or unregulated Business or Other Business shall be
excluded for the calculation of effective tax rate:

Provided further that effective tax rate shall be estimated for future year based on actual
tax paid as per latest available Audited accounts, subject to prudence check.

In case of Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC paying Minimum Alternate Tax
(MAT), “t” shall be considered as MAT rate including surcharge and cess:

Illustration:-

(a) In case of a Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC paying Minimum
Alternate Tax (MAT) at rate of 21.55% including surcharge and cess:

Base rate of return on equity = 15.50/(1-0.2155) = 19.758%

(b) In case of Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC paying normal corporate
tax including surcharge and cess:

(i) Estimated Gross Income of Company as a whole for FY 2020-21 is Rs. 1,000

crore;
(i1) Income Tax for the year on above is Rs 240 crore;

(iii) Effective Tax Rate for the year 2019-20 = Rs 240 Crore/Rs 1000 Crore =
24%;

(iv) Base rate of return on equity = 15.50/ (1-0.24) = 20.395%.

Variation between the Income Tax estimated by the Commission for future year during
MYT Order and Mid Term Review Order and the Income Tax approved by the
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Commission for the respective Year after truing up for respective year, shall be allowed
for recovery as part of the Aggregate Revenue Requirement at the time of Mid-term
Review or Truing-up, subject to prudence check:

Income Tax on any income stream from sources other than the Business regulated by the
Commission shall not constitute a pass-through component in Tariff, and Income Tax
on such other income shall be borne by the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC,

as the case may be.
Contribution to Contingency Reserves

Where the Licensee has made a contribution to the Contingency Reserve, a sum not less
than 0.25 per cent and not more than 0.5 per cent of the original cost of fixed assets shall
be allowed annually towards such contribution in the calculation of Aggregate Revenue

Requirement:

Provided that where the amount of such Contingency Reserves exceeds five (5) per cent
of the original cost of fixed assets, no further contribution shall be allowed:

Provided further that such contribution shall be invested in securities authorised under
the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 within a period of six months of the close of the Year:

Provided also that if the Licensee does not invest the amount of contribution to
Contingency Reserves in authorised securities within a period of six months of the close
of the Year, then the contribution allowed in the calculation of Aggregate Revenue
Requirement shall be disallowed at the time of true-up:

Provided also that if the Licensee does not invest the amount of contribution to
Contingency Reserves in authorised securities for two consecutive Years, then the
contribution to Contingency Reserves shall not be allowed in the calculation of
Aggregate Revenue Requirement from the subsequent Year onwards.

The Contingency Reserve shall not be drawn upon during the term of the Licence except
to meet such charges on account of:

(a) Expenses or loss of profits arising out of accidents, strikes or circumstances
which the management could not have prevented,

(b)  Expenses on replacement or removal of plant or works other than expenses
requisite for normal maintenance or renewal,

(c) Compensation payable under any law for the time being in force and for which

no other provision is made:
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Provided that the Distribution Licensee shall obtain the Commission's post-facto
approval for drawal of Contingency Reserve by submitting the necessary justification
for the drawal of Contingency Reserve along with documentary evidence.

No diminution in the value of Contingency Reserve as mentioned above shall be allowed
to be adjusted as a part of Tariff.

Rebate, Incentive, and Penalties

For payment of bills of generation Tariff or transmission charges or MSLDC Fees and
Charges within 7 days of presentation of bills, through Letter of Credit or otherwise or
through NEFT/RTGS, a rebate of 1% on billed amount, excluding the taxes, cess, duties,
etc., shall be allowed.

For payment of bills of retail Tariff by the consumers within 7 days of issue of bills, a
rebate of 1% on the billed amount, excluding the taxes, cess, duties, etc., shall be
allowed.

A discount on the monthly bill (excluding taxes and duties) shall be provided to Low
Tension category consumers for payment of electricity bills through various modes of
digital payment such as credit cards, debit cards, UPI, BHIM, internet banking, mobile
banking, mobile wallets, etc.:

Provided that the rate of such discount shall be stipulated by the Commission in the
relevant Tariff Order.

All rebates or incentives earned by the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC
shall be considered under its Non-Tariff Income, while all rebates or incentives given by
the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC shall be allowed as an expense for the
Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC.

Penalties paid, if any, by the Generating Company or Licensee shall not be allowed as
an expense for the Generating Company or Licensee.

Delayed Payment Charge and Interest on Delayed Payment

In case the payment of bills of generation Tariff or transmission charges or MSLDC Fees
and Charges by the Beneficiary is delayed beyond a period of 30 days from the date of
billing, Delayed Payment Charge on simple interest basis at the Base Rate as on 1% of
the respective month plus 350 basis points per annum on the billed amount shall be levied
for the period of delay by the Generating Company or the Transmission Licensee or
MSLDC, as the case may be, notwithstanding anything to the contrary as may have been
stipulated in the Agreement or Arrangement with the Beneficiaries.
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37.2 In case the payment of bills of retail Tariff by the consumers is delayed beyond a period
of 15 days for High Tension consumers and Extra High Tension consumers and 21 days
for Low Tension consumers from the date of billing, Delayed Payment Charge on the
billed amount, including the taxes, cess, duties, etc., shall be levied on simple interest
basis at the rate of 1.25% on the billed amount for the first month of delay:

Provided that for delay in payment of bills of retail Tariff beyond 60 days and up to 90
days from the date of billing, Interest on Delayed Payment on the billed amount,
including the Delayed Payment Charges, taxes, cess, duties, etc., shall be levied on
simple interest basis at the rate of 12% per annum:

Provided further that for delay in payment of bills of retail Tariff beyond 90 days from
the date of billing, Interest on Delayed Payment on the billed amount, including the
Delayed Payment Charges, taxes, cess, duties, etc., shall be levied on simple interest
basis at the rate of 15% per annum.

37.3 Such Delayed Payment Charge and Interest on Delayed Payment earned by the
Generating Company or the Licensee shall not be considered under its Non-Tariff
Income.

37.4 Such Delayed Payment Charge paid or payable by the Distribution Licensee to the
Generating Company or the Transmission Licensee shall not be allowed as an expense
for such Distribution Licensee.

PART E: GENERATION

38  Applicability

38.1 The Regulations specified in this Part shall apply to the determination of Tariff for
supply of electricity to a Distribution Licensee from conventional sources of generation
and hydel generating stations of capacity exceeding 25 MW:

Provided that determination of Tariff for supply of electricity to a Distribution Licensee
from Renewable Energy sources of generation shall be in accordance with terms and
conditions specified in the relevant Regulations of the Commission.

38.2 The Commission shall be guided by the terms and conditions contained in this Part in
determining the Tariff for supply of electricity by a Generating Company to a
Distribution Licensee, in the following cases:

a) where such Tariff is pursuant to a power purchase agreement or arrangement
entered into subsequent to the date of coming into effect of these Regulations; or
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b) where such Tariff is pursuant to a power purchase agreement or arrangement
entered into prior to the date of coming into effect of these Regulations, and the
Commission has approved such agreement or arrangement and the agreement or
arrangement envisages that the Tariff shall be based on the Tariff Regulations

prevailing at that time; or

c¢) where the Distribution Licensee is engaged in the Business of generation of
electricity, in determining the transfer price at which electricity is supplied by the
Generation Business of the Distribution Licensee to its Retail Supply Business.

Petition for determination of Generation Tariff

A Generating Company shall file a Petition for determination of Tariff for supply of
electricity to Distribution Licensees in accordance with the provisions of Part B of these
Regulations.

Tariff in respect of a Generating Station under these Regulations may be determined
Stage-wise, Unit-wise or for the whole Generating Station:

Provided that the terms and conditions for determination of Tariff for Generating
Stations specified in this Part shall apply in like manner to Stages or Units or the
Generating Station, as the case may be.

Where the Tariff is being determined for a Stage or Unit of a Generating Station, the
Generating Company shall adopt a reasonable basis for allocation of capital cost relating
to common facilities and allocation of joint and common costs across all Stages or Units,
as the case may be:

Provided that the Generating Company shall maintain an Allocation Statement providing
the basis for allocation of such costs, which shall be duly audited and certified by the
statutory auditors, and submit such audited and certified statement to the Commission
along with the Petition for determination of Tariff.

In the case of existing generating Stations/Units, the Commission may allow the
Generating Company; the Tariff based on the approved capital cost as on April 1, 2020
and projected additional capital expenditure for the ensuing Years:

Provided that the Generating Company shall continue to bill the Beneficiaries at the
Tariff approved by the Commission and applicable as on March 31, 2020 for the period
starting from April 1, 2020 till approval of Tariff by the Commission in accordance with
these Regulations.

The Generating Company shall file the Petition for determination of provisional Tariff
for new Generating Station, at least two months prior to the anticipated date of
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commercial operation of Generating Unit or Stage or Generating Station as a whole, as
the case may be.

The Generating Company shall file a Petition for determination of provisional Tariff for
new Generating Station based on capital expenditure incurred and projected to be
incurred up to the date of commercial operation and additional capital expenditure
incurred, duly certified by the statutory auditors:

Provided that the Petition shall contain details of underlying assumptions for the
projected capital cost and additional capital cost, wherever applicable.

In the case of new projects, the Generating Company may be allowed provisional Tariff
by the Commission from the anticipated date of commercial operation, based on the
projected capital expenditure, subject to prudence check.

If the date of commercial operation is likely to be delayed beyond six months from the
date of issue of the order approving the provisional Tariff, the Generating Company may
submit a Petition for seeking extension of the validity of the applicability of the
provisional Tariff, giving details of the present status of completion and justification for
the delay in project completion, which may be considered by the Commission after
necessary prudence check.

The Generating Company shall file the Petition for determination of final Tariff for new
Generating Station within six months from the date of commercial operation of
Generating Unit or Stage or Generating Station as a whole, as the case may be, based on
the audited capital expenditure and capitalisation as on the date of commercial operation:

Provided that in case of more than one Unit in the Generating Station, such Petition shall
be filed for each Unit as and when such Unit achieves COD and without waiting for the
COD of the entire Station.

39.10 The final Tariff determination for the new Generating Station shall be done by the

Commission based on prudence check of the audited capital expenditure and
capitalisation as on the date of commercial operation.

39.11 Where the actual Capital Cost incurred on year to year basis is less than the Capital Cost

approved for determination of provisional Tariff by the Commission, by five percent or
more, the Generating Company shall refund to the Beneficiaries the excess Tariff
realised corresponding to excess Capital Cost, along with interest at the Base Rate, as
prevalent on the first day of April of the respective Year, plus 150 basis points.

39.12 Where the actual Capital Cost incurred on year to year basis is more than the Capital

Cost approved for determination of provisional Tariff by the Commission, by five
percent or more, the Generating Company shall, subject to the approval of the

QTR
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Commission, recover from the Beneficiaries the shortfall in Tariff corresponding to such
decrease in Capital Cost, along with interest at the Base Rate, as prevalent on the first
day of April of the respective Year, plus 150 basis points.

39.13 In relation to multi-purpose hydroelectric Projects, with irrigation, flood control and

40
40.1

40.2

40.3

power components, the capital cost chargeable to the power component of the Project
only shall be considered for determination of Tariff.

Fuel Utilisation Plan

The Generating Company shall prepare and submit Fuel Utilisation Plan for the Control
Period commencing on April 1, 2020, along with the Petition for determination of Tariff
for the Control Period from April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2025, in accordance with Part
A of these Regulations, to the Commission for approval.

The Fuel Utilisation Plan should ensure that fuel quantum is allocated to different
generating Stations/Units in accordance with the merit order of different generation
Stations/Units in terms of variable cost:

Provided that the fuel allocation should be such that, subject to system and other
constraints, the least cost generating Stations/Units are operated at maximum availability
and other generating Stations/Units are operated at maximum availability thereafter in
the ascending order of variable cost

The Fuel Utilisation Plan shall comprise the following:
(a)  Forecast of fuel requirement for each unit/station;

(b) Details of contracted source, annual contracted quantity, estimated availability
from contracted sources and resultant shortage of fuel, if any, for each
unit/station;

(¢) Use of optimum mix of fuel,;

(d) Alternate arrangement for meeting shortage of fuel along with impact on variable
cost of unit/station;

(e) Plan for swapping of fuel source for optimising the cost, if any, along with detailed
justification and cost savings;

(f) Net cost savings in variable cost of each unit, if any, after optimum utilisation of
Fuel:

Provided that the forecast or estimates for the Control Period from FY 2020-21 to FY
2024-25 shall be prepared for each month over the Control Period:

Provided further that Fuel Utilisation Plan shall be prepared based on past data and
reasonable assumptions for future.
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The beneficiary/ies shall file comments/suggestions on such Plan during proceedings of
Tariff Petition as per Regulation 13.

The Commission shall approve the Fuel Utilisation Plan and rationalise the variable cost
of generation for Generating Unit/Station based on such Plan and suggestions and
comments received from the beneficiary/ies for the Control Period as part of its Order
on the MYT Petition.

A Generating Company shall maintain data of actual performance of Unit/Station wise
Fuel Utilisation vis-a-vis Fuel Utilisation plan approved by the Commission, along with
justification for variation between approved and actual fuel utilisation plan and, shall put
up such data within fifteen days from the end of each month, on the internet website of
the Generating Company.

A Generating Company may, as a result of additional information not previously known
or available to it at the time of submission of the Fuel Utilisation Plan under Regulation
40.1, apply for modification in the Fuel Utilisation Plan for the remaining part of the
Control Period, as part of its Petition for Mid-term Review under Regulation 8&:

The Commission may, as a result of additional information not previously known or
available to the Commission at the time of approval of the Fuel Utilisation Plan under
Regulation 40.1, if it deems appropriate, suo motu or on a Petition filed by the Generating
Company, modify the Fuel Utilisation Plan for the remainder of the Control Period, as
part of the Mid-term Review.

At time of truing up of respective year, the Commission shall scrutinise the
implementation of actual Fuel Utilisation Plan vis-a-vis approved plan, deviations, if
any, and justification submitted by a Generating Company thereon and; may disallow
the variable cost of generation on account of operational inefficiencies in utilisation of
fuel.

Components of Tariff

The Tariff for sale of electricity from a thermal power Generating Station shall comprise
two parts, namely, Annual Fixed Charge and Energy Charge.

The Tariff for sale of electricity from a hydel Generating Station shall comprise two
parts, namely, Capacity Charge and Energy Charge.

Annual Fixed Charges

The Annual Fixed Charges shall comprise the following components:

(a) Operation & Maintenance Expenses;

RW?
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(b) Depreciation;

(c) Interest on Loan Capital;

(d) Interest on Working Capital;
() Return on Equity Capital;
(f) Income Tax;

Less:

(g) Non-Tariff Income:

Provided that Depreciation, Interest on Loan Capital, Interest on Working Capital,
Return on Equity, and Income tax for Thermal and Hydro Generating Stations shall be
allowed, in accordance with the provisions specified in Part D of these Regulations:

Provided further that prior period income/expenses shall be allowed by the
Commission at the time of Truing-up based on audited accounts, on a case to case
basis, if the income/expenses in that prior period have been allowed on actual basis,
subject to prudence check:

Provided also that all penalties and compensation payable by the Generating Company
to any party for failure to comply with any directions or for damages, as a consequence
of the orders of the Commission, Courts, etc., shall not be allowed to be recovered
through the Aggregate Revenue Requirement:

Provided also that the Generating Company shall maintain separate details of such
penalties and compensation paid or payable by the Generating Company, if any, and
shall submit them to the Commission along with its Petition.

Renovation & Modernisation

For undertaking Renovation and Modernisation for the purpose of extension of life
beyond the useful life of the Generating Station or a Unit thereof, the Generating
Company shall file a Petition for approval with a Detailed Project Report giving
complete scope, justification, cost-benefit analysis, estimated life extension from a
reference date, financial package, phasing of expenditure, schedule of completion,
reference price level, estimated completion cost, record of consultation with
Beneficiaries and consent received from the Beneficiaries, and any other relevant
information.

Approval of such proposal for Renovation and Modernisation shall be granted after
consideration of reasonableness of the cost estimates, schedule of completion, use of
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efficient technology, cost-benefit analysis, and such other factors as may be considered
relevant by the Commission.

In case of gas/ liquid fuel based open/combined cycle thermal generating Unit, any
expenditure, which has become necessary for renovation of gas turbines/steam turbine
and any expenditure necessitated due to obsolescence or non-availability of spares for
efficient operation of the stations shall be allowed:

Provided that any expenditure included in the Renovation and Modernisation on
consumables and cost of components and spares, which is generally covered in the O&M
expenses during the major overhaul of gas turbine, shall be suitably deducted after
prudence check, from the Renovation and Modernisation expenditure to be allowed.

The expenditure approved by the Commission after prudence check based on the
estimates of Renovation and Modernisation expenditure and life extension, and after
deducting the accumulated depreciation already recovered from the original Project cost,
shall form the basis for determination of Tariff.

Sale of Infirm Power

The supply of Infirm Power shall be accounted as deviation and shall be paid at Charges for

Deviation for Infirm Power in accordance with the Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory

Commission (Deviation Settlement Mechanism and Related matters) Regulations, 2019:

Provided that any revenue earned by the Generating Company from supply of Infirm Power

after accounting for the fuel cost shall be used for reduction in Capital Cost and shall not be

treated as revenue.

45
45.1

45.2

Non-Tariff Income

The amount of Non-Tariff Income of the Generating Company as approved by the
Commission shall be deducted while determining its Annual Fixed Charge:

Provided that the Generating Company shall submit full details of its forecast of Non-
Tariff Income to the Commission in such form as may be stipulated by the Commission.

The Non-Tariff Income shall include:
a) Income from rent of land or buildings;
b) Income from sale of scrap;
¢) Income from investments;

d) Income from sale of ash/rejected coal,

QW3
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e) Interest income on advances to suppliers/contractors;

f) Net Income from supply of electricity by the Generating Company to the housing
colonies of its operating staff and supply of electricity by the Generating Company
for construction works at the generating Station, after adjusting the expenses
incurred for supply of such electricity;

g) Income from rental from staff quarters;

h) Income from rental from contractors;

1) Income from hire charges from contactors and others;
j) Income from advertisements;

k) Income from sale of tender documents;

1) Any other Non-Tariff Income:

Provided that the interest earned from investments made out of Return on Equity
corresponding to the regulated Business of the Generating Company shall not be
included in Non-Tariff Income:

Provided further that all supply of electricity by the Generating Company to the housing
colonies of its operating staff and for construction works at the generating Station, shall
be metered and billed separately:

Provided also that the tariff for supply of electricity by the Generating Company to the
housing colonies of its operating staff and supply of electricity by the Generating
Company for construction works at the generating Station, shall be the same as the Tariff
approved by the Commission for the supply of electricity to the respective consumer
category by the Distribution Licensee for that area of supply.

Operational Norms for Thermal Generating Stations

Target Availability for full recovery of Annual Fixed Charges shall be 85 per cent for
all thermal Generating Stations, except those covered under Regulation 46.2.

Target Availability for full recovery of Annual Fixed Charges for the following
Generating Stations of Maharashtra State Power Generation Company Ltd. (MSPGCL)
shall be:

Particulars Target Availability (%)
Koradi TPS excluding Unit No. 8, 9 and 10 72.00
Chandrapur TPS excluding Unit No. 8 and 9 80.00
Nashik TPS 80.00
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Particulars

Target Availability (%)

Bhusawal TPS excluding Unit No. 4 and 5

80.00

Parli TPS excluding Unit No. 6, 7 and 8

80.00

Provided that the Commission may revise the Availability norms for these Generating

Stations in case any Renovation & Modernisation is undertaken.

Target Plant Load Factor for incentive for thermal Generating Stations/Units shall be 85

per cent.

Gross Station Heat Rate for existing coal-based thermal Generating Stations, other than
those covered under Regulation 46.5 and 46.6 shall be:

200/210/250 MW 300 MW sets 500 MW sets (sub- 600 MW and above sets
sets critical boilers) (super-critical boilers)
2430 kcal/kWh 2400 kcal/kWh 2375 kcal/kWh 2230 kcal/kWh
Note 1

In respect of 500 MW Units, where the boiler feed pumps are electrically operated, the
Gross Station Heat Rate shall be 40 kcal/kWh lower than the gross Station Heat Rate

specified above.

Note 2

For Generating Stations having combination of 200/210/250 MW sets and 300 MW and
500 MW sets, the normative gross Station Heat Rate shall be the weighted average

Station Heat Rate.

Gross Station Heat Rate for existing coal-based thermal Generating Stations of

Mabharashtra State Power Generation Company Ltd. (MSPGCL) shall be:

(kcal/kWh)
Koradi Khaperkheda Chandrapur Nashik Bhusawal Parli excluding
excluding excluding Unit excluding Unit excluding | Unit No. 6, 7 and
Unit No. &, 9 No. 5 No. 8 and 9 Unit No. 4 8
and 10 and 5
2622 2630 2688 2754 2787 2886

Provided that the Commission may revise the Gross Station Heat Rate norms for these

Generating Stations in case any Renovation & Modernisation is undertaken.

46.6 Gross Station Heat Rate for existing thermal Generating Unit 5 of The Tata Power

Company Ltd.-Generation Business (TPC-G) shall be 2549 kcal/kWh.
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46.7 Gross Station Heat Rate for existing Gas Turbine/Combined Cycle Generating

Station/Unit shall be:
(kcal/kWh)
Mode of operation Uran GTPS of Unit-7 of TPC-G
MSPGCL
Combined Cycle 2035 2035
Open Cycle 2900 2900

46.8 Gross Station Heat Rate for New Coal and Lignite based thermal power Generating
Stations /Units achieving COD after April 1, 2020 shall be equal to 1.05 times the
Design Heat Rate (kcal/kWh);

Where the Design Heat Rate of a Unit means the Unit Heat Rate guaranteed by the
supplier at conditions of 100% MCR, zero percent make up, design coal and design
cooling water temperature/back pressure:

Provided that the Design Heat Rate shall not exceed the following maximum design Unit
Heat Rates depending upon the pressure and temperature ratings of the Units:

Pressure Rating (kg/cm2) 150 170 170 247
SHT/RHT (°C) 535/535 537/537 537/565 537/565
. Electrical Turbine Turbine Turbine
Type of Boiler Feed Pump . . . .
Driven driven driven driven
Maximum Turbine Cycle
Heat Rate (kcal/kWh) 1955 1950 1935 1900
Minimum Boiler Efficiency
Sub-Bituminous Indian Coal 0.86 0.86 0.86 0.86
Bituminous Imported Coal 0.89 0.89 0.89 0.89
Maximum Design Unit
Heat Rate (kcal/kWh)
Sub-Bituminous Indian Coal 2273 2267 2250 2222
Bituminous Imported Coal 2197 2191 2174 2135
Pressure Rating (kg/cm2) 247 270 270
SHT/RHT (°C) 565/593 593/593 600/600
. Turbine Turbine Turbine
Type of Boiler Feed Pump . . .
driven driven driven
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Pressure Rating (kg/cm2) 247 270 270
Maximum Turbine Cycle Heat
Rate (kcal/kWh) 1850 1810 1800

Minimum Boiler Efficiency

Sub-Bituminous Indian Coal 0.86 0.865 0.865
Bituminous Imported Coal 0.89 0.895 0.895
Maximum Design Unit Heat

Rate (kcal/kWh)

Sub-Bituminous Indian Coal 2151 2105 2081
Bituminous Imported Coal 2078 2034 2022

Provided further that in case pressure and temperature parameters of a Unit are different
from above ratings, the maximum design Unit Heat Rate of the nearest class shall be
taken:

Provided also that where Unit Heat Rate has not been guaranteed but turbine cycle Heat
Rate and boiler efficiency are guaranteed separately by the same supplier or different
suppliers, the Unit Design Heat Rate shall be arrived at by using guaranteed turbine cycle
Heat Rate and boiler efficiency:

Provided also that where the boiler efficiency is below 86% for sub-bituminous Indian
coal and 89% for bituminous imported coal, the same shall be considered as 86% and
89%, respectively, for sub-bituminous Indian coal and bituminous imported coal for
computation of Gross Station Heat Rate:

Provided also that maximum turbine cycle Heat Rate shall be adjusted for type of dry
cooling system:

Provided also that if one or more Units are declared under commercial operation prior
to the date of coming into effect of these Regulations, the Heat Rate norms for those
Units as well as Units declared under commercial operation on or after the effectiveness
of these Regulations shall be lower of the Heat Rate norms arrived at by the above
methodology and the norms specified in Regulation 46.4:

Provided also that in case of lignite-fired Generating Stations (including stations based
on Circulating Fluidised Bed Combustion [CFBC] technology), maximum design Heat

Rates shall be increased using the following factors for moisture content:
a) For lignite having 50% moisture: 1.10

b) For lignite having 40% moisture: 1.07
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¢) For lignite having 30% moisture: 1.04

For other values of moisture content, multiplying factor shall be pro-rated for moisture
content between 30-40% and 40-50% depending upon the rated values of multiplying
factor for the respective range given under sub-clauses (a) to (c) above.

Note: In respect of Units where the boiler feed pumps are electrically operated, the
maximum design Unit Heat Rate shall be 40 kcal/kWh lower than the maximum design
Unit Heat Rate specified above with turbine driven boiler feed pumps.

Gross Station Heat Rate for New Gas-based/Liquid-based Thermal Generating Unit(s)
achieving COD after April 1, 2020 shall be:

= 1.05 x Design Heat Rate of the Unit/Block for Natural Gas and Regassified
Liquefied Natural Gas (RLNG) (in kcal/kWh)

=1.071 x Design Heat Rate of the Unit/Block for Liquid Fuel (kcal/kWh)

Where the Design Heat Rate of a Unit shall mean the guaranteed Heat Rate for a Unit at
100% MCR and at site ambient conditions; and the Design Heat Rate of a Block shall
mean the guaranteed Heat Rate for a Block at 100% MCR, site ambient conditions, zero

percent make up, design cooling water temperature/back pressure.

46.10 In case a Generating Station or Unit is directed by MSLDC to operate below normative

loading but at or above technical minimum schedule on account of grid security or due
to the lower schedule given by the Beneficiaries, increase in Gross Station Heat Rate
may be considered by the Commission on case to case basis at time of truing up, subject
to prudence check.

46.11 Secondary fuel oil consumption norm for all thermal Generating Stations, except those

covered under Regulation 46.12 shall be:
a) Coal-based Generating Stations: 0.50 ml/kWh

b) Lignite-fired Generating Stations except stations based on CFBC technology: 1.5
ml/kWh

¢) Lignite-fired Generating Stations based on CFBC technology: 1.0 ml/kWh

46.12 Secondary fuel oil consumption norm for the following MSPGCL Stations shall be:

Stations Secondary Fuel Oil
Consumption (ml/kWh)
Koradi TPS excluding Unit No. 8, 9 and 10 2.81
Khaperkheda TPS excluding Unit No. 5 1.20
Chandrapur TPS excluding Unit No. 8 and 9 1.00
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Stations Secondary Fuel Oil
Consumption (ml/kWh)
Nashik TPS 1.00
Bhusawal TPS excluding Unit No. 4 and 5 1.40
Parli TPS excluding Unit No. 6, 7 and 8 2.00

Provided that the Commission may revise the secondary fuel oil consumption norms

for these Generating Stations in case any Renovation & Modernisation is undertaken.

46.13 Auxiliary Energy Consumption for new coal-based thermal Generating Stations shall be

as given in the Table below:

Particulars With Natural Draft cooling tower
or without cooling tower
(i) 200/250 MW series 8.50%
(ii) 300/330/350/500 MW & above
Steam driven boiler feed pumps 5.75%
Electrically driven boiler feed pumps 8.00%

Provided that for thermal Generating Stations with induced draft cooling towers and

where tube type coal mill is used, the norms shall be further increased by 0.5% and 0.8%,

respectively:

Provided further that additional Auxiliary Energy Consumption as follows may be

allowed for plants with Dry Cooling Systems:

Type of Dry Cooling System

(% of gross

recovery turbine and natural draft tower

generation)
Direct cooling air cooled condensers with mechanical draft fans 1.0%
Indirect cooling system employing jet condensers with pressure 0.5%

Provided also that for thermal Generating Stations with Flue Gas De-sulphuriser (FGD),

additional Auxiliary Energy Consumption shall be allowed as follows:

200/250 MW series: 1.2%
300/330/350/500 MW & above: 1.0%
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Provided also that for thermal Generating Stations with any additional equipment that
has been mandated by Statutory Authorities, additional Auxiliary Energy Consumption
shall be allowed on case to case basis after prudence check.

46.14 Auxiliary Energy Consumption for the following coal-based thermal Generating
Stations of MSPGCL shall be as given in the Table below:

Stations Auxiliary Energy Consumption
Koradi TPS excluding Unit No. 8, 9 and 10 10.81%
Khaperkheda TPS excluding Unit No. 5 9.70%
Chandrapur TPS excluding Unit No. 8 and 9 7.80%
Nashik TPS 10.75%
Bhusawal TPS excluding Unit No. 4 and 5 10.96%
Parli TPS excluding Unit No. 6, 7 and 8 12.65%

Provided that the Commission may revise the auxiliary energy consumption norms for
these Generating Stations in case any Renovation & Modernisation is undertaken.

46.15 Auxiliary Energy Consumption for other existing coal-based thermal Generating
Stations shall be as given in the Table below:

Particulars With Natural Draft cooling tower
or without cooling tower
(i) 200/250 MW series 8.50%
(ii) 300/500 MW & above
Steam driven boiler feed pumps 6.00%
Electrically driven boiler feed pumps 8.50%

Provided that for thermal Generating Stations with induced draft cooling towers and
where tube type coal mill is used, the norms shall be further increased by 0.5% and 0.8%,
respectively:

Provided further that additional Auxiliary Energy Consumption as follows may be
allowed for plants with Dry Cooling Systems:

Type of Dry Cooling System (% of gross

generation)
Direct cooling air cooled condensers with mechanical draft fans 1.0%
Indirect cooling system employing jet condensers with pressure 0.5%
recovery turbine and natural draft tower
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Provided also that for thermal Generating Stations with Flue Gas De-sulphuriser (FGD),
additional Auxiliary Energy Consumption shall be allowed as follows:

200/250 MW series: 1.2%
300/330/350/500 MW & above: 1.0%

Provided also that for thermal Generating Stations with any additional equipment that
has been mandated by Statutory Authorities, additional Auxiliary Energy Consumption
shall be allowed on case to case basis after prudence check.

46.16 Auxiliary Energy Consumption for Gas Turbine/Combined Cycle Generating
Stations/Units shall be:

(a) Combined cycle : 2.75%
(b) Open cycle : 1.00%

Provided that where the gas based generating station is using electric motor driven Gas
Booster Compressor, the Auxiliary Energy Consumption in case of Combined Cycle
mode shall be 3.30% (including impact of air-cooled condensers for Steam Turbine
Generators):

Provided further that an additional Auxiliary Energy Consumption of 0.35% shall be
allowed for Combined Cycle Generating Stations having direct cooling air cooled
condensers with mechanical draft fans.

46.17 Auxiliary Energy Consumption for Lignite-fired thermal Generating Stations/Units shall
be 0.5 percentage points higher than the auxiliary energy consumption norms of coal
based Generating Stations specified in Regulation 46.13:

Provided that for the lignite fired stations using CFBC technology, the auxiliary energy
consumption norms shall be 1.5 percentage points higher than the auxiliary energy
consumption norms of coal based Generating Stations specified in Regulation 46.13.

46.18 Transit and handling Losses

Normative transit and handling losses for coal/lignite based Generating Stations, as a
percentage of quantity of coal or lignite dispatched by the coal/lignite supply company
during the month shall be:

(a) Pit head Generating Stations : 0.2%

(b) Non-pit head Generating Stations : 0.8%
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Provided that in case of pit head stations if coal or lignite is procured from sources other
than the pit head mines, which is transported to the Station through rail, normative transit
loss of 0.8% shall be applicable:

Provided further that the above norms shall be applicable for domestic coal and washed
coal:

Provided also that in case of imported coal, the normative transit and handling losses
shall be 0.2%:

Provided also that for procurement of coal on delivery basis, no transit and handling loss
shall be allowed.

Operation and maintenance expenses for Thermal Generating Stations
Generating Stations/Units that achieved COD before August 26, 2005

a) The Operation and Maintenance expenses for Generating Stations which achieved
COD before the date of coming into effect of the MERC (Terms and Conditions of
Tariff) Regulations, 2005, shall be computed in accordance with this Regulation.

b) The Operation and Maintenance expenses excluding water charges and including
insurance shall be derived on the basis of the average of the Trued-up Operation and
Maintenance expenses after adding/deducting the share of efficiency gains/losses,
for the three Years ending March 31, 2019, excluding abnormal Operation and
Maintenance expenses, if any, subject to prudence check by the Commission:

Provided that the average of such Operation and Maintenance expenses shall be
considered as Operation and Maintenance expenses for the Year ended March 31,
2018, and shall be escalated at the respective escalation rate for FY 2018-19 and FY
2019-20, to arrive at the Operation and Maintenance expenses for the base year
ending March 31, 2020:

Provided further that the escalation rate for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 shall be
computed by considering 50% weightage to the average yearly inflation derived
based on the monthly Wholesale Price Index of the respective past five financial
years as per the Office of Economic Advisor of Government of India and 50%
weightage to the average yearly inflation derived based on the monthly Consumer
Price Index for Industrial Workers (all-India) of the respective past five financial
years as per the Labour Bureau, Government of India:

Provided also that at the time of true-up for each Year of this Control Period, the

Operation and Maintenance expenses, excluding water charges and including
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d)

insurance, shall be derived on the basis of the Final Trued-up Operation and
Maintenance expenses after adding/deducting the sharing of efficiency gains/losses,
for the base year ending March 31, 2020, excluding abnormal expenses, if any,
subject to prudence check by the Commission, and shall be considered as the Base
Year Operation and Maintenance expenses.

The Operation and Maintenance expenses for each subsequent year shall be
determined by escalating these Base Year expenses of FY 2019-20 by an inflation
factor with 50% weightage to the average yearly inflation derived based on the
monthly Wholesale Price Index of the respective past five financial years as per the
Office of Economic Advisor of Government of India and 50% weightage to the
average yearly inflation derived based on the monthly Consumer Price Index for
Industrial Workers (all-India) of the past five financial years as per the Labour
Bureau, Government of India, as reduced by an efficiency factor of 1% or as may be
stipulated by the Commission from time to time, to arrive at the permissible
Operation and Maintenance expenses for each year of the Control Period:

Provided that, in the Truing-up of the O&M expenses for any particular year of the
Control Period, an inflation factor with 50% weightage to the average yearly
inflation derived based on the monthly Wholesale Price Index of the respective past
five financial years (including the year of Truing-up) and 50% weightage to the
average yearly inflation derived based on the monthly Consumer Price Index for
Industrial Workers (all-India) of the respective past five financial years (including
the year of Truing-up), as reduced by an efficiency factor of 1% or as may be
stipulated by the Commission from time to time, shall be applied to arrive at the
permissible Operation and Maintenance Expenses for that year:

Provided further that the efficiency factor shall be considered as zero, in case the
Availability Factor of all Generating Units/Stations of the Generating Company is
higher than NAPAF, or there is an improvement in the Availability Factor of all
Generating Units/Stations of the Generating Company of at least 2 percent annually
over the last 3 years, in case the Availability Factor of all Generating Units/Stations
of the Generating Company is lower than NAPAF.

Water Charges shall be allowed separately as per actuals, based on water
consumption depending upon type of plant, type of cooling water system etc., subject
to prudence check:

Provided that in the MYT Order, the Commission shall provisionally approve the
Water Charges for each year of the Control Period based on the actual Water Charges
as per latest Audited Accounts available for the Generating Company, subject to
prudence check.

AR
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e) The impact of Wage Revision, if any, may be considered at the time of true-up for
any Year, based on documentary evidence and justification to be submitted by the
Petitioner:

Provided that if actual employee expenses are higher than normative expenses on
this account, then no sharing of efficiency losses shall be done to that extent:

Provided further that efficiency gains shall not be allowed by deducting the impact
of Wage Revision and comparison of such reduced value with normative value.

f) Provisioning of wage revision expenses shall not be considered as actual expenses
at the time of true-up, and only expenses as actually incurred shall be considered.

g) A Generating Company may undertake Opex schemes for system automation, new
technology and IT implementation, etc., and, such expenses may be allowed over
and above normative O&M Expenses, subject to prudence check by the Commission:

Provided that the Generating Company shall submit detailed justification, cost
benefit analysis of such schemes as against capex schemes, and savings in O&M
expenses, if any.

47.2 New Generating Stations and Generating Stations that achieved COD on or after
August 26, 2005

a)  For Coal based Generating Stations:

Rs. Lakh/MW
Particulars 200/210/250 | 300/330/350 | 500 MW 600/660 800 MW
MW Sets MW Sets Sets MW Sets and above
FY 2020-21 27.89 21.08 18.54 14.99 13.49
FY 2021-22 28.89 21.84 19.21 15.53 13.97
FY 2022-23 29.93 22.63 19.90 16.09 14.48
FY 2023-24 31.01 23.44 20.62 16.67 15.00
FY 2024-25 32.13 24.29 21.36 17.27 15.54

Provided that for the Generating Stations having combination of above Sets, the
weighted average value for operation and maintenance expenses shall be allowed:

Provided further that the norms shall be multiplied by the following factors for arriving
at norms of O&M expenses for additional Units in respective Unit sizes for the Units
whose COD occurs on or after 1.4.2020 in the same Station:
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200/210/250 MW Additional 5"& 6™ Units 0.90
Additional 7"& more Units 0.85

300/330/350 MW Additional 4"& 5™ Units 0.90
Additional 6"& more Units 0.85

500 MW and above Additional 3"& 4" Units 0.90
Additional 5 & above Units 0.85

b)  For Lignite based Generating Stations:

Rs. Lakh/MW

Particulars Lignite based Unit/Stations
FY 2020-21 17.08
FY 2021-22 17.69
FY 2022-23 18.33
FY 2023-24 18.99
FY 2024-25 19.68

¢)  Gas Turbine/Combined Cycle Generating Stations

Rs. Lakh/MW
Gas Small Gas Turbine
Particulars Turbine/Combined Generating Advance F
Cycle Generating Stations (less than Class Machines
Stations 50 MW Unit size)
FY 2020-21 15.63 16.80 12.22
FY 2021-22 16.19 17.41 12.66
FY 2022-23 16.77 18.03 13.12
FY 2023-24 17.38 18.68 13.59
FY 2024-25 18.00 19.36 14.08

48 Operational Norms for Hydro Generating Stations
48.1 The following Normative Annual Plant Availability Factor (NAPAF) shall apply to
hydel Generating Stations:
SI. Particulars Normative Annual Plant Availability
Factor
a) | Storage and Pondage type plants with 90%
head variation between Full Reservoir
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Particulars Normative Annual Plant Availability

Factor

Level (FRL) and Minimum Draw Down
Level (MDDL) of up to 8%, and where
plant availability is not affected by silt

b)

Storage and Pondage type plants with | The month-wise peaking capacity as
head variation between FRL and MDDL | provided by the Project authorities in the
of more than 8%, and where plant | Detailed Project Report, approved by the
availability is not affected by silt relevant authority, shall form the basis of
fixation of NAPAF.

Pondage type plants where plant 85%
availability is significantly affected by
silt

d)

Run-of-river type plants To be determined plant-wise, based on
10-day design energy data, moderated
by past experience where
available/relevant

48.2

48.3

Provided that a further allowance may be made by the Commission in NAPAF
determination under special circumstances, e.g., abnormal silt problem or other

operating conditions, and known plant limitations.

In case of Pumped storage hydel generating stations, the quantum of electricity required
for pumping water from down-stream reservoir to up-stream reservoir shall be arranged
by the Beneficiary/ies duly taking into account the transmission losses and distribution
losses up to the bus bar of the generating Station, and in return, Beneficiaries shall be
entitled to energy equivalent to 75% of the energy utilized in pumping the water from
the lower elevation reservoir to the higher elevation reservoir, from the generating
Station during peak hours and the generating Station shall be under obligation to supply
such quantum of electricity during peak hours:

Provided that in the event of the Beneficiaries failing to supply the desired level of
energy during off-peak hours, there will be pro-rata reduction in their energy entitlement
from the Station during peak hours.

The following Normative Auxiliary Energy Consumption shall apply to hydel
Generating Stations:
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Type of Station Installed Installed
Capacity above | Capacity up
200 MW to 200 MW

Surface Hydro Generating Station

Rotating Excitation 0.7% 0.7%

Static Excitation 1.0% 1.2%

Underground Hydro Generating Station

Rotating Excitation 0.9% 0.9%

Static Excitation 1.2% 1.3%

49  Operation and Maintenance Expenses for Hydro Generating Stations

49.1 For Existing Stations:

a) The Operation and Maintenance expenses shall be derived on the basis of the average
of the Trued-up Operation and Maintenance expenses after adding/deducting the
share of efficiency gains/losses, for the three Years ending March 31, 2019, excluding
abnormal Operation and Maintenance expenses, if any, subject to prudence check by
the Commission:

Provided that the average of such Operation and Maintenance expenses shall be
considered as Operation and Maintenance expenses for the Year ended March 31,
2018, and shall be escalated at the respective escalation rate for FY 2018-19 and FY
2019-20, to arrive at the Operation and Maintenance expenses for the base year
ending March 31, 2020:

Provided further that the escalation rate for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 shall be
computed by considering 50% weightage to the average yearly inflation derived
based on the monthly Wholesale Price Index of the respective past five financial
years as per the Office of Economic Advisor of Government of India and 50%
weightage to the average yearly inflation derived based on the monthly Consumer
Price Index for Industrial Workers (all-India) of the respective past five financial
years as per the Labour Bureau, Government of India:

Provided also that at the time of true-up for each Year of this Control Period, the
Operation and Maintenance expenses, including insurance, shall be derived on the
basis of the Final Trued-up Operation and Maintenance expenses, after adding/
deducting the sharing of efficiency gains/ losses, for the year ending March 31, 2020,
excluding abnormal expenses, if any, subject to prudence check by the Commission,
and shall be considered as the Base Year Operation and Maintenance expenses.
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b)

©)

d)

¢)

The Operation and Maintenance expenses for each subsequent year and in the Truing-
up of the respective years of the Control Period shall be determined in the same
manner as specified in Regulation 47.1 (c).

The Operation and Maintenance expenses incurred by the Generating Company on
its housing colonies and related expenses, including medical and other facilities, and
on their operating staff shall be excluded from (a) and (b) above and allowed

separately, subject to prudence check.

The impact of Wage Revision, if any, may be considered at the time of true-up for
any Year, based on documentary evidence and justification to be submitted by the
Petitioner:

Provided that if actual employee expenses are higher than normative expenses on
this account, then no sharing of efficiency losses shall be done to that extent:

Provided further that efficiency gains shall not be allowed by deducting the impact
of Wage Revision and comparison of such reduced value with normative value.

Provisioning of wage revision expenses shall not be considered as actual expenses at
the time of true-up, and only expenses as actually incurred shall be considered.

A Generating Company may undertake Opex schemes for system automation,
new technology and IT implementation, etc., and, such expenses may be allowed
over and above normative O&M Expenses, subject to prudence check by the
Commission:

Provided that the Generating Company shall submit detailed justification, cost
benefit analysis of such schemes as against capex schemes, and savings in O&M
expenses, if any.

49.2 For New Stations:

a)

b)

The Operation and Maintenance expenses shall be fixed at 2% of the original
Project cost (excluding cost of rehabilitation and resettlement works) for the first
year of commercial operation, which shall be considered as the Base Year Operation
and Maintenance expenses.

The Operation and Maintenance expenses for each subsequent year and in the
Truing-up of the respective years of the Control Period shall be determined in the
same manner as specified in Regulation 47.1 (c).
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Computation and Payment of Capacity Charges and Energy Charges for Thermal
Generating Stations

Capacity Charges

The fixed cost of a thermal generating station shall be computed on annual basis based
on the norms specified under these Regulations and recovered on monthly basis under
Capacity Charge. The total Capacity Charge payable for a generating station shall be
shared by its beneficiaries as per their respective percentage share or allocation in the
capacity of the generating station. The Capacity Charge shall be recovered under two
segments of the year, i.e., High Demand Season (period of three months) and Low
Demand Season (period of remaining nine months), and within each season in two parts,
viz., Capacity Charge for Peak Hours of the month and Capacity Charge for Off-Peak
Hours of the month as follows:

Capacity Charge for the Year (CCy) = Sum of Capacity Charge for three months of High
Demand Season + Sum of Capacity Charge for nine months of Low Demand Season

The Capacity Charge payable to a thermal generating station for a calendar month shall
be calculated in accordance with the following formulae:

Capacity Charge for the Month (CC,,) = Capacity Charge for Peak Hours of the Month
(CC,y) + Capacity Charge for Off-Peak Hours of the Month (CCop)

Where,
High Demand Season:

CCpi= (020 x AFO)x (=) x (

PAFMp1
NAPAF

) subject to ceiling of (0.20 x AFC)x (1_12)

PAFMp2
NAPAF

CCp= {(0.20 x AFC)x (3) x ( ) subject to ceiling of (0.20 x AFC)x (3)} - CCyy

CCp3= {(0.20 x AFC)x (ﬁ)
CCp)]}

(PAFMp3

NAPAF ) subject to ceiling of (0.20 x AFC)x ( )} —(CCp1 +

1
4

&

PAFMop1
NAPAF

) subject to ceiling of (0.80 x AFC)x (i)}

CCopr= {(0.80 x AFCO)x () x ( "

PAFMop?2
NAPAF

) subject to ceiling of (0.80 x AFC)x (%)}~ CCopy

CCop2= {(0.80 x AFC)x (3) x (

) subject to ceiling of (0.80 x AFC)x G)} — (CCop1 +

1
A
CCops= {(0.80 x AFC)x G) x (Pﬂl:?

CCo)1}

Low Demand Season:

CCpi= {(0.20 x AFC)x (i) x (%) subject to ceiling of (0.20 x AFC)x (ﬁ)}

A
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PAFMp2
NAPAF

CCp= {(0.20 x AFC)x (%) x ( ) subject to ceiling of (0.20 x AFC)x (%)} —CCy

PAFMp3
NAPAF

CCp3= {(0.20 x AFC)x G) x (
CCp)

) subject to ceiling of (0.20 x AFC)x (3)}~ (CCpr+

PAFMp4
NAPAF

CCp= {(0.20 x AFC)x (3) x (
CCpat+ CCp3)

) subject to ceiling of (0.20 x AFC)x (%)} —(CCpi +

CCps= {(0.20 x AFC)x (Z) x (B2

5 ) subject to ceiling of (0.20 x AFC)x (i)} —(CCpi +
CCpat CCpat CCps)

12

PAFMp6
NAPAF

CCpe= {(0.20 x AFC)x (3) x (
CCprt CCpyt CCpat CCps)

) subject to ceiling of (0.20 x AFC)x (%)} —(CCpi +

CCpr= {(0.20 x AFC)x (é) x (P;:;WW) subject to ceiling of (0.20 x AFC)x (é)} —(CCpi +

CCprt CCpyt CCpat CCpst CCpe)

CCps= {(0.20 x AFC)x (g) x (%) subject to ceiling of (0.20 x AFC)x (;)} —(CCyr +

CCprt CCpyt CCput CCpst CCpet CCpr)

CCpo= {(0.20 x AFC)x G) x (:4:}1)\4;: ) subject to ceiling of (0.20 x AFC)x (Z)} —(CCp1 +

CCprt CCpst CCput CCpst CCpst CCyprt CChf)

PAFMop
NAPAF

CCopi= {(0.80 x AFC)x (i) X ( ) subject to ceiling of (0.80 x AFC)x (i)}
NAPAF

PAFMop3

CCop2= {(0.80 x AFC)x (2) (PAFMOpZ) subject to ceiling of (0.80 x AFC)x (%)} — CCop1
) NAPAF }

CCops= {(0.80 x AFC)x (i x (
(:(:0p2)

) subject to ceiling of (0.80 x AFC)x G — (CCop1 +

PAFMop4
NAPAF

CCops= {(0.80 x AFC)x (%) x (
CCop2+ CCOp3)

) subject to ceiling of (0.80 x AFC)x (%)} — (CCop1 +

PAFMop5

CCaps= {(0.80 x AFC)x () x (FATMe

+ CCopat CCopst CCops)

) subject to ceiling of (0.80 x AFC)x (15—2)} — (CCop1

CCops= {(0.80 x AFC)x (%) x (%) subject to ceiling of (0.80 x AFC)x (%)} — (CCopt +

CCop2+ CCop3+ Ccop4+ Ccops)

CCopr= {(0.80 x AFC)x (%) X (Pzz;z;zj?

+ CCop2+ CCop3+ CCop4+ CCOP5+ CCopﬁ)

) subject to ceiling of (0.80 x AFC)x (%)} — (CCop1

CCops= {(0.80 x AFC)x (%) x (Z42222%) subject to ceiling of (0.80 x AFC)x (2)} - (CCopr +

CCOp2+ CCop3+ CCop4+ CCop5+ CCop6+ CCop7)

CCops= {(0.80 x AFC)x (2) x (Z22222) subject to ceiling of (0.80 x AFC)x (2)}~ (CCopi +

Ccop2+ Ccop3+ Ccop4+ Ccop5+ Ccop6+ Ccop7+ CcopS)
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Provided that in case of generating station or unit thereof under shutdown due to
Renovation and Modernisation, the Generating Company shall be allowed to recover

O&M expenses and interest on loan only,

Where,
CCy= Capacity Charge for the Month;

CC,= Capacity Charge for the Peak Hours of the Month;

CCop= Capacity Charge for the Off-Peak Hours of the Month;

CC,»= Capacity Charge for the Peak Hours of nth Month in a specific Season;
CCopn= Capacity Charge for the Off-Peak of nth Month in a specific Season;
AFC = Annual Fixed Cost;

PAFM,, = Plant Availability Factor achieved during Peak Hours upto the end of nth
Month in a Season;

PAFM,pn = Plant Availability Factor achieved during Off-Peak Hours upto the end of

nth Month in a Season;
NAPAF= Normative Annual Plant Availability Factor.

Normative Plant Availability Factor for “Peak” and “Off-Peak” Hours in a month shall
be equivalent to the NAPAF specified in Regulations 46.1 and 46.2 of these Regulations.
The number of hours of “Peak” and “Off-Peak” periods during a day shall be four and
twenty respectively. The hours of Peak and Off-Peak periods during a day shall be
declared by the SLDC at least a week in advance. The High Demand Season (period of
three months, consecutive or otherwise) and Low Demand Season (period of remaining
nine months, consecutive or otherwise) in the State shall be declared by the SLDC, at

least six months in advance:

Provided that the SLDC, after duly considering the comments of the concerned
stakeholders, shall declare Peak Hours and High Demand Season in such a way as to
coincide with the Peak Hours and High Demand Season of the State.

Any under-recovery or over-recovery of Capacity Charge as a result of under-
achievement or over-achievement, vis-a-vis the NAPAF in Peak and Off-Peak Hours of
a Season (High Demand Season or Low Demand Season, as the case may be) shall not
be adjusted with under-achievement or over-achievement, vis-a-vis the NAPAF in Peak
and Off-Peak Hours of the other Season:

Provided that within a Season, the shortfall in recovery of Capacity Charge for
cumulative Oft-Peak Hours derived based on NAPAF, shall be allowed to be off-set by

A3
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over-achievement of PAF, if any, and consequent notional over-recovery of Capacity
Charge for cumulative Peak Hours in that Season:

Provided further that within a Season, the shortfall in recovery of Capacity Charge for
cumulative Peak Hours derived based on NAPAF, shall not be allowed to be off-set by
over-achievement of PAF, if any, and consequent notional over-recovery of Capacity
Charge for cumulative Off-Peak Hours in that Season:

Provided also that full Capacity Charges shall be recoverable at target availability
specified in Regulations 46.1 and 46.2, and recovery of Capacity Charges below the
level of Target Availability shall be on pro-rata basis, irrespective of the reasons for the
lower Availability, and no part of the Capacity Charges shall be recoverable except to
the extent of Availability:

Provided that at zero availability, no Capacity Charges shall be payable.

Energy Charges

The Energy Charges shall cover landed cost of primary fuel and secondary fuel oil and
shall be worked out on the basis of total energy scheduled to be supplied to the
Beneficiary/ies during the calendar month on ex-power plant basis, at the Energy Charge
Rate of the month (with fuel price adjustment) as per the following formula:

Energy Charges (Rs) = (Energy Charge Rate in Rs/kWh) x [Scheduled Energy (ex-bus)
for the month in kWh]

Energy Charge Rate (ECR) in Rs/kWh shall be computed up to three decimal places and
shall be the sum of the cost of normative quantities of primary and secondary fuel for
delivering ex-bus one kWh of electricity, and shall be computed as per the following

formula:
[Py x (Qp)n + PsX (Qs)a ]
ECR = (Rs/kWh)
[1-(AUX,)]
Where, P, = landed cost of primary fuel, namely coal or lignite or gas or liquid

fuel and limestone, if applicable, in Rs/kg or Rs/cum or Rg/litre, as
the case may be;

(Qp)n = Quantity of primary fuel required for generation of one kWh of
electricity at generator terminals in kg or litre or standard cubic
metre, as the case may be, and shall be computed on the basis of
normative Gross Station Heat Rate (less heat contributed by
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secondary fuel oil for coal/lignite based Generating Stations) and
gross calorific value of coal/lignite or gas or liquid fuel as billed by
supplier less:

(a) Actual loss in calorific value of coal between “as billed by
supplier” and “as received at generating station”, subject to the
maximum loss in calorific value of 300 kcal/kg; and

(b) actual stacking loss subject to the maximum stacking loss of 85
kcal/kg for pithead stations and 120 kcal/kg for non-pithead
stations;

Ps = landed cost of Secondary fuel oil in Rs./ml,

(Qs)n = Normative Quantity of Secondary fuel oil in ml/kWh as per
Regulations 46.11 and 46.12, and

AUX,=Normative Auxiliary Energy Consumption as % of gross generation
as per Regulations 46.13 to 46.17:

Provided that the landed cost of primary fuel and secondary fuel for tariff determination
shall be based on actual weighted average cost of primary fuel and secondary fuel of the
three preceding months, and in the absence of landed costs for the three preceding
months, latest procurement price of primary fuel and secondary fuel for the generating
Station, preceding the first month for which the Tariff is to be determined for existing
stations, and immediately preceding three months in case of new generating stations shall
be taken into account:

Provided further that the landed cost of fuel shall mean the total cost of coal, lignite or
the gas delivered to the generating station and shall include the base price of fuel
corresponding to the grade/quality/calorific value of fuel inclusive of royalty, taxes and
duties as applicable, washery charges as applicable, transportation cost by rail/road/gas
pipe line or any other means, charges for third-party sampling, and, for the purpose of
computation of energy charges, shall be arrived at after considering normative transit
and handling losses as percentage of the quantity of fuel dispatched by the fuel supply
company during the month as specified in Regulation 46.18:

Provided also that in case of blending of fuel from different sources, the weighted
average Gross Calorific Value of primary fuel shall be arrived in proportion to blending

ratio:

Provided also that any refund of taxes and duties along with any amount received on
account of penalties from fuel supplier shall have to be adjusted in fuel cost:

N
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Provided also that the Energy Charges, for the purpose of billing/Fuel Surcharge shall
be worked out Station-wise/Unit-wise based on weighted average rate based on
scheduled generation from each Unit.

Adjustment of ECR [Fuel Surcharge Adjustment] on account of variation in price
or heat value of fuels

Any variation in Price and Gross Calorific Value of coal/lignite or gas or liquid fuel as
billed by supplier less actual stacking loss subject to the maximum stacking loss of 85
kecal/kg or 120 kcal/kg, as the case may be, vis-a-vis approved values shall be adjusted
on month to month basis on the basis of average Gross Calorific Value of coal/lignite or
gas or liquid fuel in stock received and weighted average landed cost incurred by the
Generating Company for procurement of coal/lignite, oil, or gas or liquid fuel, as the
case may be for a power Station:

Provided that in its bills, the Generating Company shall indicate Energy Charge Rates at
base price of primary and secondary fuel approved by the Commission and the Fuel
Surcharge to it separately:

Provided further that the Generating Company shall provide to the Beneficiaries of the
generating Station, the details of parameters of GCV and price of fuel for each type of
fuel, i.e., domestic coal, imported coal, e-auction coal, lignite, natural gas, RLNG, liquid
fuel, etc., as per the forms prescribed by the Commission:

Provided also that in case of part or full use of alternative source of fuel supply by coal
based thermal generating stations other than as agreed by the Generating Company and
beneficiary/ies in their power purchase agreement for supply of contracted power on
account of shortage of fuel or optimization of economical operation through blending,
the use of alternative source of fuel supply shall be permitted to generating station:

Provided also that in such case, prior permission from beneficiaries shall not be a
precondition, unless otherwise agreed specifically in the power purchase agreement:

Provided also that the weighted average price of alternative source of fuel shall not
exceed 5% of base price of primary and secondary fuel approved by the Commission:

Provided also that where the Energy Charge Rate based on weighted average price of
fuel upon use of alternative source of fuel supply exceeds 5% of base Energy Charge
Rate as approved by the Commission for that year, prior consent with beneficiary/ies
shall be obtained at least three days in advance:

Provided also that in case use of alternative source of fuel is not opted for, based on prior
consultation with beneficiary/ies, then the Generating Company shall be entitled to
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consider deemed Availability to the extent of reduced Availability on account of fuel
non-availability, for the purpose of Availability computations for recovery of Annual
Fixed Charges in accordance with Regulation 50.2:

Provided also that the details of blending ratio of the imported coal with domestic coal,
proportion of e-auction coal and the weighted average GCV of the fuels as billed by
supplier shall also be provided separately, along with the bills of the respective month:

Provided also that copies of the bills and details of parameters of GCV and price of fuel,
i.e., domestic coal, imported coal, e-auction coal, lignite, natural gas, RLNG, liquid fuel,
etc., details of blending ratio of the imported coal with domestic coal, proportion of e-
auction coal shall also be displayed month-wise on the website of the Generating
Company, and should be available on its website for a period of three months.

Incentive

Incentive shall be payable at a flat rate of 50.0 paise/kWh for actual energy generation
in excess of ex-bus energy corresponding to target Plant Load Factor during peak hours
and at a flat rate of 25.0 paise/kWh for actual energy generation in excess of ex-bus
energy corresponding to target Plant Load Factor during off-peak hours, on a cumulative
basis within each Season (High Demand Season or Low Demand Season, as the case
may be), as specified in Regulation 46.3 of these Regulations.

Computation and Payment of Capacity Charges, Energy Charges and Lease Rent
for Hydro Generating Stations

The Annual Fixed Charges of a Hydro Generating Station shall be computed on annual
basis, based on norms specified under these Regulations, and recovered on monthly basis
under Capacity Charge (inclusive of incentive) and Energy Charge, which shall be
payable by the Beneficiaries in proportion to their respective share in the capacity of the
Generating Station.

In addition to Annual Fixed Charges to be recovered through Capacity Charge and
Energy Charge, the Lease Rent and Water Royalty shall be payable by the Beneficiaries
in proportion to their respective share in the capacity of the Generating Station on
monthly basis.

The Capacity Charge (inclusive of incentive) payable to a Hydro Generating Station for
a calendar month shall be

AFCx 0.5 x NDM /NDY x (PAFM / NAPAF) (in Rupees)

N
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Where,

AFC = Annual fixed cost specified for the year, in Rupees.
NAPAF = Normative Annual Plant Availability Factor in percentage
NDM = Number of days in the month

NDY = Number of days in the year

PAFM = Plant availability factor achieved during the month, in Percentage

The PAFM shall be computed in accordance with the following formula:
N
PAFM =100 x X DCi/ {NxICx(1-AUX)} %
i=1
Where,
AUX = Normative auxiliary energy consumption in percentage
DCG; = Declared capacity (in ex-bus MW) for the i day of the month which
the Station can deliver for at least three hours, as certified by the
MSLDOC after the day is over.
IC = Installed capacity (in MW) of the complete Generating Station
N = Number of days in the month

The Energy Charge shall be payable by every Beneficiary for the total energy scheduled
to be supplied to the Beneficiary/ies, during the calendar month, on ex-bus basis, at the
computed Energy Charge Rate. Total Energy Charge payable to the Generating
Company for a month shall be:

Energy Charges in Rs = (Energy Charge Rate in Rs. / kWh) x {Scheduled Energy
(ex-bus)} for the month in kWh

Energy Charge Rate (ECR) in Rupees per kWh on ex-bus basis, for a Hydro Generating
Station, shall be determined up to three decimal places based on the following formula:

ECR =AFCx0.5 /{DEx(1-AUX)}
Where,

DE = Annual Design Energy specified for the Hydro Generating Station, in
kWh, subject to Regulation 51.7.

In case the saleable scheduled energy (ex-bus) of a Hydro Generating Station during a
year is less than the saleable Design Energy (ex-bus) for reasons beyond the control of
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the Generating Company, the following treatment shall be applied on a rolling basis on
a Petition filed by the Generating Company:

(1) Shortfall in Energy Charges in comparison to fifty percent of the Annual Fixed
Cost shall be allowed to be recovered in six equal monthly instalments:

Provided that in case actual generation from a hydel generating Station is less than
the Design Energy for a continuous period of 4 years on account of hydrology
factor, the generating Station shall approach the Central Electricity Authority with
relevant hydrology data for revision of design energy of the Station.

(i1) Any shortfall in the Energy Charges on account of saleable scheduled energy (ex-
bus) being less than the saleable design energy (ex-bus) during the Control Period
from 2016-17 to FY 2019-20, which was beyond the control of the generating
station and which could not be recovered during the said Control Period shall be
recovered in accordance with clause (i) of this Regulation.

In case the Energy Charge Rate (ECR) for a Hydro Generating Station, as computed in
Regulation 51.6, exceeds ninety paise per kWh, and the actual saleable energy in a Year
exceeds { DE x ( 1 — AUX ) } kWh, the Energy Charge for the energy in excess of the
above shall be billed at one hundred and twenty (120) paise per kWh only.

The MSLDC shall finalise the schedules for the hydel Generating Stations, in
consultation with the Beneficiaries, for optimal utilization of all the energy declared to
be available, which shall be scheduled for all Beneficiaries in proportion to their
respective allocations in the Generating Station.

Pumped Storage Hydro Generating Stations

The mechanism for billing for existing pumped storage hydel stations shall be in
accordance with the Power Purchase Agreement already approved by the Commission,
and shall not be in accordance with this Regulation.

The fixed cost of pumped storage hydel generating stations achieving COD after April
1, 2020 shall be computed on annual basis, based on norms specified under these
Regulations, and recovered on monthly basis as Capacity Charge.

The Capacity Charge shall be payable by the Beneficiaries in proportion to their
respective allocation in the saleable capacity of the generating Station:

Provided that during the period between the date of commercial operation of the first
Unit of the generating Station and the date of commercial operation of the generating
Station, the annual fixed cost shall be worked out based on the latest estimate of the

N9
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completion cost for the generating Station, for the purpose of determining the Capacity
Charge payment during such period.

The Capacity Charge payable to a pumped storage hydel generating Station for a
calendar month shall be:

(AFC x NDM / NDY) (in Rupees), if actual Generation during the month is greater than
or equal to 75 % of the Pumping Energy consumed by the Station during the month, and

{(AFC x NDM / NDY) x (Actual Generation during the month during peak hours/ 75%
of the Pumping Energy consumed by the Station during the month) (in Rupees)}, if
actual Generation during the month is lower than 75 % of the Pumping Energy consumed
by the Station during the month.

Where,

AFC = Annual fixed cost specified for the year, in Rupees;
NDM = Number of days in the month;

NDY = Number of days in the year:

Provided that there would be adjustment at the end of the year based on actual generation

and actual pumping energy consumed by the Station during the year.

The energy charge shall be payable by every Beneficiary for the total energy scheduled
to be supplied to the Beneficiary in excess of the design energy plus 75% of the energy
utilized in pumping the water from the lower elevation reservoir to the higher elevation
reservoir, at a flat rate equal to the average Energy Charge Rate of 20 paise per kWh on

ex power plant basis.
Energy charge payable to the Generating Company for a month shall be:

= 0.20 x {Energy generated (ex-bus) for the month in kWh — (Design Energy for the
month (DEw) + 75% of the energy utilized in pumping the water from the lower elevation

reservoir to the higher elevation reservoir for the month)},
Where,
DEn = Design energy for the month specified for the hydel generating Station, in kWh:

Provided that in case the energy generated in a month is less than the Design Energy for
the month plus 75% of the energy utilized in pumping the water from the lower elevation
reservoir to the higher elevation reservoir of the month, then the energy charges payable
by the Beneficiaries shall be zero.
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The Generating Company shall maintain the record of daily inflows of natural water into
the upper elevation reservoir and the reservoir levels of upper elevation reservoir and
lower elevation reservoir on hourly basis.

The generator shall be required to maximize the peak hour supplies with the available
water including the natural flow of water:

Provided that in case it is established that the Generating Company is deliberately or
otherwise without any valid reason, not pumping water from lower elevation reservoir
to the higher elevation during off-peak period or not generating power to its potential or
wasting natural flow of water, the Capacity Charges of the day shall not be payable by
the Beneficiary/ies:

Provided further that for this purpose, outages of the Unit(s)/Station including planned
outages and the forced outages up to 15% in a year shall be construed as the valid reason
for not pumping water from lower elevation reservoir to the higher elevation during off-
peak period or not generating power using energy of pumped water or natural flow of

water:

Provided also that the total capacity charges recovered during the year shall be adjusted
on pro-rata basis in the following manner in the event of total machine outages in a year

exceeds 15%:

(ACC)ag; = (ACC) r x (1- ATO)/85

Where,

(ACC)ag = Adjusted Annual Capacity Charges

(ACC) r = Annual Capacity Charges recovered

ATO = Total Outages in percentage for the year including forced and planned outages:

Provided also that the generating Station shall be required to declare its machine
availability daily on day ahead basis for all the time blocks of the day in line with the
scheduling procedure laid down under the State Grid Code.

Demonstration of declared capacity

The Generating Company may be required to demonstrate the declared capacity of its
Generating Station as and when asked by the MSLDC.

In the event of the Generating Company failing to demonstrate the declared capacity, the
Annual Fixed Charges due to the Generating Company shall be reduced as a measure of
penalty.

R
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The quantum of penalty for the first mis-declaration for any duration/block in a day shall
be the charges corresponding to two days fixed charges.

For the second mis-declaration, the penalty shall be equivalent to fixed charges for four
days and for subsequent mis-declarations in the year, the penalty shall be multiplied in
the geometrical progression.

The operating logbooks of the Generating Station shall be available for scrutiny by the
MSLDC, and these books shall keep record of machine operation and maintenance.

Billing and Payment of Charges

Billing and Payment of Annual Fixed Charges, Energy Charges, Fuel Surcharge

Adjustments and Incentive for Thermal Generating Stations, and of Capacity Charges and

Energy Charges for Hydro Generating Stations, shall be done on a monthly basis.

55
55.1

Deviation Charges

Variations between actual net injection and scheduled net injection for the generating
stations, and variations between actual net drawal and scheduled net drawal for the
Beneficiary/ies shall be treated as their respective deviations, and charges for such
deviations shall be governed by the Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission
(Deviation Settlement Mechanism and Related matters) Regulations, 2019:

Provided that the Deviation Charges paid or earned by the Generating Company/ies in
accordance with Regulation 9 of the Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission
(Deviation Settlement Mechanism and Related matters) Regulations, 2019 and
Additional Charges for Deviation in accordance with Regulation 10 of the Maharashtra
Electricity Regulatory Commission (Deviation Settlement Mechanism and Related
matters) Regulations, 2019, shall not be recoverable/adjusted from the Beneficiary/ies
through Tariff:

Provided further that the Deviation Charges paid or earned by the Distribution Licensees
in accordance with Regulation 9 of the Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission
(Deviation Settlement Mechanism and Related matters) Regulations, 2019 shall be
recoverable/adjusted from the Beneficiary/ies through Tariff:

Provided also that the Additional Charges for Deviation paid or earned by the
Distribution Licensees in accordance with Regulation 10 of the Maharashtra Electricity
Regulatory Commission (Deviation Settlement Mechanism and Related matters)
Regulations, 2019, shall not be recoverable from the Beneficiary/ies through Tariff.
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Actual net deviation of every Generating Station and Beneficiary shall be metered in
accordance with Regulation 10 of the Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission
(Deviation Settlement Mechanism and Related matters) Regulations, 2019.

PART F: TRANSMISSION

56
56.1

56.2

57
57.1

57.2

Applicability

The Regulations contained in this Part shall apply to the determination of Tariff for
access and use of the intra-State transmission system pursuant to a Bulk Power
Transmission Agreement or other arrangement entered into with a Transmission System
User:

Provided that in case a new transmission system set up by a new Transmission Licensee
is added to the existing system during the Control Period, the Commission shall re-
determine the Tariff for the remaining years of the Control Period having regard to the
Petition for determination of Aggregate Revenue Requirement submitted by such

Transmission Licensee for the remaining years of the Control Period.

The Commission shall be guided by the terms and conditions contained in this Part in
specifying the rates, charges, terms and conditions for use of intervening transmission
facilities pursuant to a Petition filed in this regard by a Transmission Licensee under the
proviso to Section 36 (1) of the Act.

Components of Tariff

The transmission charges for access to and use of the intra-State transmission system
shall comprise any of the following components or a combination of the following

components:

(a) transmission system access charges;
(b) annual transmission charges;

(c)  per unit charges for energy transmitted,
(d) reactive energy charges.

Any person who is eligible to apply for access to the intra-State transmission system
shall be entitled to obtain such access in accordance with the Regulations of the
Commission governing Transmission Open Access and shall be liable to pay the charges

for obtaining such access as specified in this Regulation.

Explanation: For the purpose of this Regulation, such person who, being eligible for
transmission open access, has applied for allocation of transmission capacity rights and

30}
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has agreed to the carrying out of works for obtaining such access shall hereinafter be
referred to as the “intending Transmission System User”, and may include an existing
Transmission System User in respect of any increase in allocated transmission capacity
rights applied for by such existing user.

Where the access of the intending Transmission System User to the intra-State
transmission system entails works of transmission lines or other transmission assets
dedicated to such User, the Transmission Licensee shall be entitled to recover, through
the transmission system access charges, all expenses reasonably incurred on such works
for providing access to such intending Transmission System User.

Where the access of the intending Transmission System User entails other works, not
covered under Regulation 57.3 relating to the intra-State transmission system, the
Transmission Licensee shall recover the expenses relating to such works through annual
transmission charges for each Year of the Control Period, in accordance with Regulation
57.10.

Where any works for obtaining access have been carried out by the intending
Transmission System User, the Transmission Licensee shall be entitled to recover
supervision charges at the rate of 15 per cent of the cost of labour employed for carrying
out such works and shall not be entitled to recover any other expenses with regard to
such works:

Provided that such supervision charges shall form part of the Non-Tariff Income of the
respective Transmission Licensee and shall also be treated as O&M expense incurred by
the intending transmission system users, which shall be capitalised in the respective year
of asset capitalisation.

The works for providing access to the intra-State transmission system shall be
maintained by the Transmission Licensee for the duration of the Bulk Power
Transmission Agreement between the Transmission Licensee and the Transmission
System User.

Where the Transmission System User has paid for the works carried out to provide it
access to the intra-State transmission system, the Transmission System User shall be
entitled to the depreciated value of such works paid for by it upon termination of the
Bulk Power Transmission Agreement:

Provided that where the Transmission System User has carried out the works to provide
it access to the intra-State transmission system of the Transmission Licensee, the
Transmission System User shall be entitled to retain such works upon termination of the
Bulk Power Transmission Agreement.
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57.8 The transmission system access charges may be recovered by any one of the following

methods, in accordance with the terms of the Bulk Power Transmission Agreement:

(a)

(b)

(©

As a one-time payment by the Transmission System User at the time of

obtaining access; or

As a series of payments over the duration of the Bulk Power Transmission
Agreement; or

As any combination of (a) and (b) above.

57.9 Any dispute between the Transmission Licensee and the intending Transmission System

User with regard to the works to be carried out to give access to the intending

Transmission System User or with regard to the transmission system access charges shall

be referred to the Commission for adjudication or to such other forum as may be

stipulated.

57.10 The Annual Transmission Charges for each Year of the Control Period shall provide for

the recovery of the Aggregate Revenue Requirement of the Transmission Licensee for

the respective Year of the Control Period, as approved by the Commission and

comprising the following components:

(a) Operation and Maintenance expenses;

(b) Depreciation;

(c) Interest on Loan Capital;

(d) Interest on working capital and deposits from Transmission System Users;
(e) Contribution to contingency reserves;

(f) Return on Equity Capital;

(g) Income Tax;

minus:

(h) Income from Open Access charges;

(i)  Non-Tariff income;

(G)  Income from Other Business, to the extent specified in these Regulations:

Provided that Depreciation, Interest on Loan Capital, Interest on working capital and

deposits from Transmission System Users, Contribution to Contingency Reserves,

Return on Equity, and Income Tax for Transmission Licensees shall be allowed in

accordance with the provisions specified in Part D of these Regulations:

303
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57.11

58
58.1

58.2

Provided further that the components of the Aggregate Revenue Requirement
corresponding to the transmission lines owned by Maharashtra State Electricity
Transmission Company Limited (MSETCL) and conveying electricity to other States,
being recovered through the Point of Connection (PoC) transmission charges in
accordance with the Regulations and Orders of the Central Electricity Regulatory
Commission, shall not be recovered from the Annual Transmission Charges determined
under these Regulations:

Provided also that in case any such components have already been recovered through
the intra-State transmission tariff, then such excess recovery shall be deducted from the
Aggregate Revenue Requirement of MSETCL for the future years, along with associated
holding cost, as applicable:

Provided also that prior period income/expenses shall be allowed by the Commission at
the time of truing up based on audited accounts, on a case to case basis, if the
income/expenses in that prior period have been allowed on actual basis, subject to
prudence check:

Provided also that all penalties and compensation payable by the Licensee to any party
for failure to meet any Standards of Performance or for damages, as a consequence of
the orders of the Commission, Courts, etc., shall not be allowed to be recovered through
the Aggregate Revenue Requirement:

Provided also that the Transmission Licensee shall maintain separate details of such
penalties and compensation paid or payable by the Licensee, if any, and shall submit
them to the Commission along with its Petition.

The Annual Transmission Charges of the Transmission Licensee shall be determined by
the Commission on the basis of a Petition for determination of Aggregate Revenue
Requirement, filed by the Transmission Licensee in accordance with Part B of these
Regulations, or Petition for adoption of Annual Transmission Charges in case of
competitively awarded transmission system Project, as the case may be.

Petition for determination of Provisional Tariff

A new Transmission Licensee shall file the Petition for determination of provisional
Tariff, six months prior to the anticipated date of commercial operation of the
transmission assets.

The new Transmission Licensee shall file a Petition for determination of provisional
Tariff based on capital expenditure incurred and projected to be incurred up to the date
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of commercial operation and additional capital expenditure incurred, duly certified by
the statutory auditors:

Provided that the Petition shall contain details of underlying assumptions for the
projected capital cost and additional capital cost, wherever applicable.

The new Transmission Licensee may be allowed provisional Tariff by the Commission
from the anticipated date of commercial operation, based on the projected capital
expenditure, subject to prudence check.

If the date of commercial operation is likely to be delayed beyond six months from the
date of issue of the order approving the provisional Tariff, the Transmission Licensee
may submit a Petition for seeking extension of the validity of the applicability of the
provisional Tariff, giving details of the present status of completion and justification for
the delay in project completion, which may be considered by the Commission after
necessary prudence check.

The new Transmission Licensee shall file the Petition for determination of final Tariff
within six months from the date of commercial operation, based on the audited capital
expenditure and capitalisation as on the date of commercial operation.

The final Tariff determination for the new Transmission Licensee shall be done by the
Commission based on prudence check of the audited capital expenditure and
capitalisation as on the date of commercial operation.

Where the actual Capital Cost incurred on year to year basis is less than the Capital Cost
approved for determination of provisional Tariff by the Commission, by five percent or
more, the Transmission Licensee shall refund to the Beneficiaries, the excess Tariff
realised corresponding to excess Capital Cost, along with interest at the Base Rate, as
prevalent on the first day of April of the respective Year, plus 150 basis points.

Where the actual Capital Cost incurred on year to year basis is more than the Capital
Cost approved for determination of provisional Tariff by the Commission, by five
percent or more, the Transmission Licensee shall, subject to the approval of the
Commission, recover from the Beneficiaries the shortfall in Tariff corresponding to such
decrease in Capital Cost along with interest at the Base Rate, as prevalent on the first
day of April of the respective Year, plus 150 basis points.

Capital Investment Plan

The Transmission Licensee shall submit a detailed capital investment plan, financing
plan and physical targets for each year of the Control Period for strengthening and
augmentation of the intra-State transmission system of the Transmission Licensee,
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meeting the requirement of load growth, improvement in quality of supply, reliability,
metering, reduction in congestion, etc., to the Commission for approval, as a part of the
Multi-year Aggregate Revenue Requirement for the entire Control Period.

The Capital Investment Plan shall be a least cost plan for undertaking investments and
shall cover all capital expenditure projects of a value exceeding Rs. Ten crore or such
other amount as may be stipulated by the Commission from time to time, and shall be in
such form as may be stipulated.

The Capital Investment Plan shall be accompanied by such information, particulars and
documents as may be required including but not limited to the information such as
number of bays, name, configuration and location of grid substations, substation capacity
(MVA), transmission line length (circuit kilometres) showing the need for the proposed
investments, alternatives considered, cost-benefit analysis and other aspects that may
have a bearing on the transmission charges.

The Capital Investment Plan of the Transmission Licensee shall be consistent with the
transmission system plan for the intra-State transmission system developed by the State
Transmission Utility bearing in mind the transmission system plan for the inter-State
transmission system developed by the Central Transmission Utility:

Provided that any capital expenditure incurred by the Transmission Licensee based on
the specific requirement of a Generating Company or Distribution Licensee shall be
substantiated with necessary documentary evidence in the form of request for the same
and undertaking given as appropriate.

The Commission shall consider the Capital Investment Plan along with the Multi-year
Aggregate Revenue Requirement for the entire Control Period submitted by the
Transmission Licensee taking into consideration the prudence of the proposed
expenditure and estimated impact on transmission charges.

The Transmission Licensee shall submit, along with the Petition for determination of
Aggregate Revenue Requirement or along with the Petition for Mid-term Performance
Review, as the case may be, details showing the progress of capital expenditure projects,
together with such other information, particulars or documents as the Commission may

require to assess such progress.

Operational Norms
Target availability for the Transmission Licensee shall be as under:
(a)  For full recovery of Annual Transmission Charges:

(i) AC system : 98 per cent
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(i) HVDC bi-pole links and HVDC back-to-back stations : 95 per cent

(b)  For Additional Rate of Return on Equity consideration:

(i) AC system : 99 per cent;
(il) HVDC bi-pole links and HVDC back-to-back stations : 96 per cent;
Note 1:

Recovery of annual transmission charges below the level of target availability shall be
on pro-rata basis, and at zero availability, no transmission charges shall be payable.

Note 2:

The target availability shall be computed in accordance with procedure provided in the
Annexure-II to these Regulations and be certified by MSLDC:

Provided that for AC system, two trippings per element per year shall be allowed, and
after two trippings in a year, additional 12 hours outage for that particular element for
each such tripping shall be considered in addition to the actual outage:

Provided further that in case of outage of a transmission element affecting evacuation of
power from a generating Station, outage hours shall be multiplied by a factor of 2:

Provided also that the computation of additional rate of Return on Equity shall be

undertaken as per Regulation 29.

Operation and Maintenance expenses

The norms for O&M expenses for existing and new Transmission Licensees have been
specified on the basis of circuit kilometre of transmission lines and number of Bays in
the substation of the Transmission Licensee, as given below:

Explanation: For the purpose of applying normative O&M expenses under these
Regulations, a ‘Bay’ shall mean a set of accessories that are required to connect an
electrical equipment such as Transmission Line, Bus Section Breakers, Potential
Transformers, Power Transformers, Capacitors and Transfer Breaker and the feeders
emanating from the bus at sub-Station of Transmission Licensee. Further, the Bays
referred to shall include only the Bays at the Transmission substation and shall exclude
any Bays of the Generating Station switchyard whose maintenance is usually the
responsibility of the Generating Company:

Provided that for computing the allowable O&M expenses for any Year, 50 per cent of
the circuit kilometre of transmission lines and number of Bays in the substation of the
Transmission Licensee added during the Year shall also be considered:
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Provided further that at the time of Truing up along with the Mid-term Review or at the

end of the Control Period, the allowable O&M expenses for any Year shall be based on

the norms for O&M expenses specified by the Commission in this Regulation and

documentary evidence of assets capitalised by the Petitioner, subject to the prudence

check of the Commission:

Provided also that the number of Bays considered for allowing O&M expenses shall

exclude the unutilised Bays.

61.2 The norms for O&M expenses for the Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission

Company Limited shall be:

Voltage Level FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 | FY 2023-24 | FY 2024-25
HVDC (Rs Lakh) 2,146 2,221 2,299 2,380 2,464
Rs Lakh/ckt km
765 kV 0.86 0.89 0.93 0.96 1.00
400 kV 0.61 0.63 0.66 0.68 0.71
>66 kV&<400 kV 0.24 0.25 0.26 0.27 0.28
66 kV and less 0.15 0.15 0.16 0.16 0.17
Rs Lakh/Bay
765 kV 156.40 162.42 168.67 175.17 181.91
400 kV 111.73 116.03 120.49 125.13 129.95
>66kV&<400 kV 16.19 16.81 17.46 18.13 18.83
66 kV and less 3.38 3.51 3.65 3.79 3.94

61.3 The norms for O&M expenses for The Tata Power Company Ltd. - Transmission (TPC-

T) shall be:
Voltage Level FY 2020-21 | FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 | FY 2024-25
Rs Lakh/ckt km
>66kV&<400 kV 1.24 1.29 1.33 1.39 1.44
Rs Lakh/Bay
>66kV&<400 kV 32.38 33.63 34.92 36.26 37.66
66 kV and less 6.77 7.03 7.30 7.58 7.87

61.4 The norms for O&M expenses for Adani Electricity Mumbai Ltd. - Transmission
(AEML-T) shall be:

Voltage Level

FY 2020-21

FY 2021-22

FY 2022-23

FY 2023-24

FY 2024-25

Rs Lakh/ckt km
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Voltage Level FY 2020-21 | FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 | FY 2024-25
>66 kV&<400 kV 0.71 0.74 0.76 0.79 0.82
Rs Lakh/Bay
>66 kV&<400 kV 33.28 34.56 35.89 37.27 38.70
66kV and less 6.96 7.22 7.50 7.79 8.09

61.5 The norms for O&M expenses for Jaigad Power Transmission Company Limited (JPTL)

shall be:
Voltage Level FY 2020-21 | FY 2021-22 | FY 2022-23 | FY 2023-24 | FY 2024-25
Rs Lakh/ckt km
400 kV 0.44 0.45 0.47 0.49 0.51
Rs Lakh/bay
400 KV 77.04 80.01 83.09 86.29 89.61

61.6 The norms for O&M expenses for New Transmission Licensees, Other Existing

Transmission Licensees, and additional voltages for TPC-T and AEML-T shall be:

Voltage Level FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 | FY 2023-24 | FY 2024-25
HVDC (Rs Lakh) 2,146 2,221 2,299 2,380 2,464
Rs Lakh/ckt km
765 kV 1.46 1.51 1.57 1.63 1.69
400 KV 0.84 0.88 0.91 0.94 0.98
>66 kV&<400 kV 0.22 0.23 0.24 0.25 0.25
66 kV and less 0.15 0.15 0.16 0.16 0.17
Rs Lakh/Bay
765 KV 156.40 162.42 168.67 175.17 181.91
400 KV 143.25 148.77 154.49 160.44 166.62
~66kV&<400 KV 14.07 14.62 15.18 15.76 16.37
66 kV and less 3.38 3.51 3.65 3.79 3.94

Explanation: The term "New Transmission Licensee" shall mean the transmission
Licensee(s) for which Transmission Licence is granted by the Commission prior to or
after the date of coming into effect of these Regulations, and for whom the O&M norms

have not been specified in Regulations 61.2 to 61.5.

61.7

The O&M expenses for the GIS bays shall be allowed as worked out by multiplying 0.70

to the normative O&M expenses for bays as allowed in Regulation 61.2 to 61.6.
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61.8 A Transmission Licensee may undertake Opex schemes for system automation, new

62
62.1

technology and IT implementation, etc., and such expenses may be allowed over and
above normative O&M Expenses, subject to prudence check by the Commission:

Provided that the Transmission Licensee shall submit detailed justification, cost benefit
analysis of such schemes as against capex schemes, and savings in O&M expenses, if
any.

Non-Tariff Income

The amount of non-Tariff income relating to the Transmission Business as approved by
the Commission shall be deducted from the Aggregate Revenue Requirement in
determining the Annual Transmission Charges of the Transmission Licensee:

Provided that the Transmission Licensee shall submit full details of its forecast of non-
Tariff income to the Commission in such form as may be stipulated by the Commission.

62.2 The Non-Tariff Income shall include:

63

a) Income from rent of land or buildings;

b) Income from sale of scrap;

¢) Income from investments;

d) Interest income on advances to suppliers/contractors;
¢) Income from rental from staff quarters;

f) Income from rental from contractors;

g) Income from hire charges from contactors and others;
h) Supervision charges for capital works;

i) Income from advertisements;

J)  Income from sale of tender documents;

k) Any other Non-Tariff Income:

Provided that the interest earned from investments made out of Return on Equity
corresponding to the regulated Business of the Transmission Licensee shall not be
included in Non-Tariff Income.

Income from Other Business

Where the Transmission Licensee has engaged in any Other Business under Section 41 of the
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Act for optimum utilisation of its assets, an amount equal to two-thirds of the revenues from
such Other Business after deduction of all direct and indirect costs attributed to such Other
Business shall be deducted from the Aggregate Revenue Requirement in calculating the Annual

Transmission Charges of the Transmission Licensee:

Provided that the Transmission Licensee shall follow a reasonable basis for allocation of all
joint and common costs between the Transmission Business and the Other Business and shall
submit the Allocation Statement, duly certified by the Statutory Auditor, to the Commission
along with its Petition for determination of Aggregate Revenue Requirement:

Provided further that where the sum total of the direct and indirect costs of such Other Business
exceeds the revenues from such Other Business, no amount shall be allowed to be added to the
Aggregate Revenue Requirement of the Transmission Licensee on account of such Other
Business.

64 Determination of Intra-State Transmission Tariff

64.1 The aggregate of the yearly revenue requirement for all Transmission Licensees shall
form the “Total Transmission System Cost" (TTSC) of the Intra-State transmission
system, to be recovered from the Transmission System Users (TSUs) for the respective

year of the Control Period, in accordance with the following Formula:
TTSCy = * . ARR;

Where,
TTSC) = Pooled Total Transmission System Cost of year (t) of the Control Period;
n = Number of Transmission Licensee(s);

ARR; = Yearly revenue requirement approved by the Commission for i Transmission
Licensee for the yearly period (t) of the Control Period:

Provided that in case of transmission system projects undertaken in accordance with
the Guidelines for competitive bidding for transmission under Section 63 of the Act,
the Aggregate Revenue Requirement as per the annual Transmission Service Charges
(TSC) quoted for such projects, shall be considered, for aggregation under the TTSC.

64.2 The Commission shall approve yearly ‘Base Transmission Capacity Rights’ as average
of Coincident Peak Demand and Non-Coincident Peak Demand for TSUs as projected
for 12 monthly period of each year (t) of the Control Period, representing the 'Capacity

IR
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Utilisation’ of Intra-State transmission system and accordingly determine yearly ‘Base
Transmission Tariff’, in accordance with the following formula:

Base Transmission Capacity
Rights (Base TCR) for the = %" _([CPD(t) + NCPD(1)]/2)
yearly period (t)

Where,

CPD(y = Average of projected monthly Coincident Peak Demand for the yearly period
(t) of Control Period for each Transmission System User (u)

NCPD) = Average of projected monthly Non-Coincident Peak Demand for the Yearly
period (t) of Control Period for each Transmission System User (u):

Provided that for the first year of the Control Period, the Base Transmission Capacity
Rights for all Transmission System Users shall be determined based on average monthly
CPD and NCPD of the Transmission System Users prevalent during the 12 months prior
to date of coming into effect of these Regulations or 12 months prior to filing of the
Petition by the Transmission Licensees, depending on availability of such data:

Provided further that the Allotted Capacity for long-term Open Access Users excluding
partial Open Access Users shall be considered in lieu of the average monthly CPD and

NCPD for calculating the Base Transmission Capacity Rights:

Provided also that in case of a Deemed Distribution Licensee whose monthly CPD and
NCPD data is not available for 12 months at the time of determination of Base TCR, the
monthly CPD and NCPD data if available for at least 4 months, or the quantum of Short-
term/Medium-Term Open Access applied for by the Deemed Distribution Licensee for
the available period, shall be considered in lieu of the average monthly CPD and NCPD
for calculating the Base Transmission Capacity Rights:

Provided also that the Yearly CPD and NCPD or the Allotted capacity, as the case may
be, to be considered for determination of the subsequent yearly Base Transmission
Capacity Rights shall be computed at the beginning of the Control Period based on the
past trend and on the basis of demand projections made by various TSUs connected to
the Intra-State transmission system as part of their MY T Petitions for the Control Period:

Provided also that on completion of each year of the Control Period, MSLDC shall
submit the recorded CPD and NCPD data or the Allotted capacity, as the case may be,
for past 12 months in respect of each Transmission System User and on the basis of the
same, the Base TCR shall be suitably revised at the time of Mid-Term Review and at the
end of the Control Period for the subsequent years.
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Base Transmission Tariff for each Year shall be determined as ratio of approved ‘“TTSC’
for intra-State transmission system and approved ‘Base Transmission Capacity Rights’
and shall be denominated in terms of “Rs/kW/month” (for long-term/medium-term
usage) or in terms of “Rs/kWh” (for short-term bilateral open access transactions usage,
short-term collective transactions over Power Exchange and for Renewable Energy
transactions) in accordance with the following formula:

Base Transmission Tariff

(long-term/medium-term) = TTSCy / Base TCRyy
(Rs/kW/month or Rs/MW/day)

Base Transmission = TTSCy

Tariffy, (Short-term) ™, (Energy Transmitted by Tx i)
(Rs/kWh)

Where,

TTSC) = Pooled cost for InSTS for yearly period (t) of the Control Period;

Base TCR(y) = Base Transmission Capacity Rights for the yearly period (t);

n = Total number of Transmission Licensee(s) in that particular year of Control Period;
Tx; = i™ Transmission Licensee:

Provided that the energy units transmitted by the Transmission Licensees shall be based
on the energy input requirement of the Distribution Licensees at Generation-InSTS
interface point, as projected by each Distribution Licensee as part of its MYT Petition
for the Control Period and as approved by the Commission:

Provided further that any revisions in Base Transmission Capacity Rights and Base
Transmission Tariff as determined in Regulations 64.2 and 64.3 due to the variation in
the actual and approved CPD and NCPD shall be made at the time of Mid-Term Review
and at the end of the Control Period for the subsequent years:

Provided also that in case new Transmission Licensees are added to the intra-State
transmission network during the Control Period, then the TTSC, Base Transmission
Capacity Rights and Base Transmission Tariff as referred under Regulations 64.1, 64.2
and 64.3 shall be re-determined for each remaining Year of the Control Period.

The Base Transmission Tariff shall continue to be billed at the Tariff approved by the
Commission and applicable as on March 31, 2020 for the period starting from April 1,

R



N

64.5

65
65.1

65.2

TERTZ A TSAUS AR HET TR-F, AT R, 0%%/SMATT R0, Ik ]8R

2020 till approval of Base Transmission Tariff by the Commission in accordance with

these Regulations.

The State Transmission Utility shall file the Petition for determination of Intra-State
Transmission Tariff for the MY T Control Period latest by November 30, 2019, and latest
by November 30, 2022 at the time of Mid-term Review for modification of intra-State
transmission tariff for the fourth and fifth year of the Control Period, on the basis of Base
Transmission Capacity Rights of each TSU, and the summation of the Aggregate
Revenue Requirement projected by the Transmission Licensees for each Year of the
Control Period:

Provided that the State Transmission Utility shall file the Petition for true-up of share of
intra-State transmission tariff for FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22 along with the Petition
for Mid-term Review, on the basis of the actual CPD and NCPD of Transmission System
Users in the respective years, or the quantum of Short-term/Medium-Term Open Access
applied for by the Deemed Distribution Licensee for the available period, as applicable:

Provided further that in case of a Deemed Distribution Licensee whose monthly CPD
and NCPD data is not available for 12 months at the time of determination of Base TCR,
the monthly CPD and NCPD data if available for at least 4 months, or the quantum of
Short-term/Medium-Term Open Access applied for by the Deemed Distribution
Licensee for the available period, shall be considered in lieu of the average monthly CPD
and NCPD for calculating the Base Transmission Capacity Rights.

Sharing of TTSC by long-term TSUs

The long-term Transmission System Users shall share the TTSC of the intra-State
transmission system in the proportion of Base Transmission Capacity Rights of each
Transmission System User to the total Base Transmission Capacity Rights allotted in the

intra-State transmission system.

The Annual Transmission Charge payable by Transmission System User shall be

computed in accordance with the following formula:

ATC(u)w =TTSCw X ([Base TCR(u)]/ X1, [Base TCR(u)]w)
Where,
ATC(u)w = Annual Transmission Charges to be shared by Transmission

System User (u) for the yearly period (t);
Base TCR (u)

[CPD(u)q + NCPD(u)] /2
Where,
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Base TCR represents the Base Transmission Capacity Right of each Transmission
System User (u) for the yearly period (t);

CPD (u)y = Average Coincident Peak Demand of the Transmission
System User (u) for the yearly period (t);

NCPD (u)(t)

Average Non-coincident Peak Demand of the Transmission
System User (u) for the yearly period (t):

Provided that the Allotted Capacity for long-term Open Access Users, excluding
partial Open Access Users shall be considered in lieu of the average monthly CPD
and NCPD for calculating the Base TCR for such Open Access Users:

Provided further that in case of a Deemed Distribution Licensee whose monthly CPD
and NCPD data is not available for 12 months at the time of determination of Base
TCR, the monthly CPD and NCPD data if available for at least 4 months, or the
quantum of Short-term/Medium-Term Open Access applied for by the Deemed
Distribution Licensee for the available period, shall be considered in lieu of the
average monthly CPD and NCPD for calculating the Base Transmission Capacity
Rights.

Usage of Intra-State Transmission System

The charges for intra-State transmission usage shall be shared among various TSUs in the

following manner:

a) Long-term TSU with recorded demand up to Base TCR shall not be subjected to payment

b)

of short-term transmission charges.

Long-term TSU with recorded demand greater than Base TCR but lower than Contracted
Capacity shall make payment of short-term Transmission charges for the recorded
demand in excess of Base TCR.

¢) Where the recorded demand of long-term TSU is greater than Contracted Capacity, the

TSU shall bear additional transmission charges as specified in the Regulations of the

Commission governing Transmission Open Access:

Provided that short-term transmission charges and additional transmission charges, if payable

or paid by long-term TSUs in accordance with the clauses (a), (b) and (c) above, shall be

adjusted during subsequent billing period upon availability of information regarding actual

recorded demand by such long-term TSUs.

™
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67 Transmission Pricing Framework

The Commission may, after conducting a detailed study and due regulatory process, change
the existing transmission pricing framework to one considering factors such as voltage,
distance, direction and quantum of flow based on the methodology specified by the Central
Electricity Regulatory Commission, as the Commission may deem appropriate.

68  Billing and Payment of Charges

68.1 The State Transmission Utility (STU) shall raise monthly bill for Intra-State
Transmission Charges on every Transmission System User (TSU) on the first working
day of the month for the Transmission Charges of preceding month.

68.2 The monthly bill for transmission Tariff shall be payable within thirty days of date of
bill by the STU.

68.3 All TSUs shall ensure timely payment of Transmission Tariff to STU so as to enable
STU to make timely settlement of claims raised by Transmission Licensees.

69 Transmission Losses

The energy losses in the intra-State transmission system, as determined by the State Load
Despatch Centre and approved by the Commission, shall be considered as Transmission Losses
and borne by the Transmission System Users in proportion to their usage of the intra-State

transmission system:

Provided that the quantum of energy consumed by the auxiliary equipment of a transmission
sub-station and the station transformer losses within the sub-station shall not be accounted for
under the Transmission Losses:

Provided further that the energy consumed for supply of power by the transmission sub-station
to the associated offices of the Licensee, its housing colony and other facilities, and for
construction works at the sub-station, shall not be considered as energy consumed by the
auxiliary equipment of a transmission sub-station.

70  Reactive Energy Charges

70.1 A Generating Station shall inject/absorb the reactive energy in to the grid on the basis of
machine capability as per the directions of MSLDC.

70.2 Reactive energy exchange, only if made as per the directions of MSLDC, for the
applicable duration (injection or absorption) shall be compensated/levied by the MSLDC
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to the Generating Station, as specified in the applicable Maharashtra Electricity
Regulatory Commission (State Grid Code) Regulations, 2006.

70.3 The Transmission System Users shall be subjected to Incentive/Disincentive to be
compensated/levied by the MSLDC for maintaining the reactive energy balance in the
transmission system, as specified in the applicable Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory
Commission (State Grid Code) Regulations, 2006.

PART G: DISTRIBUTION WIRES BUSINESS

R

71  Separation of Accounts of Distribution Licensee

Every Distribution Licensee shall maintain separate accounting records for the Distribution
Wires Business and Retail Supply Business and shall prepare an Allocation Statement to enable

the Commission to determine the Tariff separately for:
(a) Distribution Wires Business;
(b) Retail Supply of electricity:

Provided that in case complete accounting segregation has not been done between the
Distribution Wires Business and Retail Supply Business of the Distribution Licensee, the
Aggregate Revenue Requirement of the Distribution Licensee shall be apportioned between
the Distribution Wires Business and Retail Supply Business in accordance with the following

Allocation Matrix:

Particul Distribution Wires Retail Supply
articulars

Business (%) Business (%)
Power Purchase Expenses 0% 100%
Inter-State Transmission Charges 0% 100%
Intra-State Transmission Charges 0% 100%
Operation & Maintenance Expenses 65% 35%
Depreciation 90% 10%
Interest on Long-term Loan Capital 90% 10%
Interest on Working Capital 10% 90%
Interest on Consumer Security Deposits 10% 90%
Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts 10% 90%
Income Tax 90% 10%
Contribution to Contingency Reserves 90% 10%
Return on Equity 90% 10%
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. Distribution Wires Retail Supply
Particulars . .
Business (%) Business (%)
Non-Tariff Income 10% 90%

Provided further that the above Allocation Matrix shall be applied for all or any of the heads
of expenditure and revenue, where actual accounting separation has not been done between the
Distribution Wires Business and Retail Supply Business:

Provided also that the Commission may require the Distribution Licensee to file separate
Petitions for determination of Tariff for the Distribution Wires Business and Retail Supply
Business.

72  Applicability

The Regulations contained in this Part shall apply to the determination of Wheeling Charges
payable for usage of distribution wires of a Distribution Licensee by a Distribution System
User.

73  Components of Aggregate Revenue Requirement for Distribution Wires Business

73.1 The Wheeling Charges of the Distribution Licensee shall provide for the recovery of the
Aggregate Revenue Requirement of the Distribution Wires Business for the respective
Years of the Control Period, as approved by the Commission and comprising the
following components:

(a) Operation and maintenance expenses;
(b) Depreciation;

(¢) Interest on Loan Capital;

(d) Interest on working capital;

(e) Interest on deposits from consumers and Distribution System Users;
(f)  Provision for Bad and doubtful debts;
(g) Contribution to contingency reserves;
(h) Return on Equity Capital;

(i) Income Tax;

minus:

()  Non-Tariff income;

(k)  Income from Other Business, to the extent specified in these Regulations:
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Provided that Depreciation, Interest on Loan Capital, Interest on working capital, Interest
on deposits from consumers and Distribution System Users, Contribution to
Contingency Reserves, Return on Equity, and Income Tax for Distribution Wires
Business shall be allowed in accordance with the provisions specified in Part D of these
Regulations:

Provided further that prior period income/expenses shall be allowed by the Commission
at the time of truing up based on audited accounts, on a case to case basis, if the
income/expenses in that prior period have been allowed on actual basis, subject to
prudence check:

Provided also that all penalties and compensation payable by the Licensee to any party
for failure to meet any Standards of Performance or for damages, as a consequence of
the orders of the Commission, Courts, Consumer Grievance Redressal Forum, and
Ombudsman, etc., shall not be allowed to be recovered through the Aggregate Revenue
Requirement:

Provided also that the Distribution Licensee shall maintain separate details of such
penalties and compensation paid or payable by the Licensee, if any, and shall submit
them to the Commission along with its Petition.

The Wheeling Charges of the Distribution Licensee shall be determined by the
Commission on the basis of a Petition for determination of Tariff filed by the
Distribution Licensee in accordance with Part B of these Regulations:

Provided that the Wheeling Charges may be denominated in terms of Rupees/kWh or
Rupees/kV Ah or Rupees/kW/month or Rupees/kV A/month, for the purpose of recovery
from the Distribution System User, or any such denomination, as may be stipulated by
the Commission:

Provided further that the Wheeling Charges shall be determined separately for LT
voltage, HT voltage, and EHT voltage, as applicable:

Provided also that in case of a Deemed Distribution Licensee whose tariff is yet to be
determined by the Commission till the date of coming into of these Regulations, the
Commission may determine the ceiling Wheeling Charges that may be charged by such
Deemed Distribution Licensee till such time as considered appropriate by the

Commission.

The Wheeling Charges shall continue to be billed at the Tariff approved by the
Commission and applicable as on March 31, 2020 for the period starting from April 1,
2020 till approval of Wheeling Charges by the Commission in accordance with these
Regulations.

N
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Capital Investment Plan

The Distribution Licensee shall submit a detailed Capital Investment Plan, financing
plan and physical targets for each Year of the Control Period for strengthening and
augmentation of its distribution network, meeting the requirement of load growth,
reduction in distribution losses, improvement in quality of supply, reliability, metering,
reduction in congestion, etc., to the Commission for approval, as a part of the Multi-Year
Tariff Petition for the entire Control Period.

The Capital Investment Plan shall be a least cost plan for undertaking investments and
shall cover all capital expenditure projects of a value exceeding Rs. Ten Crore or such
other amount as may be stipulated by the Commission from time to time and shall be in
such form as may be stipulated by the Commission from time to time:

Provided that the limit shall be Rs. One crore for Deemed Distribution Licensees.

The Capital Investment Plan shall be accompanied by such information, particulars and
documents as may be required including but not limited to the information such as
number of distribution sub-stations, consumer sub-stations, transformation capacity in
MVA and details of distribution transformers of different capacities, HT:LT ratio as well
as distribution line length showing the need for the proposed investments, alternatives
considered, cost-benefit analysis and other aspects that may have a bearing on the
Wheeling Charges:

Provided that the Distribution Licensee shall submit separate details of Capital
Investment being undertaken in each Distribution Franchisee area within its Licence

area.

The Commission shall consider the Capital Investment Plan along with the Multi-Year
Aggregate Revenue Requirement for the entire Control Period submitted by the
Distribution Licensee taking into consideration the prudence of the proposed expenditure

and estimated impact on Wheeling Charges.

The Distribution Licensee shall submit, along with the Petition for determination of
Wheeling Charges, or along with the Petition for Mid-term Performance Review, as the
case may be, details showing the progress of capital expenditure projects, together with
such other information, particulars or documents as the Commission may require to

assess such progress.

Operation and Maintenance Expenses

The Distribution Licensees shall be permitted to recover Operation and Maintenance
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expenses relating to the Distribution Wires Business in accordance with this Regulation.

The Operation and Maintenance expenses shall be derived on the basis of the average of
the Trued-up Operation and Maintenance expenses after adding/deducting the share of
efficiency gains/losses, for the three Years ending March 31, 2019, excluding abnormal
Operation and Maintenance expenses, if any, subject to prudence check by the

Commission:

Provided that the average of such Operation and Maintenance expenses shall be
considered as Operation and Maintenance expenses for the Year ended March 31, 2018,
and shall be escalated at the respective escalation rate for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20,
to arrive at the Operation and Maintenance expenses for the base year ending March 31,
2020:

Provided further that the escalation rate for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 shall be
computed by considering 30% weightage to the average yearly inflation derived based
on the monthly Wholesale Price Index of the respective past five financial years as per
the Office of Economic Advisor of Government of India and 70% weightage to the
average yearly inflation derived based on the monthly Consumer Price Index for
Industrial Workers (all-India) of the respective past five financial years as per the Labour

Bureau, Government of India:

Provided also that at the time of true-up for each Year of this Control Period, the
Operation and Maintenance expenses shall be derived on the basis of the Final Trued-up
Operation and Maintenance expenses after adding/deducting the sharing of efficiency
gains/losses, for the base year ending March 31, 2020, excluding abnormal expenses, if
any, subject to prudence check by the Commission, and shall be considered as the Base
Year Operation and Maintenance expenses.

The Operation and Maintenance expenses for each subsequent year shall be determined
by escalating these Base Year expenses of FY 2019-20 by an inflation factor with 30%
weightage to the average yearly inflation derived based on the monthly Wholesale Price
Index of the respective past five financial years as per the Office of Economic Advisor
of Government of India and 70% weightage to the average yearly inflation derived based
on the monthly Consumer Price Index for Industrial Workers (all-India) of the past five
financial years as per the Labour Bureau, Government of India, as reduced by an
efficiency factor of 1% or as may be stipulated by the Commission from time to time, to
arrive at the permissible Operation and Maintenance expenses for each year of the
Control Period:

Provided that, in the Truing-up of the O&M expenses for any particular year of the
Control Period, an inflation factor with 30% weightage to the average yearly inflation

B
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derived based on the monthly Wholesale Price Index of the respective past five financial
years (including the year of Truing-up) and 70% weightage to the average yearly
inflation derived based on the monthly Consumer Price Index for Industrial Workers
(all-India) of the respective past five financial years (including the year of Truing-up),
as reduced by an efficiency factor of 1% or as may be stipulated by the Commission
from time to time, shall be applied to arrive at the permissible Operation and
Maintenance Expenses for that year:

Provided further that the efficiency factor shall be considered as zero, in case there is an
increase in the number of consumers including Open Access consumers connected to the

Distribution Wires of at least 2 percent annually over the last 3 years:

Provided also that in case such increase in the number of consumers is lower than 2
percent annually over the last 3 years, then the reduction in efficiency factor shall be
considered in proportion to the percentage growth in the number of consumers.

The impact of Wage Revision, if any, may be considered at the time of true-up for any
Year, based on documentary evidence and justification to be submitted by the Petitioner:

Provided that if actual employee expenses are higher than normative expenses on this
account, then no sharing of efficiency losses shall be done to that extent:

Provided further that efficiency gains shall not be allowed by deducting the impact of
Wage Revision and comparison of such reduced value with normative value.

Provisioning of wage revision expenses shall not be considered as actual expenses at the
time of true-up, and only expenses as actually incurred shall be considered.

In case the expenditure on Repairs & Maintenance falls below 20% of total O&M
expenses allowed under these Regulations, then such savings in Repairs & Maintenance
shall not be set off against other heads of O&M expenses:

Provided that this limitation shall not be applicable for Deemed Distribution Licensees
for the first five years after commencement of operations as a Distribution Licensee.

A Distribution Licensee may undertake Opex schemes for system automation, new
technology and IT implementation, etc., and, such expenses may be allowed over and
above normative O&M Expenses, subject to prudence check by the Commission:

Provided that the Distribution Licensee shall submit detailed justification, cost benefit
analysis of such schemes as against capex schemes, and savings in O&M expenses, if

any.

In the case of a Deemed Distribution Licensee whose tariff is yet to be determined by
the Commission till the coming into force of these Regulations, the Commission may
determine the Operation and Maintenance expenses on a case to case basis.
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76  Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts

In the MYT Order, for each Year of the Control Period, the Commission may allow a provision
for writing off of bad and doubtful debts up to 1.5% of the amount shown as Trade Receivables
or Receivables from Wheeling Charges in the latest Audited Accounts of the Distribution
Licensee in accordance with the procedure laid down by the Licensee, subject to prudence
check:

Provided that the Commission shall true up the bad debts written off in the Aggregate Revenue
Requirement, based on the actual write off of bad debts during the year, subject to the above
ceiling of 1.5% of the amount shown as Trade Receivables or Receivables from Wheeling
Charges in the audited accounts of the Distribution Licensee for that Year, after prudence
check:

Provided further that if subsequent to the write off of a particular bad debt, revenue is realised
from such bad debt, the same shall be included as an uncontrollable item under the Non-Tariff
Income of the year in which such revenue is realised:

Provided also that in the Year when the cumulative provisioning for write-off of bad and
doubtful debts allowed by the Commission, duly allocated for the Distribution Wires Business,
exceeds five per cent of the amount shown as Trade Receivables or Receivables from Wheeling
Charges in the audited accounts of the Distribution Licensee, no such appropriation shall be
allowed, which would have the effect of increasing the cumulative provisioning beyond the
said maximum:

Provided also that for Distribution Licensees having agricultural sales in excess of 20 percent
of their total sales, the ceiling of cumulative provisioning in the above proviso shall be 7.5 per
cent of the amount shown as Trade Receivables or Receivables from Wheeling Charges in the
audited accounts of the Distribution Licensee.

77  Non-Tariff Income

77.1 The amount of Non-Tariff Income relating to the Distribution Wires Business as
approved by the Commission shall be deducted from the Aggregate Revenue
Requirement in determining the Wheeling Charges of the Distribution Wires Business:

Provided that the Distribution Licensee shall submit full details of its forecast of Non-
Tariff Income to the Commission in such form as may be stipulated by the Commission.

77.2 The Non-Tariff Income shall include:

a) Income from rent of land or buildings;
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b) Income from sale of scrap;

¢) Income from investments;

d) Interest income on advances to suppliers/contractors;
e) Income from rental from staff quarters;

f) Income from rental from contractors;

g) Income from hire charges from contactors and others;

h) Income from consumer charges levied in accordance with Schedule of Charges
approved by the Commission;

1) Supervision charges for capital works;
j)  Income from advertisements;

k) Income from sale of tender documents;
1) Any other Non-Tariff Income:

Provided that the interest earned from investments made out of Return on Equity
corresponding to the regulated Business of the Distribution Wires Business shall not be
included in Non-Tariff Income.

78 Income from Other Business

Where the Distribution Wires Business of the Distribution Licensee has engaged in any Other
Business under Section 51 of the Act for optimum utilisation of its assets, an amount equal to
two-thirds of the revenues from such Other Business after deduction of all direct and indirect
costs attributed to such Other Business shall be deducted from the Aggregate Revenue
Requirement in determining the Wheeling Charges of Distribution Wires Business:

Provided that the Distribution Licensee shall follow a reasonable basis for allocation of all joint
and common costs between the Distribution Wires Business and the Other Business and shall
submit the Allocation Statement, duly certified by the Statutory Auditor of the Company, to
the Commission along with its Petition for determination of Wheeling Charges:

Provided further that where the sum total of the direct and indirect costs of such Other Business
exceeds the revenues from such Other Business, no amount shall be allowed to be added to the
Aggregate Revenue Requirement of the Distribution Wires Business on account of such Other
Business.
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79  Wheeling Losses

The Distribution Wires Business shall be allowed to recover, in kind, the approved target level
of Wheeling Losses arising from the operation of the distribution system:

Provided that the Commission may stipulate a trajectory for Wheeling Losses in accordance
with Regulation 7 as part of the Order on the Multi-Year Tariff Petition filed by the Distribution

Licensee.

PART H: RETAIL SUPPLY OF ELECTRICITY

R

80  Applicability

The Regulations contained in this Part shall apply to the determination of Tariff for retail supply

of electricity by a Distribution Licensee to its consumers.

81 Components of Aggregate Revenue Requirement for Retail Supply Business

81.1 The Tariff for retail supply of the Distribution Licensee shall provide for the recovery of

the Aggregate Revenue Requirement of the Retail Supply Business for the respective
Years of the Control Period, as approved by the Commission and comprising the

following components:

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
®
(€9)
(h)
(@
@
(k)
M
(m)

Cost of own power generation /power purchase expenses;

Inter-State Transmission Charges;
Intra-State Transmission Charges;
MSLDC Fees & Charges;

Operation and Maintenance expenses;
Depreciation;

Interest on Loan Capital;

Interest on working capital;

Interest on consumer security deposits;
Provision for Bad and doubtful debts; and
Contribution to contingency reserves;
Return on Equity Capital;

Income Tax;
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minus:

(n) Non-Tariff income;

(o) Income from Other Business, to the extent specified in these Regulations;
(p) Receipts on account of Cross-Subsidy Surcharge;

(q) Receipts on account of Additional Surcharge:

Provided that Depreciation, Interest on Loan Capital, Interest on working capital, Interest
on consumer security deposits, Contribution to Contingency Reserves, Return on Equity,
and Income Tax for Retail Supply Business shall be allowed in accordance with the
provisions specified in Part D of these Regulations:

Provided further that prior period income/expenses shall be allowed by the Commission
at the time of truing up based on audited accounts, on a case to case basis, if the
income/expenses in that prior period have been allowed on actual basis, subject to
prudence check:

Provided also that all penalties and compensation payable by the Licensee to any party
for failure to meet any Standards of Performance or for damages, as a consequence of
the orders of the Commission, Courts, Consumer Grievance Redressal Forum, and
Ombudsman, etc., shall not be allowed to be recovered through the Aggregate Revenue
Requirement:

Provided also that the Distribution Licensee shall maintain separate details of such
penalties and compensation paid or payable by the Licensee, if any, and shall submit
them to the Commission along with its Petition.

The Tariff for retail supply by the Distribution Licensee shall be determined by the
Commission on the basis of a Petition for determination of Tariff filed by the
Distribution Licensee in accordance with Part B of these Regulations:

Provided that the Aggregate Revenue Requirement of the Distribution Licensee shall be
allocated or apportioned between the Distribution Wires Business and Retail Supply
Business in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 71:

Provided further that the Tariff for retail supply may comprise any combination of
fixed/demand charges, energy charges, and any other charges, for the purpose of
recovery from the consumers, as may be stipulated by the Commission:

Provided also that the Commission may determine the area-wise Tariff for Distribution
Licensee based on the performance parameters as may be stipulated by the Commission:

Provided also that in case of a Deemed Distribution Licensee whose tariff is yet to be
determined by the Commission till the date of coming into effect of these Regulations,
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the Commission may determine the ceiling Tariff for retail supply that may be charged
by such Distribution Licensee till such time as considered appropriate by the
Commission.

The Tariff for retail supply by the Distribution Licensee shall continue to be billed at the
Tariff approved by the Commission and applicable as on March 31, 2020 for the period
starting from April 1, 2020 till approval of Tariff for retail supply by the Commission in
accordance with these Regulations.

The Distribution Licensee may propose other rebates for inter-alia, taking supply at
higher voltages, bulk consumption, power factor, etc., as a part of their Petition, and the
revenue impact of rebates shall be passed on through the Aggregate Revenue
Requirement and tariffs, subject to the Commission’s approval.

The Distribution Licensee may offer a rebate to the consumers on the Tariff and charges
determined by the Commission:

Provided that the Distribution Licensee shall submit details of such rebates to the

Commission every quarter, in the manner and format, as stipulated by the Commission:

Provided further that the impact of such rebates on the Distribution Licensee shall be
borne entirely by the Distribution Licensee and the impact of such rebate shall not be

passed on to the consumers, in any form:

Provided also that such rebates shall not be offered selectively to any consumer/s, and
shall have to be offered to the entire consumer category/sub-category/consumption slab
in a non-discriminatory manner.

Sales forecast

The Distribution Licensee shall submit a month-wise forecast of the expected sales of
electricity to each Tariff category/sub-category and to each Tariff slab within such Tariff
category/sub-category to the Commission for approval along with the Multi-Year Tariff
Petition, as specified in these Regulations:

Provided that the Distribution Licensee shall submit relevant details regarding category-
wise sales separately for each Distribution Franchisee area within its Licence area, as
well as the aggregated category-wise sales in its Licence area.

The sales forecast shall be consistent with the load forecast prepared as part of the power
procurement plan under Part C of these Regulations and shall be based on past data and
reasonable assumptions regarding the future:
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Provided that where the Commission has stipulated a methodology for forecasting sales
to any particular Tariff category, the Distribution Licensee shall incorporate such
methodology in developing the sales forecast for such Tariff category.

Capital Investment Plan

The Distribution Licensee shall submit a detailed Capital Investment Plan, financing
plan and physical targets for each Year of the Control Period for meeting the requirement
of growth in number of consumers, reduction in distribution losses, metering, etc., to the
Commission for approval, as a part of the Multi-Year Tariff Petition for the entire
Control Period.

The Capital Investment Plan shall be a least cost plan for undertaking investments and
shall cover all capital expenditure projects of a value exceeding Rs. One Crore or such
other amount as may be stipulated by the Commission and shall be in such form as may
be stipulated by the Commission from time to time.

The Capital Investment Plan shall be accompanied by such information, particulars and
documents as may be required showing the need for the proposed investments,
alternatives considered, cost-benefit analysis and other aspects that may have a bearing
on the Tariff for retail supply of electricity.

The Commission shall consider the Capital Investment Plan along with the Multi-Year
Aggregate Revenue Requirement for the entire Control Period submitted by the
Distribution Licensee taking into consideration the prudence of the proposed expenditure
and estimated impact on the Tariff for retail supply of electricity.

The Distribution Licensee shall submit, along with the Petition for determination of the
Tariff for retail supply of electricity, or along with the Petition for Mid-term Performance
Review, as the case may be, details showing the progress of capital expenditure projects,
together with such other information, particulars or documents as the Commission may

require to assess such progress.

Operation and Maintenance Expenses

The Distribution Licensees shall be permitted to recover Operation and Maintenance
expenses relating to the Retail Supply Business in accordance with this Regulation.

The Operation and Maintenance expenses shall be derived on the basis of the average of
the Trued-up Operation and Maintenance expenses after adding/deducting the share of
efficiency gains/losses, for the three Years ending March 31, 2019, excluding abnormal
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Operation and Maintenance expenses, if any, subject to prudence check by the
Commission:

Provided that the average of such Operation and Maintenance expenses shall be
considered as Operation and Maintenance expenses for the Year ended March 31, 2018,
and shall be escalated at the respective escalation rate for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20,
to arrive at the Operation and Maintenance expenses for the base year ending March 31,
2020:

Provided further that the escalation rate for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 shall be
computed by considering 30% weightage to the average yearly inflation derived based
on the monthly Wholesale Price Index of the respective past five financial years as per
the Office of Economic Advisor of Government of India and 70% weightage to the
average yearly inflation derived based on the monthly Consumer Price Index for
Industrial Workers (all-India) of the respective past five financial years as per the Labour
Bureau, Government of India:

Provided also that at the time of true-up for each Year of this Control Period, the
Operation and Maintenance expenses shall be derived on the basis of the Final Trued-up
Operation and Maintenance expenses after adding/deducting the sharing of efficiency
gains/losses, for the base year ending March 31, 2020, excluding abnormal expenses, if
any, subject to prudence check by the Commission, and shall be considered as the Base
Year Operation and Maintenance expenses.

The Operation and Maintenance expenses for each subsequent year shall be determined
by escalating these Base Year expenses of FY 2019-20 by an inflation factor with 30%
weightage to the average yearly inflation derived based on the monthly Wholesale Price
Index of the respective past five financial years as per the Office of Economic Advisor
of Government of India and 70% weightage to the average yearly inflation derived based
on the monthly Consumer Price Index for Industrial Workers (all-India) of the past five
financial years as per the Labour Bureau, Government of India, as reduced by an
efficiency factor of 1% or as may be stipulated by the Commission from time to time, to
arrive at the permissible Operation and Maintenance expenses for each year of the
Control Period:

Provided that, in the Truing-up of the O&M expenses for any particular year of the
Control Period, an inflation factor with 30% weightage to the average yearly inflation
derived based on the monthly Wholesale Price Index of the respective past five financial
years (including the year of Truing-up) and 70% weightage to the average yearly
inflation derived based on the monthly Consumer Price Index for Industrial Workers
(all-India) of the respective past five financial years (including the year of Truing-up),
as reduced by an efficiency factor of 1% or as may be stipulated by the Commission

N
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from time to time, shall be applied to arrive at the permissible Operation and

Maintenance Expenses for that year:

Provided further that the efficiency factor shall be considered as zero, in case there is an
increase in the number of consumers including Open Access consumers of at least 2

percent annually over the last 3 years:

Provided also that in case such increase in the number of consumers is lower than 2
percent annually over the last 3 years, then the reduction in efficiency factor shall be

considered in proportion to the percentage growth in the number of consumers.

The impact of Wage Revision, if any, may be considered at the time of true-up for any
Year, based on documentary evidence and justification to be submitted by the Petitioner:

Provided that if actual employee expenses are higher than normative expenses on this
account, then no sharing of efficiency losses shall be done to that extent:

Provided further that efficiency gains shall not be allowed by deducting the impact of
Wage Revision and comparison of such reduced value with normative value.

Provisioning of wage revision expenses shall not be considered as actual expenses at the
time of true-up, and only expenses as actually incurred shall be considered.

In case the expenditure on Repairs & Maintenance falls below 20% of total O&M
expenses allowed under these Regulations, then such savings in Repairs & Maintenance
shall not be set off against other heads of O&M expenses:

Provided that this limitation shall not be applicable for Deemed Distribution Licensees
for the first five years after commencement of operations as a Distribution Licensee.

A Distribution Licensee may undertake Opex schemes for system automation, new
technology and IT implementation, etc,. and, such expenses may be allowed over and
above normative O&M Expenses, subject to prudence check by the Commission:

Provided that the Distribution Licensee shall submit detailed justification, cost benefit
analysis of such schemes as against capex schemes, and savings in O&M expenses, if

any.

In the case of a Deemed Distribution Licensee whose tariff is yet to be determined by
the Commission till the coming into force of these Regulations, the Commission may

determine the Operation and Maintenance expenses on a case to case basis.

Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts

In the MYT Order, for each Year of the Control Period, the Commission may allow a provision

for writing oft of bad and doubtful debts up to 1.5% of the amount shown as Trade Receivables
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or Receivables from Sale of Electricity in the latest Audited Accounts of the Distribution
Licensee in accordance with the procedure laid down by the Licensee, subject to prudence
check:

Provided that the Commission shall true up the bad debts written off in the Aggregate Revenue
Requirement, based on the actual write off of bad debts during the year, subject to the above
ceiling of 1.5% of the amount shown as Trade Receivables or Receivables from Sale of
Electricity in the audited accounts of the Distribution Licensee for that Year, after prudence
check:

Provided further that if subsequent to the write off of a particular bad debt, revenue is realised
from such bad debt, the same shall be included as an uncontrollable item under the Non-Tariff
Income of the year in which such revenue is realised:

Provided also that in the Year when the cumulative provisioning for write-off of bad and
doubtful debts allowed by the Commission, duly allocated for the Retail Supply Business
exceeds five per cent of the amount shown as Trade Receivables or Receivables from Sale of
Electricity in the audited accounts of the Distribution Licensee, no such appropriation shall be
allowed, which would have the effect of increasing the cumulative provisioning beyond the
said maximum:

Provided also that for Distribution Licensees having agricultural sales in excess of 20 percent
of their total sales, the ceiling of cumulative provisioning in the above proviso shall be 7.5 per
cent of the amount shown as Trade Receivables or Receivables from Sale of Electricity in the
audited accounts of the Distribution Licensee.

86  Non-Tariff Income

86.1 The amount of Non-Tariff Income relating to the Retail Supply Business as approved by
the Commission shall be deducted from the Aggregate Revenue Requirement in
determining the Tariff for retail supply of electricity by the Distribution Licensee:

Provided that the Distribution Licensee shall submit details of its forecast of Non-Tariff
income to the Commission in such form as may be stipulated by the Commission.

86.2 The Non-Tariff Income shall include:
a) Income from rent of land or buildings;
b) Income from sale of scrap;
¢) Income from investments;

d) Interest income on advances to suppliers/contractors;

IN
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e) Income from rental from staff quarters;

f) Income from rental from contractors;

g) Income from hire charges from contactors and others;
h) Supervision charges for capital works;

i) Income from consumer charges levied in accordance with Schedule of Charges
approved by the Commission;

j) Income from recovery against theft and/or pilferage of electricity;
k) Income from advertisements;

1) Income from sale of tender documents;

m) Any other Non-Tariff Income:

Provided that the interest earned from investments made out of Return on Equity
corresponding to the regulated Business of the Retail Supply Business shall not be
included in Non-Tariff Income.

87 Income from Other Business

Where the Retail Supply Business of the Distribution Licensee has engaged in any Other
Business under Section 51 of the Act for optimum utilisation of its assets, an amount equal to
two-thirds of the revenues from such Other Business after deduction of all direct and indirect
costs attributed to such Other Business shall be deducted from the Aggregate Revenue
Requirement in calculating the Tariff for retail supply of electricity by the Distribution
Licensee:

Provided that the Distribution Licensee shall follow a reasonable basis for allocation of all joint
and common costs between the Retail Supply Business and the Other Business and shall submit
the Allocation Statement, duly certified by the Statutory Auditor of the Company, to the
Commission along with its Petition for determination of Tariff:

Provided further that where the sum total of the direct and indirect costs of such Other Business
exceeds the revenue from such Other Business, no amount shall be allowed to be added to the
Aggregate Revenue Requirement of the Retail Supply Business on account of such Other
Business.

88  Receipts on account of Cross-Subsidy Surcharge

The amount received by the Distribution Licensee by way of Cross-Subsidy Surcharge, as
approved by the Commission in accordance with the Regulations of the Commission governing
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Distribution Open Access, shall be deducted from the Aggregate Revenue Requirement in
determining the Tariff for retail supply of electricity by such Distribution Licensee.

89  Receipts on account of Additional Surcharge

The amount received by the Distribution Licensee by way of Additional Surcharge, as approved
by the Commission in accordance with the Regulations of the Commission governing
Distribution Open Access, shall be deducted from the Aggregate Revenue Requirement for
determining the Tariff for retail supply of electricity by such Distribution Licensee.

90 Distribution Losses

The power purchase requirement of the Distribution Licensee at the Transmission-Distribution
interface point, shall be computed by grossing up the sales with the distribution losses approved
by the Commission:

Provided that the Commission may stipulate the target distribution losses in accordance with
Regulation 7 as part of the Order on the Multi-Year Tariff Petition:

Provided further that the Distribution Licensee shall submit the details of area-wise distribution
losses for the relevant years, in accordance with the formats prescribed by the Commission:

Provided also that the area-wise distribution losses shall separately indicate the distribution

losses in each Distribution Franchisee area within its Licence area, for the relevant years.

91 Determination of Retail Supply Tariff

91.1 The Commission may categorize consumers on the basis of their load factor, power
factor, voltage, total consumption of electricity during any specified period or the time
at which the supply is required or the geographical position of any area, the nature of
supply and the purpose for which the supply is required.

91.2 The Commission may determine additional or reduced area-specific charges to reflect
instances of area peculiarity in terms of high/low distribution losses, high/low reliability
of power supply, high reinstatement charges levied by the local body, capital expenditure
incurred for purposes beyond Universal Service Obligation and safety measures, etc.:

Provided that depending on the local requirements, additional or reduced tariff could be

imposed in certain areas, as appropriate

91.3 The retail supply tariff for different consumer categories shall be determined on the basis
of the Average Cost of Supply, computed as the ratio of the Aggregate Revenue
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Requirement of the Distribution Licensee for the Year determined in accordance with
Regulation 81, and including unrecovered revenue gaps of previous years to the extent
proposed to be recovered, to the total sales of the Distribution Licensee for the respective
Year.

The Commission shall endeavour to gradually reduce the cross-subsidy between
consumer categories with respect to the Average Cost of Supply in accordance with the
provisions of the Act.

While determining the tariff, the Commission shall also keep in view the cost of supply
at different voltage levels and the need to minimise tariff shock to consumers.

PART I: FEES AND CHARGES FOR MSLDC

92

Applicability

The Regulations contained in this Part shall apply in determining the Fees and Charges to be
levied by the MSLDC after April 1, 2020.

93

93.1

93.2

933

934

Capital Investment Plan

The MSLDC shall submit a detailed capital investment plan, financing plan and physical
targets for each Year of the Control Period based on the operational requirements
prescribed by the Commission and recommendations of various Committees constituted
for looking into matters related to strengthening and ring fencing of the State Load
Despatch Centres by the Ministry of Power, Government of India or any such other
statutory authorities, to the Commission for approval, as a part of the Multi-Year
Aggregate Revenue Requirement for the entire Control Period.

The Capital Investment Plan shall be a least cost plan for undertaking investments and
shall cover all capital expenditure projects of a value exceeding Rs. One crore or any
other limit as may be stipulated by the Commission from time to time and shall be in
such form as may be stipulated by the Commission.

The Capital Investment Plan shall be accompanied by such information, particulars and
documents as may be required showing the need for the proposed investments,
alternatives considered, cost/benefit analysis and other aspects that may have a bearing
on the MSLDC Fees and Charges.

The Commission shall consider the Capital Investment Plan along with the Multi-Year
Aggregate Revenue Requirement for the entire Control Period submitted by the MSLDC
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taking into consideration the prudence of the proposed expenditure and estimated impact
on MSLDC Fees and Charges.

93.5 The MSLDC shall submit, along with the Petition for determination of Aggregate
Revenue Requirement or along with the Petition for Mid-term Performance Review, as
the case may be, details showing the progress of capital expenditure projects, together
with such other information, particulars or documents as the Commission may require
to assess such progress.

94 LDC Development Fund

The Commission may permit MSLDC to create and maintain a separate development fund for
such purposes and from such sources of income, as the Commission may consider appropriate,
on a Petition filed by MSLDC.

95  Annual Fixed Charges for MSLDC

The Annual Fixed Charges to be levied by the MSLDC shall provide for the recovery of the
Aggregate Revenue Requirement of the MSLDC for the respective Year of the Control Period,
as reduced by the amount of Non-Tariff Income as approved by the Commission and
comprising the following:

(a) Operation and Maintenance expenses;

(b) Regional Load Despatch Centre (RLDC) Fees and Western Region Power Committee
(WRPC) Charges;

(¢) Depreciation;
(d) Interest on Loan Capital;
(e) Interest on working capital
(f) Return on Equity Capital;
(g) Income Tax;
minus:
(h) Income from Open Access charges;
(i)  Non-Tariff income:

Provided that Depreciation, Interest on Loan, and Return on Equity for the MSLDC shall be
allowed in accordance with the provisions specified in Part D of these Regulations:
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Provided further that prior period income/expenses shall be allowed by the Commission at the

time of truing up based on audited accounts, on a case to case basis, if the income/expenses in

that prior period have been allowed on actual basis, subject to prudence check:

Provided also that all penalties and compensation payable by the MSLDC to any party for

failure to meet its obligations or for damages, as a consequence of the orders of the Commission

and Courts shall not be allowed to be recovered through the Aggregate Revenue Requirement:

Provided also that the MSLDC shall maintain separate details of such penalties and

compensation paid or payable by the MSLDC, if any, and shall submit the same to the

Commission along with the Petitions to be submitted under these Regulations.

96
96.1

96.2

96.3

Operation and Maintenance expenses

The Operation and Maintenance expenses for the MSLDC shall be computed in
accordance with this Regulation.

The Operation and Maintenance expenses shall be derived on the basis of the average of
the Trued-up Operation and Maintenance expenses after adding/deducting the share of
efficiency gains/losses, for the three Years ending March 31, 2019, excluding abnormal
Operation and Maintenance expenses, if any, subject to prudence check by the

Commission:

Provided that the average of such Operation and Maintenance expenses shall be
considered as Operation and Maintenance expenses for the Year ended March 31, 2018,
and shall be escalated at the respective escalation rate for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20,
to arrive at the Operation and Maintenance expenses for the base year ending March 31,
2020:

Provided further that the escalation rate for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 shall be
computed by considering 20% weightage to the average yearly inflation derived based
on the monthly Wholesale Price Index of the respective past five financial years as per
the Office of Economic Advisor of Government of India and 80% weightage to the
average yearly inflation derived based on the monthly Consumer Price Index for
Industrial Workers (all-India) of the respective past five financial years as per the Labour
Bureau, Government of India.

At the time of true-up for each Year of this Control Period, the Operation and
Maintenance expenses shall be derived on the basis of the Final Trued-up Operation and
Maintenance expenses after adding/deducting the sharing of efficiency gains/losses, for
the year ending March 31, 2020, excluding abnormal expenses, if any, subject to
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prudence check by the Commission, and shall be considered as the Base Year Operation

and Maintenance expenses:

Provided that the Operation and Maintenance expenses for each subsequent year shall
be determined by escalating these Base Year expenses of FY 2019-20 by an inflation
factor with 20% weightage to the average yearly inflation derived based on the monthly
Wholesale Price Index of the respective past five financial years as per the Office of
Economic Advisor of Government of India and 80% weightage to the average yearly
inflation derived based on the monthly Consumer Price Index for Industrial Workers
(all-India) of the past five financial years as per the Labour Bureau, Government of India,
as reduced by an efficiency factor of 1% or as may be stipulated by the Commission
from time to time, to arrive at the permissible Operation and Maintenance expenses for
each year of the Control Period:

Provided further that, in the Truing-up of the O&M expenses for any particular year of
the Control Period, an inflation factor with 20% weightage to the average yearly inflation
derived based on the monthly Wholesale Price Index of the respective past five financial
years (including the year of Truing-up) and 80% weightage to the average yearly
inflation derived based on the monthly Consumer Price Index for Industrial Workers
(all-India) of the respective past five financial years (including the year of Truing-up),
as reduced by an efficiency factor of 1% or as may be stipulated by the Commission
from time to time, shall be applied to arrive at the permissible Operation and

Maintenance Expenses for that year.

96.4 The impact of Wage Revision, if any, may be considered at the time of true-up for any
Year, based on documentary evidence and justification to be submitted by the Petitioner:

Provided that if actual employee expenses are higher than normative expenses on this
account, then no sharing of efficiency losses shall be done to that extent:

Provided further that efficiency gains shall not be allowed by deducting the impact of
Wage Revision and comparison of such reduced value with normative value.

96.5 Provisioning of wage revision expenses shall not be considered as actual expenses at the
time of true-up, and only expenses as actually incurred shall be considered.

96.6 The MSLDC may undertake Opex schemes for system automation, new technology and
IT implementation, etc., and, such expenses may be allowed over and above normative
O&M Expenses, subject to prudence check by the Commission:

Provided that the MSLDC shall submit detailed justification, cost benefit analysis of
such schemes as against capex schemes, and savings in O&M expenses, if any.
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RLDC Fees and WRPC Charges

The RLDC Fees and Charges payable by the MSLDC in accordance with the relevant
Orders issued by the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission from time to time shall
be allowed to be recovered by the MSLDC through the Fees and Charges as approved
by the Commission.

The MSLDC shall have to produce documentary proof towards payment of such Charges
at the time of Mid-Term Review or Truing up:

Provided that any variation between the approved RLDC Fees and Charges and WRPC
Charges and that actually paid by the MSLDC shall be considered during the true-up as
per audited accounts, subject to prudence check and any other factor considered
appropriate by the Commission.

Non-Tariff Income

The amount of Non-Tariff Income relating to the MSLDC as approved by the
Commission shall be deducted from the Aggregate Revenue Requirement in determining
the Fees and Charges of the MSLDC:

Provided that the MSLDC shall submit full details of its forecast of Non-Tariff Income
to the Commission in such form as may be stipulated by the Commission.

The Non-Tariff Income shall include:
a) Income from sale of scrap;
b) Income from investments;
¢) Interest income on advances to suppliers/contractors;
d) Income from rental from staff quarters;
¢) Income from sale of tender documents;
f) Any other Non-Tariff Income:

Provided that the interest earned from investments made out of Return on Equity of the
MSLDC shall not be included in Non-Tariff Income.

Sharing of MSLDC Charges

The MSLDC Charges payable by the Transmission System Users shall be computed in
accordance with the following formula:
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AFC(u) = AFC» X ([Base TCR(w)]/ X, [Base TCR(u)]w)
Where,
AFC(u)q = MSLDC Charges to be shared by the Beneficiary (u) for the

Yearly period (t);
AFC(t)

Total MSLDC Charges to be shared by the Beneficiaries for the
Yearly period (t);

Base TCR (u) =[CPD(u)y + NCPD(u)y] /2
Where,

Base TCR represents the Base Transmission Capacity Right of each Beneficiary (u)
for the Yearly period (t);

CPD (u)q = Average Coincident Peak Demand of the Beneficiary (u) for
the Yearly period (t);
NCPD (u)(t) = Average Non-coincident Peak Demand of the Beneficiary (u)

for the Yearly period (t):

Provided that the Allotted Capacity for long-term Open Access Users, excluding
partial long-term Users, shall be considered in lieu of the average monthly CPD and
NCPD for calculating the Base TCR for Open Access consumers.

The MSLDC Charges approved for the Year shall be equally spread over the 12 months
of the Year and MSLDC Charges per MW per month shall be computed by MSLDC in
accordance with the following Formula:

Monthly MSLDC Charges (Rs. / MW / Month)
= [AFC(u) +Zi=; [Base TCR(W)]] + 12
The Open Access consumers excluding those covered under Regulation 99.1, shall be

liable for payment of the MSLDC Charges in proportion to the duration for which they
were granted Open Access during the concerned billing period.

The Charges to be recovered by MSLDC shall continue to be billed at the Tariff
approved by the Commission and applicable as on March 31, 2020 for the period starting
from April 1, 2020 till approval of Charges by the Commission in accordance with these
Regulations.

Fees to be Charged by MSLDC

100.1 The MSLDC shall recover the following Fees as approved by the Commission from time

to time:

IN
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a) Registration or Connection Fees per connection from all users connecting to the Intra-
State Transmission System;

b) Scheduling Fees per day for intra-State short-term Open Access transactions;

¢) Re-scheduling Fees for each revision in schedule after the finalization of schedules
by the MSLDC on a day-ahead basis or for non-submission of schedule as per State
Grid Code requirements;

d) Short-term Open Access Application Processing Fees;
e) Any other Fees approved by the Commission from time to time.

100.2 The revenue from such Fees shall be considered for adjustment of Annual Fixed Charges
in subsequent Years unless the same forms part of the LDC Development Fund.

101 Billing and Payment of Charges

101.1 The MSLDC shall raise monthly bill for MSLDC Charges on every Long-term
Beneficiary and Medium-Term Open Access consumer on the first working day of the
month for the MSLDC Charges of preceding month.

101.2 The monthly bill for MSLDC Charges shall be payable within thirty days of receipt of
bill by the Long-term Beneficiaries and the Medium Term Open Access consumers.

PART J: GRANT OF SUBSIDIES BY STATE GOVERNMENT

102 Manner of grant of subsidy by State Government

102.1 If the State Government requires the grant of any subsidy to any consumer or class of
consumers in the Tariff determined by the Commission, the State Government shall pay
in advance the amount to compensate the Distribution Licensee/person affected by the
grant of subsidy in the manner specified in this Regulation, with prior intimation to the

Commission.

102.2 The amount of subsidy agreed to by the State Government shall be provided in the form
of grant by the State Government.

102.3 The subsidy shall be passed on to eligible consumers through credit in their electricity
bills only in proportion to the extent to which the total requirement of the Distribution
Licensee is paid by the State Government:

Provided that in case of shortfall in actual release of subsidy, either because of errors in
estimation or for any other reason, such shortfall, shall be shown clearly in the
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consumers’ bills and shall be distributed proportionately between the concerned eligible
consumers until such time as it is reduced or eliminated.

102.4 The Distribution Licensee shall clearly indicate the following details in the consumers'
bills:

a) the Tariff determined by the Commission;
b) the amount of State Government subsidy and the rate and period thereof;

¢) the net amount payable.

PART K: MISCELLANEOUS

¥R

103 Issue of Practice Directions

Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Commission may, from time to time, issue Practice
Directions in regard to implementation of these Regulations.

104 Power to amend

The Commission may, at any time, vary, alter, modify or amend any provisions of these
Regulations.

105 Power to relax

The Commission may by general or special order, for reasons to be recorded in writing, and
after giving an opportunity of hearing to the parties likely to be affected by grant of relaxation,
may relax any of provisions of these Regulations on its own motion or on an application made
before it by an interested person.

106 Power to remove difficulties

If any difficulty arises in giving effect to the provisions of these Regulations, the Commission
may, by general or specific order, make such provisions not inconsistent with the provisions of
the Act, as may appear to be necessary for removing the difficulty.
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Annexure-I: DEPRECIATION SCHEDULE

Depreciation
el Rate
Description of Assets . .
(Straight line
method)
A. Land owned under full title --
B. Land held under lease
a) | for investment in the land 3.34%
b) | for cost of clearing the site 3.34%
c¢) | Land for reservoir in case of Hydro Generating Station 3.34%
C. Assets Purchased New:
a. | Plant and machinery in Generating Stations including plant
foundations
i) | Hydro-electric 5.28%
1) | Steam electric 5.28%
NHRS &Waste Heat Recovery Boilers/Plants
iii) | Diesel-electric and gas plant 5.28%
b. | Cooling towers and circulating water systems 5.28%
c. | Hydraulic works forming part of Hydro-electric systems
including:-
i) | Dams, Spillways, weirs, canals, reinforced concrete 5.28%
Flumes and siphons
ii) | Reinforced concrete pipelines and surge tanks, steel 5.28%
pipelines, sluice gates, steel surge (tanks) hydraulic
control valves and other hydraulic works
d. | Building & civil engineering works of permanent character
i) | Offices & showrooms 3.34%
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Depreciation
Rate
Description of Assets . .
(Straight line
method)
ii) | Containing thermo-electric generating plant 3.34%
iii) | Containing hydro-electric generating plant 3.34%
iv) | Temporary erection such as wooden structures 100%
v) | Roads other than kutcha roads 3.34%
vi) | Others 3.34%
e. Transformers, transformer (Kiosk)  sub-Station
equipment & other fixed apparatus (including plant
foundations)
i) | Transformers (including foundations) having a rating of 5.28%
100 kilo volt amperes and over
ii) | Others 5.28%
f. Switchgear including cable connections 5.28%
g. Lightning arrestors
i) | Station type 5.28%
ii) | Pole type 5.28%
ii) | Synchronous condenser 5.28%
h. Batteries 18.00%
i) | Underground Cable including joint boxes and 5.28%
disconnected boxes
ii) | Cable duct system 5.28%
i. Overhead lines including supports:
i) | Lines on fabricated steel operating at nominal voltages 5.28%
higher than 66 kV
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Depreciation
Description of Assets R.ate .
(Straight line
method)
ii) | Lines on steel supports operating at nominal voltages 5.28%
higher than 13.2 kilovolts but not exceeding 66 kilovolts
iii) | Lines on steel or reinforced concrete supports 5.28%
iv) | Lines on treated wood supports 5.28%
J- Meters 9.00%
k. Self-propelled vehicles 9.50%
1. Air conditioning plants:
i) | Static 5.28%
ii) | Portable 9.50%
m.
i) | Office furniture and fittings 6.33%
ii) | Office equipment 6.33%
iii) | Internal wiring including fittings and apparatus 6.33%
iv) | Street light fittings 5.28%
n. Apparatus let on hire
i) | Other than motors 9.50%
ii) | Motors 6.33%
0. Communication equipment:
i) | Radio and high frequency carrier system 6.33%
ii) | Telephone lines and telephones 6.33%
iii) | Fibre Optic 6.33%
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Depreciation
L. Rate
Description of Assets . .
(Straight line
method)
p- LT. equipment 15.00%
q- Software 30.00%
5.28%

I. Any other assets not covered above
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Annexure-II: Procedure for calculation of Transmission System Availability for a

Month

1.  Transmission system availability for a calendar month shall be computed by the

respective Transmission Licensee, and certified by the MSLDC, separately for each AC

and HVDC transmission system. For the purpose of calculation of Transmission System

Availability:

1) AC transmission lines: Each circuit of AC transmission line shall be considered
as one element.

ii) Inter-Connecting Transformers (ICTs): Each ICT bank (three single phase
transformer together) shall form one element.

iii) Static VAR Compensator (SVC): SVC along with SVC transformer shall form
one element. However, 50% credit to inductive and 50% to capacitive rating
shall be given.

iv) Bus Reactors/Switchable line reactors: Each Bus Reactors/Switchable line
reactors shall be considered as one element.

V) HVDC Bi-pole links: Each pole of HVDC link along with associated equipment
at both ends shall be considered as one element.

vi) HVDC back-to-back Station: Each block of HVDC back-to-back Station shall

be considered as one element. If associated AC line (necessary for transfer of
inter-regional power through HVDC back-to-back Station) is not available, the
HVDC back-to-back Station block shall also be considered as unavailable.

2. The Availability of AC and HVDC portion of Transmission system shall be computed

as under:

% Availability for AC system

0XAVo+p XAVp+qXAVq+rXAVr

X 100

otpt+tq+tr

% Availability for HVDC system

Where

s X AVs+tX AVt

X 100

s+t

o = Total number of AC lines;
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AVo = Availability of o number of AC lines;
p = Total number of bus reactors/switchable line reactors;
AVp = Availability of p number of bus reactors/switchable line reactors;
q = Total number of ICTs;
AVq = Availability of q number of ICTs;
T = Total number of SVCs;
AVr = Availability of r number of SVCs;
s = Total number of HVDC poles;
AVs = Availability of s number of HVDC poles;
t = Total number of HVDC back-to-back Station blocks;
AVt = Availability of t number of HVDC back-to-back Station blocks.

The weightage factor for each category of transmission element shall be as under:
(a) For each circuit of AC line — Surge Impedance Loading (SIL) for Uncompensated
line multiplied by ckt-km.

SIL rating for various voltage levels and conductor configurations is given in
Appendix-1. However, for the voltage levels and/or conductor configurations not
listed in Appendix-I, appropriate SIL based on technical considerations may be used
for availability calculation under intimation to long-term transmission
customers/DICs.

For compensated AC line, SIL shall be as certified by the Maharashtra State Power
Committee (MSPC) Secretariat considering the compensation on the line.

For shunt compensated line, the reduced value of SIL shall be taken in accordance
with the location of the reactor. Similarly, in case of the lines with series
compensation, the higher SIL shall be taken as per the percentage of compensation.

(b) For each HVDC pole- The rated MW capacity x ckt-km

(c) For each ICT bank — The rated MV A capacity

(d) For SVC- The rated MVAR capacity (inductive and capacitive)

(e) For Bus Reactor/switchable line reactors — The rated MV AR capacity.

(f) For HVDC back-to-back Station connecting two Regional grids- Rated MW capacity
of each block.
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4.  The availability for each category of transmission element shall be computed based on
the weightage factor, total hours under consideration and non-available hours for each
element of that category. The formulae for calculation of Availability of each category
of the transmission elements are as per Appendix-II.

5. The transmission elements under outage due to following reasons shall be deemed to be

available:

1.

il.

Shut down availed for maintenance or construction of elements of another
transmission scheme. If the other transmission scheme belongs to the Transmission
Licensee, the MSLDC may restrict the deemed availability period to that
considered reasonable for the work involved.

Switching off of a transmission line to restrict over voltage and manual tripping of
switched reactors as per the directions of MSLDC.

6.  Outage time of transmission elements for the following contingencies shall be excluded

from the total time of the element under period of consideration:

I

ii.

Outage of elements due to acts of God and force majeure events beyond the control
of the Transmission Licensee. However, onus of satisfying the MSLDC that
element outage was due to aforesaid events and not due to design failure shall rest
with the Transmission Licensee. A reasonable restoration time for the element
shall be considered and any additional time taken by the Transmission Licensee
for restoration of the element beyond the reasonable time shall be treated as outage
time attributable to the Transmission Licensee. Circuits restored through ERS
(Emergency Restoration System) shall be considered as available.

Outage caused by grid incident/disturbance not attributable to the Transmission
Licensee, e.g., faults in substation or bays owned by other agency causing outage
of the Transmission Licensee’s elements, and tripping of lines, ICTs, HVDC, etc.
due to grid disturbance. However, if the element is not restored on receipt of
direction from RLDC while normalizing the system following grid
incident/disturbance within reasonable time, the element will be considered not
available for the period of outage after issuance of RLDC’s direction for

restoration.
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SURGE IMPEDANCE LOADING (SIL) OF AC LINES

Appendix-I

R

SL Line voltage Conductor SIL

No. (kV) Configuration MW)
1 765 Quad Bersimis 2250
2 400 Quad Bersimis 691
3 400 Twin Moose 515
4 400 Twin AAAC 425
5 400 Quad Zebra 647
6 400 Quad AAAC 646
7 400 Triple Snowbird 605
8 400 ACKC(500/26) 556
9 400 Twin ACAR 557
10 220 Twin Zebra 175
11 220 Single Zebra 132
12 132 Single Panther 50
13 66 Single Dog 10
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Appendix-II

FORMULAE FOR CALCULATION OF AVAILABILITY OF EACH CATEGORY OF
TRANSMISSION ELEMENTS

0 0
AV,(Availability of 0 no. of AC lines) =2 Wi(Ti -Txai) / 2 Wi
=1 Ti i=1

s s
AVs(Availability of s no. of HVDC pole) =2, Wj(Tj -TNA]J) 2. Wj
=1 T =1
q q
AV ,(Availability of g no. of ICTs) =Y Wk(Tk - Tnak) > Wk
K=1 Tk k=1
r r —
AV, (Availability of r no. of SVCs)  =|2 0.5Wi/ (Til-Tnail) +2 0.5 Wel(Tcl = acl)
—1 Tul =1 Td |
p p
2. 0.5Wi +2 0.5 Wcl _‘
I=1 I=1 B
p p
AVp(Availability of p no. of Switched= Y. Wm(Tm-Tnam) / > Wm
Bus reactors) m=1 Tm m=1
t t
AVt (Availability of t no. of HVDC = % Wn(Tn-Tnan) / > Wn
Back-to-back Blocks) n=1 Tn n=1

Where Wi

Weightage factor for /" transmission line

Wj Weightage factor for j" HVDC pole
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Wik
Wil&Wc!

Ti, Tj, Tk, T, Tcl, =

Tm&Tn

TNAi ,TNAj N TNAk =

Tnacl, Tnam,

= Weightage factor for k" ICT

Weightage factors for inductive & capacitive operation
of " SVC

th

= Weightage factor for m™ bus reactor

= Weightage factor for ' HVDC back to back block.

The total hours of i AC line,j HVDC pole, k™ ICT, 1" SVC

(Inductive Operation), 1" SVC (Capacitive Operation),m™ Switched
Bus Reactor &n"™ HVDC back-to-back block during the period under
consideration (excluding time period for outages not attributable to
Transmission Licensee for reasons given in Para 6 of the procedure)

The non-availability hours (excluding the time period for Tnai/,
outages not attributable to transmission Licensee taken as Tnan,
deemed availability as per Para 5 of the procedure) for i AC
line, , j"HVDC pole, £"ICT, I SVC (Inductive Operation), 1™
SVC (Capacitive Operation), m™ Switched Bus Reactor and
n"HVDC back-to-back block.

3R
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Annexure-III: Computation of Mean Time Between Failure for Generating
Station or Unit

Mean Time Between Failure means the arithmetic mean of time between failures of the
Generating Unit, excluding planned outages.

Mean Time Between Failures shall be computed as under:

iwo(Dt; — Ut;)
N

Mean Time Between Failure (MTBF) in days =

Dt = Start of Downtime, i.e., time at which event of tripping of Generator of Generating or Unit
has happened;

Ut= Start of Uptime, i.e., time at which Generator has been restored in the grid after preceding
forced outage or failure;

N= Number of failures or forced outages in the year; and

n = Time period, i.e., one year

Provided that planned outages, grid failure, zero scheduling, and reserve shutdown shall not be
considered for computation of Mean Time Between Failure:

Provided further that the difference between Start of Downtime (Dt) and Start of Uptime (Ut)
shall be calculated in days or fractions thereof:

Provided also that the Generating Company shall submit MTBF for each Generating Station or
Unit, as the case may be, for respective year at the time of truing up, duly certified by MSLDC.

Mumbai (Abhijit Deshpande)
Dated: 1 August, 2019 Secretary,
Mabharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission
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